
The YouTube channel "City of Franklin WI" will be live streaming the Common Council meeting so
that the public will be able to view and listen to the meeting.

https://www.youtube.com/c/CityofFranklinWIGov

CITY OF FRANKLIN
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING

FRANKLIN CITY HALL - COMMON COUNCIL CHAMBERS
9229 WEST LOOMIS ROAD, FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

AGENDA*
MONDAY, APRIL 4, 2022, AT 6:30 P.M.

A. Call to Order and Roll Call.

B. 1.
2.

Citizen Comment Period.
Mayoral Announcements: A Proclamation in Recognition of and in Gratitude for the
Services Provided for and to the People by Daniel M. Mayer.

C. Approval ofMinutes: Regular Common Council Meeting ofMarch 15, 2022.

D. Hearings: Special Assessment for Installation of Water Main on W. Minnesota Avenue
Bounded by S. 51st Street to the West and S. 49th Street to the East Thence Northward on S.
49th Street Approximately 50 feet.

E. Organizational Business - Mayoral Appointments:
1. Aaron Kapellusch, 8464 S. River Terrace Dr., Ald. Dist. 4, to the Economic

Development Commission for a 2 year unexpired term expiring 06/30/23.
2. Diane Donohoo, 8836 W. Whispering Oaks Court, Ald. Dist. 2, to the Fire and Police

Commission on 05/01/22 for a 5 year term expiring 04/30/27.

F. Letters and Petitions.

G. Reports and Recommendations:
1. A Resolution Imposing Conditions and Restrictions for the Approval of a Special

Use for the Development of an Approximately 271,753 Square Foot Speculative
Industrial Building and for the Approval of a Special Use for Overnight Parking for
Vehicles Exceeding 8,000 Pounds Manufactured Gross Vehicle Weight upon
Property Generally Located at West Oakwood Road, the Northwest Quarter of the
Parcel Adjacent to the Future Hickory Street (Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map No.
9362) (by HSA Commercial, Inc. d/b/a HSA Commercial Real Estate, Applicant,
SFT Franklin Oakwood, LLC, Property Owner).

2. Amendment to the Intergovernmental Agreement between Milwaukee County and
the City of Franklin (Fire Department) for Emergency Medical Services (EMS).

3. Approval of an Agreement with QRS Group for the Construction Buildout of
Additional Inspection Department Workspace in an amount up to $20,000.



Common Council Meeting Agenda
April 4, 2022
Page 2

4. Municipal Judge Recommendations to Renew Approval of the 2013 Municipal Court
Bail Bond Schedule and Approve $1,321.00 "Enhanced" Bond Amount on all
Milwaukee County District Attorney's Office Referrals Made to the City.

5. Approve a One-Year WENS Service Agreement Extension with Inspiron Logistics
LLC for the City of Franklin Emergency Notification System for the Period
4/22/2022-4/21/23 in the Amount of $10,650.

6. A Resolution to Accept Public Recreational Trail Easements in the Ryan Meadows
Subdivision for the Completion of the Ryan Meadows Trail (TKN 938-9994-004).

7. An Ordinance to Amend §92-1 of the Franklin Municipal Code to Add Landscaping
and Final Grade Certification as a Condition at Time of Issuance of Any Final
Occupancy Permit and Delete §92-4.

8. A Resolution to Award the 2022 Local Street Improvement Program Resurfacing and
Contract to Stark Pavement Corp., in the Amount of $891,491.05.

9. A Resolution to Award the 2022 Local Street Preventative Maintenance Program and
Contract to Scott Construction, Inc., in the Amount of $89,389.35.

10. Annual Renewal ofBitdefender GravityZone Ultra as the Standarized Advanced
Threat Management (ATM) Client for Desktop, Laptop and Server Computing
Environments in the Amount of $11,301.

11. Authorize Relocation of Light Pole to Accommodate Milwaukee County Bridge
Project on • 76th Street Crossing W. Loomis Road.

12. A Resolution Terminating Tax Incremental Finance District #3 (Northwestern
Mutual).

13. Confirmation of the Appointment of John Regetz as Economic Development Director.
14. Approval of Professional Services for Recruitment of a Director of

Finance/Treasurer.
15. Request to Authorize Carry Forward of Unused 2021 Appropriations, for Use in

2022, in the Amount of $4,473,070.
16. An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 2021-2486, An Ordinance Adopting the 2022

Annual Budgets for the General Fund, Capital Outlay Fund, Capital Improvement
Fund, Development Fund, Water Utility Fund, and Utility Development Fund to
Provide Carryforward Appropriations From 2021 to 2022 for Specifically Identified
Projects in the Amount of $5,948,485.

17. An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 2021-2486, An Ordinance Adopting the 2022
Annual Budgets for the General Fund, Development Fund, TID 8 Fund, Capital
Outlay Fund, Equipment Replacement Fund, Capital Improvement Fund, TID 4
Fund, Sanitary Sewer Fund, and Water Fund for the City of Franklin for Fiscal Year
2022 to Approve Budget Encumbrances From the 2021 Budget as Amendments to
the 2022 Budget.

18. Potential Acquisition of Property for Public Park Recommendations Purposes in the
General Southwest Area of the City of Franklin. the Common Council May Enter
Closed Session Pursuant to Wis. Stat.§ 19.85(1)(e), to Consider the Potential



Common Council Meeting Agenda
April 4, 2022
Page 3

Acquisition of Properties Intended to be Used for Public Park Purposes in the
General Southwest Area of the City and to Reenter Open Session at the Same Place
Thereafter to Act on Such Matters Discussed Therein as it Deems Appropriate.

H. Licenses and Permits.
Miscellaneous Licenses from License Committee Meeting of April 4, 2022.

I. Bills.
Request for Approval of Vouchers and Payroll.

J. Adjournment.

Supportmng documentation and details of these agenda 1tems are available at City Hall during normal business hours

[Note Upon reasonable notice, efforts wll be made to accommodate the needs of disabled mdrvduals through appropriate aids and
services For additional information, contact the City Clerk's office at (414) 425-7500]

REMINDERS:

April 5
April 7
April 19
April 21

Spring Election
Plan Commission Meeting
Common Council Meeting
Plan Commission Meeting

7:00 a.m.-8:00 p.m.
7:00 p.m.
6:30 p.m.
7:00 p.m.



Blank Page



@itp of 1franklin
roclamation

E__
A PROCLAMATION IN RECOGNITION OF AND IN GRATITUDE FORTHE SERVICES

PROVIDED FORAND TO THE PEOPLE BYDANIEL M. MAYER

WHEREAS, Darnel M Mayer is a descendant of and member of one of the foundmg families of
Franklm, Wisconsin, and

WHEREAS, Daniel M Mayer was hired by the City ofFrankhn as a Paid-on-Call Firefighter on June 5,
1986, h1red as one of the ongmal twelve Firefighter/Paramedics for the Fire Department on August 1, 1989,
promoted to the position of F1re Lieutenant on February 20, 1995, promoted to the position of Captam on
January 5, 1999, promoted to the position of Battalion Chief on January 1, 2002, served as Intenm F1re Chief
from March 29, 2002 to December 1, 2002, and thereafter served as a Battalion Chief until his resignat10n on
Apnl 6, 2009, receivmg five commendat10ns dunng his tenure mcludmg two for hfe savmg valor, and

WHEREAS, Darnel M Mayer, a graduate of Franklin High School, was elected to the Board of
Educat10n for the Franklm Pubhc School Distnct on Apnl 7, 1998, re-elected on Aprl 3, 2001, and resigned on
March 27, 2002, to serve as Intenm Fire Chief for the City of Franklm, and

WI-IBREAS, Darnel M Mayer was h1red by the City of Cudahy and served as the fifteenth F1re Chief
for the City of Cudahy from Apnl 7, 2009, until his retirement on February 15, 2021, and

WHEREAS, Dan was elected to the City ofFranklm Office of Alderman for District 2 on Apnl 2, 2013,
and has contmued to serve and be re-elected to the position and his service contmues through this date and trme,
and

WHEREAS, Dan has been appomted to and confirmed and served as a member of the Environmental
Commuss1on, the Personnel Committee, the Technology Comm1ss1on and the Farr Comm1ss1on, and

WHEREAS, Dan's term of office as Alderman will expire at midrnght on the mornmg of the third
Tuesday of Apnl, 2022, and

WHEREAS, Dan1el M Mayer has dedicated hrs hfe to the service of others

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED, that I, Stephen R. OIson, Mayor of the City of Franklin,
Wisconsmn, on behalf of all of the Citizens of Franklm, the staff of City government, and all of those pubhe
officials and staff who know you and worked with you, and all of the People that you have served, Good Luck
and Godspeed, Dan

sented to the City ofFr31'lin Common Council this 4th Day of Apnl, 2022

#



Blank Page



CITY OF FRANKLIN
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING

MARCH 15, 2022
MINUTES

C.

ROLL CALL

CITIZEN COMMENT

MAYORAL
ANNOUNCEMENTS

MINUTES
MARCH 1, 2022

HEARING: AMEND
2025 FUTURE LAND
USE MAP, SERVI
INVESTMENTS, LLC,
APPLICANT

ORD. 2022-2503
AMEND 2025 FUTURE
LAND USE MAP FOR
11595 W. FOREST
HOME AVE., SERVI
INVESTMENTS, LLC,
APPLICANT

A.

B.l.

B.2.

C.

D.

G.l.

The regular meeting of the Common Council was held on March 15,
2022 and called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Mayor Steve Olson in the
Franklin City Hall Council Chambers, 9229 W. Loomis Road,
Franklin, Wisconsin. On roll call, the following were present:
Alderman Ed Holpfer, Alderman Dan Mayer, Alderwoman Kristen
Wilhelm, Alderwoman Shari Hanneman, Alderman Mike Barber and
Alderman John R. Nelson. Also in attendance were Dir. of
Administration Peggy Steeno, City Engineer Glen Morrow, City
Attorney Jesse A. Wesolowski and City Clerk Sandra Wesolowski.

Citizen comment period was opened at 6:31 p.m. and closed at
6:35 p.m.

(a) Alderman Barber presented a Mayoral Proclamation declaring
the week of March 2-April 1, 2022 to be Light & Unite Red
Week spotlighting the dangers of substance misuse and the
importance of mental health.

(b) Alderwoman Wilhelm noted a Proclamation that was
presented to Eagle Scout Ryan Ratkowski.

Alderman Nelson moved to approve the minutes of the regular
Common Council Meeting of March 1, 2022, with amendments to
G.l., G.3., and G.17. Seconded by Alderwoman Wilhelm. All voted
Aye; motion carried.

A public hearing was called to order at 6:50 p.m. on a proposed
Ordinance to Amend the City of Franklin 2025 Comprehensive
Master Plan to Change the City of Franklin 2025 Future Land Use
Map for a Portion of the Property Located at 11595 West Forest
Home Avenue from Residential Use to Residential - Multi-Family
Use (Approximately 3.151 Acres) (P. Kenneth Servi, Servi
Investments, LLC, Applicant). The public hearing was closed at
6:52pm.

Alderman Mayer moved to adopt Ordinance 2022-2503, AN
ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CITY OF FRANKLIN 2025
COMPREHENSIVE MASTER PLAN TO CHANGE THE CITY OF
FRANKLIN 2025 FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR A PORTION
OF THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 11595 WEST FOREST
HOME AVENUE FROM RESIDENTIAL USE TO RESIDENTIAL
- MULTI-FAMILY USE (APPROXIMATELY 3.151 ACRES) (P.
KENNETH SERVI, SERVI INVESTMENTS, LLC, APPLICANT).
Seconded by Alderman Nelson. All voted Aye; motion carried.



Common Council Meeting
March 15, 2022
Page 2

ORD. 2022-2504 G.2.
AMEND UDO ZONING
MAP TO REZONE 11595
W. FOREST HOME AVE.
TO RESIDENTIAL
MULTI-FAMILY USE,
SERVI INVESTMENTS,
LLC, APPLICANT

RES. 2022-7837 G.3.
SPECIAL USE FOR
11595 & 11600 w.
FOREST HOME AVE.,
SERVI INVESTMENTS,
LLC, APPLICANT

RES. 2022-7838 G.4.
PRELIM. PLAT FOR
TESS CREEK ESTATES
SUBDIV. AT 11595 &
11600 W. FOREST
HOME AVE., SERVI
INV., LLC, APPLICANT

TID 7 DEV. G.5.
AGREEMENT WITH
VELO VILLAGE
APARTMENTS LLC

RES. 2022-7839 G.6.
PRELIM. PLAT FOR
CAPE CROSSING SUBD.
12200 W. RYAN RD.
NEUMANN DEV., INC.,
APPLICANT

Alderman Mayer moved to approve Ordinance 2022-2504, AN
ORDINANCE AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT
ORDINANCE (ZONING MAP) TO REZONE A CERTAIN
PARCEL OF LAND FROM R-3 SUBURBAN/ESTATE SINGLE
FAMILY RESIDENCE DISTRICT TO R-8 MULTIPLE-FAMILY
RESIDENCE DISTRICT (A PORTION OF THE PROPERTY
LOCATED AT 11595 WEST FOREST HOME AVENUE)
(APPROXIMATELY 3.15 ACRES) (P. KENNETH SERVI, SERVI
INVESTMENTS, LLC, APPLICANT). Seconded by Alderwoman
Wilhelm. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Mayer moved to adopt Resolution 2022-783 7, A
RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS
FOR THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE TO ALLOW FOR A
SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT USE IN AN
R-8 MULTIPLE-FAMILY RESIDENCE DISTRICT UPON
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 11595 AND 11600 WEST FOREST
HOME AVENUE (P. KENNETH SERVI, SERVI INVESTMENTS,
LLC, APPLICANT). Seconded by Alderman Holpfer. All voted Aye;
motion carried.

Alderman Mayer moved to adopt Resolution 2022-7838, A
RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A
PRELIMINARY PLAT FOR TESS CREEK ESTATES
SUBDIVISION (AT 11595 AND 11600 WEST FOREST HOME
AVENUE) (P. KENNETH SERVI, SERVI INVESTMENTS, LLC,
APPLICANT). Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye;
motion carried.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to approve the attached First
Amendment to Tax Incremental District No. 7 Development
Agreement Between the City of Franklin and Velo Village
Apartments LLC (Developer), Velo Village, Franklin, Wisconsin
(Project). Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion
carried.

Alderman Nelson moved to adopt Resolution 2022-7839, A
RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A
PRELIMINARY PLAT FOR CAPE CROSSING SUBDIVISION
(AT 12200 WEST RYAN ROAD) (NEUMANN DEVELOPMENTS,
INC., APPLICANT), as amended. Seconded by Alderman Barber.
All voted Aye; motion carried.



Common Council Meeting
March 15, 2022
Page 3

RES. 2022-7840 G.7.
1 LOT CSM, W. LAKE
POINTE DR., BLAKE &
MUTTER, APPLICANTS

RES. 2022-7841 G.8.
SPECIAL USE FOR
MULTI-FAMILY RES.
APARTMENT AT 9801 S.
27TH ST. & 9605 S. 29TH
ST., FIDUCIARY REAL
ESTATE
DEVELOPMENT, INC.,
APPLICANT

ORD. 2022-2505 G.9.
AMEND CODE STOPS
ON W. MARQUETTE
AVE. AT S. 49TH ST.

Alderman Holpfer moved to adopt Resolution 2022-7840, A
RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A 1 LOT
CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP, BEING OUTLOT 1 OF CERTIFIED
SURVEY MAP NO. 6416, BEING A PART OF THE SOUTHWEST
1/4 OF SECTION 16, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, IN
THE CITY OF FRANKLIN, MILWAUKEE COUNTY,
WISCONSIN (KARLEY J. BLAKE AND JACOB W. MUTTER,
APPLICANTS) (GENERALLY THE WEST END OF WEST LAKE
POINTE DRIVE), as amended. Seconded by Alderman Mayer. All
vote Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to adopt Resolution 2022-7841, A
RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS
FOR THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE FOR A MULTI
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL APARTMENT COMPLEX
DEVELOPMENT USE UPON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 9801
SOUTH 27TH STREET AND 9605 SOUTH 29TH STREET
(FIDUCIARY REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT, INC.,
APPLICANT). Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye;
motion carried.

Alderwoman Wilhelm moved to authorize Ordinance 2022-2505, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION
245-3 B STOPS REQUIRED TO ADD 2 STOP SIGNS ON
EASTBOUND AND WESTBOUND LEGS OF W. MARQUETTE
AVENUE AT THE INTERSECTION OF S. 49TH STREET.
Seconded by Alderman Nelson. All voted Aye; motion carried.

RES. 2022-7842
WATERSHED
RESTORATION PLAN

RES. 2022-7843
ROOT RIVER
WATERSHED
RESTORATION PLAN

RES. 2022
MODIFY MASTER
PLAN FOR
SOUTHWEST
SANITARY SEWER

G.10. Alderman Mayer moved to adopt Resolution 2022-7842, A
RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE OAK CREEK WATERSHED
RESTORATION PLAN. Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted
Aye; motion carried.

G.ll. Alderwoman Wilhelm moved to adopt Resolution 2022-7843, A
RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE ROOT RIVER WATERSHED
RESTORATION PLAN. Seconded by Alderman Mayer. All voted
Aye; motion carried.

G.12. Alderwoman Wilhelm moved to table to the May 2, 2022 Committee
of the Whole meeting, A Resolution to Modify the Masterplan for the
Southwest Sanitary Sewer District in the Vicinity of W. Ryan Road
Between S. 76th Street and S. 92nd Street. Seconded by Alderman
Nelson. All voted Aye; motion carried.



Common Council Meeting
March 15, 2022
Page 4

PORTABLE ICE RINK

S. HICKORY ST. PIPE
BID

FIBER INTERNET
CONSTRUCTION
PROJECT

LICENSES AND
PERMITS

VOUCHERS AND
PAYROLL

G.13.

G.14.

G.16.

H.

I.

Alderman Barber moved to direct staff to purchase a portable ice rink
from EZ Ice Rinks for $5,380.50. Seconded by Alderwoman
Hanneman. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to direct staff to bid pipe and related
appurtenances in advance of the construction contract for S. Hickory
Street. Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion
carried.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to direct staff to bid pipe and related
appurtenances in advance of the West Ryan Road watermain
construction contract. Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted
Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Holpfer moved to approve the Fiber Internet Construction
Project for the City of Franklin Municipal Business Operations in an
amount not to exceed $1,239,455 for capital construction, including
partnerships with other public entities; and, authorize the Director of
Administration to work with potential public entity partners to
establish draft Memorandums of Understanding to share the cost
burden while maintaining a secure private network. Seconded by
Alderman Mayer. All voted Aye; motion carried. Vote recorded as
unanimous.

Alderman Nelson moved to approve the following:

Hold the 2021-2022 Operator License of: Mariah Lang, for
appearance;

Grant 2021-2022 Operator License to: Kimberly Henzig, Joseph
Caruso, Krystal Short, Quinn Thompson; and

Grant Extraordinary Entertainment & Special Event License to: Best
Buddies in Wisconsin-Walk/Community Gathering Fundraiser at the
Rock Snow Park, Caroline Tyson, 7011 S Ballpark Dr, May 21, 2022.

Seconded by Alderwoman Hanneman. All voted Aye; motion
carried.

Alderman Barber moved to approve City vouchers with an ending
date of March 10, 2022, in the amount of $1,570,970.35; payroll
dated March 11, 2022, in the amount of $457,856.20 and payments of
the various payroll deductions in the amount of $259,325.94, plus
City matching payments; estimated payroll dated March 25, 2022, in
the amount of $434,000 and payments in the various payroll

W. RYAN RD. PIPE BID G.15.



Common Council Meeting
March 15, 2022
Page 5

ADJOURNMENT J.

deductions in the amount of $465,000, plus City matching payments;
property tax disbursements with an ending date of March 10, 2022, in
the amount of $313,226.62. Seconded by Alderman Holpfer. On roll
call, all voted Aye. Motion carried.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to adopt Resolution No. 2022
7844, A RESOLUTION TO ENTER INTO A TRANSMISSION
FACILITY RELOCATION AGREEMENT WITH AMERICAN
TRANSMISSION COMPANY, LLC FOR WORK ACROSS 3617 W
OAKWOOD ROAD (TKN 950-9997-002) FOR $1,660,000.
Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye. Motion carried.

Alderman Holpfer moved to enter closed session at 7:42 p.m.
pursuant to Wis. Stats. §19.85(1)(c) and (f), to consider employment,
promotion, compensation, or performance evaluation data of a public
employee over which the Common Council has jurisdiction or
exercises responsibility and to consider financial, social or personal
histories of specific persons which, if discussed in public, would be
likely to have a substantial adverse effect upon the reputation of any
person referred to in such histories and may re-enter open session at
the same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it
deems appropriate. Seconded by Alderman Mayer. On roll call, all
voted Aye. Motion carried.

The Common Council reentered open session at 9:12 p.m.

Alderman Barber moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:12 p.m.
Seconded by Alderman Holpfer. All voted Aye; motion carried.

CLOSED SESSION G.17.
ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT
DIRECTOR CANDIDATE

RES. 2022-7844 G.18.
TRANSMISSION
FACILITY
RELOCATION
AGREEMENT



Blank Page



CITY OF FRANKLIN
OFFICIAL NOTICE

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON SPECIAL ASSESSMENT FOR
INSTALLATION OF WATER MAIN ON

W. MINNESOTA AVENUE BOUNDED BY S. 5IT STREET TO THE WEST AND
S. 49TH STREET TO THE EAST THENCE NORTHWARD ON S. 49TH STREET

APPROXIMATELY 50 FEET

D.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Common Council of the City of Franklin has declared its
intention to exercise its police powers under Section 66.0701, Wisconsin Statutes, and Section 207-
15, Franklin Municipal Code, to levy special assessments for water main installation improvements,
in the following locations:

"W. Minnesota Avenue bounded by S. 51st Street to the west and S. 49th Street to the east thence
northward on S. 49th Street approximately 50 feet."

A report showing proposed plans and proposed assessments and other data is on file in the Clerk's
Office at Franklin City Hall, 9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, Wisconsin, 53132.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that such report is open for review and inspection from Monday
through Friday, between the hours of9:00 a.m. and 12 noon and 1:00 p.m. and 4:30 p.m. and will be
so continued for the period often (10) days after the date of publication of this notice.

NOTICE IS ALSO HEREBY FURTHER GIVEN that on MONDAY, APRIL 4, 2022 at 6:30
p.m. the Common Council will be in session in their chambers at Franklin City Hall, 9229 W.
Loomis Rd., Franklin, WI, 53132 to hear all persons interested, their agents or attorneys,
concerning the matter contained in the preliminary resolution and report, including proposed
assessments.

If you have any questions contact City Engineer Glen Morrow at 425-7510.

By order of the Common Council of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, the 4th day of February,
2014.

Sandra L. Wesolowski
City Clerk



City of Franklin
Engineering Department

Date: March 4, 2022

To: Dennis P & Christine H Wimmer, 7244 S. 49th Street
Joseph F & Rita Petrie, 7267 S. 49th Street
Brian & Renee Bangart, 4909 W. Minnesota Ave.
Sunset Bank & Savings, 4913 W. Minnesota Ave.
Robert L & Deborah A Turner, 4932 W. Minnesota Ave.
John T & Noreen M Petrie, 4939 W. Minnesota Ave.
Daniel F Distefano, 4951 W. Minnesota Ave.
David & Barbara Gudgeon, 5000 W. Minnesota Ave.
Daniel J Kennedy, 5003 W. Minnesota Ave.

Re: Engineer's Report concerning Special Assessments for Watermain Extension on
W. Minnesota Avenue from S. 51st Street to S. 49th Street

Dear Property Owner,

Enclosed is a report prepared for the referenced project. I encourage you to fully read and review
the report and you are welcome to schedule a time to meet with me to discuss any questions you
may have. I will caution you on misunderstandings that may arise from receiving your information
from other sources.

This item will appear as a special hearing on the April 4, 2022 Common Council agenda. You are
welcome to attend or watch from home on the City's YouTube channel.

You are also encouraged to provide any corrections PRIOR to adoption at the meeting on April 4.

Please call our office ifyou have any questions.

Sincerely,

Ghil..•
Glen E. Morrow, PE (WI, IL, IN & MO)
City Engineer/ Director ofPublic Works/ Utility Manager

Copy: Alderwoman Kristen Wilhelm
Mayor Steve Olson
Ms. Sandi Wesolowski, City Clerk

Celebrating Quality of Life 9229 West Loomis Road Franklin, WI 53132 P(414)425-7510 F(414)425-3106 franklinwi.gov



Engineer's Report for:

Watermain Extension on

W. Minnesota Avenue from S. 51" Street to S, 49" Street
March 4, 2022

Prepared Pursuant to Franklin Municipal Code Sections §207-15 and §207-20

Glen E. Morrow, PE
City Engineer,

Director of Public Works,
and Utility Manager



Engineer's Report Watermain Extension on
W Minnesota Avenue from S. 51 st Street to S. 49th Street
March 4, 2022 Page 2 of 7

Description of Area:
The general area of the project is a single-family residential neighborhood in Franklin south of W.
Rawson Avenue and east of S. 51 Street. Specifically, the area is along W. Minnesota Avenue
bounded by S. 51" Street to the west and S. 49" Street to the east. Exhibit A shows the area and
schematic of the proposed area.

The watermain extension project will connect to an existing watermain located on the east side of
S. 51 st Street; proceed east to the northeast corner of S. 49 Street and then extended north
approximately 50 feet. From the intersection of W. Minnesota Avenue and S. 50111 Street, a
watermain will extend approximately 250 feet south to a point of connection with a watermain
recently installed as part of the Pleasant View Reserve subdivision. The watermain section along
S. 50 Street is not part of this assessment.

Preliminary Plans
Preliminary Plans for a project along W. Minnesota Avenue between S. 51 st Street and 200 feet
east of S. 50 street have been prepared by Excel Engineering (Exhibit B). The plans included in
Exhibit B were prepared in conjunction with the design for Pleasant View Reserve, a new
subdivision under development on the south end of S. 50111 Street. Plans for the entirety of this
project have not been finalized nor include the waterrnain addition to S. 49111 Street. A professional
services agreement with an engineer has been authorized to complete the watermain design east to
S. 49" Street. None of the plans have obtained applicable permits.

It is anticipated that S. 50 Street will also be widened and improved at the time of this project,
although no special assessments are scheduled for that work.



Engineer's Report Watermain Extension on
W. Minnesota Avenue from S. 51st Street to S. 49th Street
March 4, 2022 Page 3 of 7

Estimate of Project Costs
A preliminary opinion of probable costs and related project costs for the assessable portion of the
project are shown in Table 1. Exact costs will be known after the project has been fully designed
and a contractor has been selected through a public bidding process in compliance with State
Statutes.

Item Item Description Quantity Units Unit Price Total
Water Distribution

I 8" Water Main 830 LF $79.00 $65,570.00
2 8" Valve 5 EA $ 1,900.00 $9,500.00
3 8" x 6" Anchor Tee 3 EA $400.00 $1,200.00
4 8" Tee I EA $700.00 $700.00
5 8" Plug 4 EA $200.00 $800.00
6 8" x 8" Cross I EA $ 1,200.00 $1,200.00
7 6" Hydrant Lead 25 LF $125.00 $3,125.00
8 Hydrant & Valve assembly 3 EA $4,000.00 $12,000.00

Section Subtotal $94,095.00
Street Construction

9 Replace Street/Driveway 200 SY $50.00 $10,000.00
10 Mailbox Removal/Replacement 7 EA $250.00 $1,750.00

Section Subtotal $11,750.00
Erosion Control / Site Stabilization

11 Seed/ Fertilize/ Mulch (including 1200 SY $1.00 $1,200.00
stockpiles)

12 Silt Fence 250 LF $1.50 $375.00
13 Erosion Matting 400 SY $1.56 $624.00
14 Ditch Check IO EA $135.00 $1,350.00

Section Subtotal $3,549.00
Mass Earthwork

15 Topsoil Stripping 900 SY $1.50 $1,350.00
I6 Common Excavation -Removal 200 CY $31.95 $6,390.00

Replacement-Compaction
17 Topsoil Placement 900 SY $1.00 $900.00
18 Mobilization I EA $7,500.00 $7,500.00
19 Remove & Replace existing culverts 4 LS $12,000.00 $12,000.00

20 Clear & Grub/Demolition I LS $2,500.00 $2,500.00
Section Subtotal $30,640.00

Other Costs
Construction Estimate Subtotal $140,034.00

21 I 0% Contingency $14,003.40
22 Engineering Fees $52,500.00

Project Subtotal $206,537.40

23 I% Service Fee [Municipal Code §207 .15 0( l )l $2,065.37
24 1% Service Fee for Borrowing [Municipal Code $207 15 Q(2)] $-

Project Total for Assessment Calculations I $208,602.77
Table I. Preliminary Opinion ofProbable Costs



Engineer's Report Watermain Extension on
W. Minnesota Avenue from S. 51 st Street to S. 49th Street
March 4, 2022 Page 4 of 7

Benefited Properties
Properties that benefit from the project are assessed. For this project, there are nine non-divisible
single-family properties shown on Exhibit A and in Table 2.

Owner Address Tax Key No. Assessment
Footage

Dennis P & Christine H Wimmer 7244 S. 49 Street 759 0032 000 215.07
Joseph F & Rita Petrie 7267 S. 49" Street 759 0022 001 1 00.00
Brian & Renee Bangart 4909 W. Minnesota Ave. 759 0035 000 105.86
Sunset Bank & Savings 4913 W. Minnesota Ave. 759 0037 000 100.00
Robert L & Deborah A Turner 4932 W. Minnesota Ave. 759 0023 000 150.00
John T & Noreen M Petrie 4939 W. Minnesota Ave. 759 0038 000 100.00
Daniel F Distefano 4951 W. Minnesota Ave. 759 0039 000 100.00
David & Barbara Gudgeon 5000 W. Minnesota Ave. 759 0024 003 101.00
Daniel J Kennedy 5003 W. Minnesota Ave. 759 0034 000 113 .00
Project Total for Assessment Calculations 1,084.93

Table 2. Benefited Properties and Assessable Footage

There are instructions in Section 207-20 on how to assign assessment footage for each parcel.
Most notably, no assessment shall be less than 100 feet. There are also instructions on how to
assess for corner lots. The assessible frontage for each benefited property is shown above and in
total, there is 1,084.93 linear feet of assessible footage for the project.

Assuming the preliminary costs shown in Table 1 are the final costs, an estimate of the costs for
each parcel are $208,602.77 / 1,084.93 feet= $192.27 / linear feet. This exceeds the 2022
allowable assessment rates $133.82, based on Engineering News-Record (ENR) Construction
Cost Index (CCI) 20-City National Average. Therefore, the $133.82 / linear feet for the
construction of the watermain will prevail.

As discussed in the Deferment Section, connection to a watermain is voluntary. If a property were
to also include a service connection to the watermain, the assessment would be actual cost, plus
16% pursuant to Section 207-21. For the purposes of this report, it is assumed that a short-side
service connection (service to a watermain on same side of the street) is $700 + 16% = $812 and
it is assumed that a long-side service connection (service to a watermain on the opposite side of
the street) is $3,700 + 16% = $4,292. These estimates are not subject to the maximum allowable
assessment rates and will be the actual cost charged by the contractor.



Engineer's Report Watermain Extension on
W Minnesota Avenue from S. 51 st Street to S. 49th Street
March 4, 2022 Page 5 of 7

Based on the above assumptions, a summary of the estimates of assessments for each property is
shown in Table 3.

Assessment for Assessment for
Assessment the Watermain the Water Service

Address Footage (Mandatory) (Optional) Total Assessment
7244 S. 49th Street 215.07 $ 28,780.67 $812.00 $29,592.67
7267 S. 49th Street 100.00 $ 13,382.00 $812.00 $14,194.00
4909 W. Minnesota Ave. 105.86 $14,166.19 $ 4,292.00 $18,458.19
4913 W. Minnesota Ave. 100.00 $13,382.00 $ 4,292.00 $17,674.00
4932 W. Minnesota Ave. 150.00 $ 20,073.00 $812.00 $ 20,885.00
4939 W. Minnesota Ave. 100.00 $13,382.00 $ 4,292.00 $17,674.00
4951 W. Minnesota Ave. 100.00 $13,382.00 $812.00 $14,194.00
5000 W. Minnesota Ave. 101.00 $ 13,515.82 $812.00 $14,327.82
5003 W. Minnesota Ave. 113.00 $15,121.66 $4,292.00 $19,413.66
Totals: 1,084.93 145,185.33 $21,228.00 $166,413.33

Table 3. Schedule ofthe Proposed Assessments

Note that these estimates do not include a private plumber/contractor to abandon a well,
reconfigure well and home plumbing, make connection to the water service shut-off at the property
line installed by the City's contractor, and all associated permits calculated by the Inspection
Services Department. These permit/connection fees include, but are not limited to, well
abandonment/operating permits, plumbing inspection fees (based on footage), new connection fee
($85), and water system impact fees ($2,822). These other fees are not eligible for assessment,
deferments, or installments.

Deferments
Generally, connection to the Public Water Supply for existing homes already and currently served
by an existing adequate water supply is optional. An existing home may continue use of a
functioning well. 1 The property will still be required to pay for an assessment for the public
watermain system as the availability of the utility affects the value of the property and benefits the
property. As such, $207-15 K.(2)c) of the code allows for the deferment ofan assessment for
these properties up to 10-years without accrual of interest for up to 300 feet of the assessable
frontage of the subject property."

Property owners must make application to the City Clerk within 30-days of the elate of the special
assessment notice if they wish to defer the assessment.

1 There are many shared wells in Franklin. For shared wells, the City has no obligation nor authority over these
private agreements so a public watermain supply project may have other implications for continued use of a private
well.



Engineer's Report Watermain Extension on
W Minnesota Avenue from S. 51st Street to S. 49th Street
March 4, 2022 Page 6 of 7

Assessments may be deferred for water mains until a property is sold, connection is made, or 10-
years, whichever occurs first.

This project does include one exception as described below.

Defennent Exception
Under resolution 2017-7818, 5000 W. Minnesota Ave (TKN 759 0024 003) is required to connect
within 10-years of the construction. The resolution is included as Exhibit C.

Annual Installments
Staff recommends that Common Council follow past practice to provide a payment plan to
property owners for 12 years at 6% APR interest. The minimum mandatory assessment listed in
Table 3 is $13,382 and the maximum mandatory+ optional assessment is $29,592.67. If one were
to use the City to finance the assessment as past practice, then the annual payment would range
from $1,596.17 to $3,529.73. A table illustrating the annual installment payments for different
levels of assessment are shown in Table 4.

Assessment Annual Assessment Annual
to Finance Payment to Finance Payment
$13,382.00 $1,596.17 $22,000.00 $2,624.09
$14,000.00 $1,669.88 $23,000.00 $2,743.37
$15,000.00 $1,789.16 $24,000.00 $2,862.65
$16,000.00 $1,908.43 $25,000.00 $2,981.93
$17,000.00 $2,027.71 $26,000.00 $3,101.20
$18,000.00 $2,146.99 $27,000.00 $3,220.48
$19,000.00 $2,266.26 $28,000.00 $3,339.76
$20,000.00 $2,385.54 $29,000.00 $3,459.03
$21,000.00 $2,504.82 $29,592.67 $3,529.73

Table 4. Annual Assessment Payments Financed 12-years @6% APR

Property Taken or Damaged
It is not anticipated that this project will need additional property or damage property outside of
the public right-of-way.



Engineer's Report Watermain Extension on
W. Minnesota Avenue from S. 51 st Street to S. 49th Street
March 4, 2022 Page 7 of 7

Final Statement
As the City Engineer, Director of Public Works, and Utility Manager, l state that the properties
discussed herein against which the assessments are proposed are benefited in the following seven
ways:

1. Increased fire protection.
2. Reliability ofwater supply.
3. Assurance of a water supply which has been routinely tested for potability (lack of

contamination).
4. Elimination ofthe reliance on maintenance and repair of individual wells.
5. The developability ofvacant, under-developed or partially-developed properties which are

deferred from development by the lack of municipal water supply causing a negative
impact on the fair market value.

6. The elimination of the potential for cross-contamination between individual limestone
wells.

7. The elimination ofthe use ofthe limestone aquifer in the vicinity ofoutcropping which are
more susceptible to contamination by pollution from surface contaminants including
fertilizers, pesticides and spills.

End ofEngineer's Report for watermain extension on W. Minnesota Avenue and S. 50th Street.



ti

1u
Q.).. ,._

<( +-'
+-' (./')
·- .c..0 ....
·- 0..c L.()
X •

LU V)



l.tt,

~-I -:ml--

.- ,- --- 1!_ - -,-- - - -- -
~ ~

'.'.I
0:
0a:
Q.

az
<(
z
:5~ ~ Q.

ffi

kl# t-

1
I

--_J

halo}
~ L ~NOl.1Jnu1s~o. JUOHO~. ~ ~ Nuu IM 'Nll~NVMJ • 3AV l113n0MVW 'M 'll UlMlS lSIS S

11 : I . I ' " ■-..~u 5#!i « a, 3AH3S3H M31A 1N'1Sv'3ld i :-! : '. I! l 1: . C)
♦>< ##ft '? II ?, , I I I • i , • 0 > """

NOISIAIOS8nS 1Vl1N30 1S3M 03S0d0Md 3 ! ! ' ! : i I i II uLJ.J dif - ~ I ! I ! ! I . . g ~
f .. I L • ' ~ -==---

--------
- -- I

',
is
~-1{
,r:; !

~
NORTH

~ ·1·1•ii '. '

~ . -~

iE
0

Vl



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-7818

A RESOLUTION TO AMEND RESOLUTION NO. 2017-7318, A RESOLUTION TO WAIVE
WATER EXTENSION TO SERVE A LOT IN THE 5000 BLOCK OF W. MINNESOTA

AVENUE AT THIS TIME AND REQUIRE THE PROPERTY OWNERS OF THIS LOT TO
CONNECT TO PUBLIC WATER WITHIN ONE YEAR OF CONSTRUCTION OF A PUBLIC

WATER MAIN EXTENDED TO THE PROPERTY, TO EXTEND THE TIME OF
CONNECTION TO TEN YEARS

et .oo

WHEREAS, the Common Council adopted the above-entitled Resolution No. 2017-7318
on November 7, 2017, a copy ofwhich is annexed hereto,

WHEREAS, in 2017, a request had been made to extend public water facilities to the
subject property and the request was denied pursuant to Resolution No. 2017-7318, with a
condition that the property owners ofLot 3 be required to connect to public water within one year
of construction ofa public water main extended to the property;

WHEREAS, further water extension proposals in the area having been reviewed and
considered by the City since that time, though no further action for such pubhc water extension
project(s) having occurred up to the date of this Resolution;

WHEREAS, property owner David Gudgeon is currently constructing a home at 5000 W
Minnesota Avenue on Lot 3 and the City is currently planning a water main construction project
that is anticipated to be constructed within one year of the home obtaining an occupancy permit,
making it a hardship for the property owner to either wait on the new water main project or spend
significant funds on a private well project to be abandoned soon after installation pursuant to the
one year time limit in Resolution No. 2017-7318;

WHEREAS, the Common Council discussed the facts and circumstances pertaining to
the aforesaid property and having determined that it is reasonable to modify and extend the one
year time for connection time limit requirement to ten years, due to the very unique
circumstances applicable to the subject property; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council further determined that a financial deferment per the
Municipal Code $207-15K.(2)c) and related sections be provided to this parcel

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of the
City of Franklin, that it being in the best interests of the City for the reasons set forth in the
preamble to this Resolution, to amend and that Resolution No. 2017-7318 be and the same is
hereby amended to provide that the property owner(s), heirs, successors and assigns, of Lot 3 be
required to connect to public water within ten years of the construction of a public water main
extended to the property.



RESOLUTION NO 2022-7818
(Waive Water Extention-5000 W Minnesota)
Page 2

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a ten year financial deferment be and the same 1s
hereby provided for a public water connection to Lot 3, per the Municipal Code §207-1 SK (2)(c)
and related sections

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Councli of the City of Franklin the 1st
day of February, 2022, by Alderman Wilhelm.

PASS ED AND ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Franklm on the lst
day of February, 2022.

SadaWesolowska, City Clerk

ATTEST·

lootAha»low#
AYES 6 NOESO ABSENT0



Blank Page



APPROVAL

ORGANIZATIONAL
BUSINESS

REQUEST FOR
COMMON COUNCIL ACTION

Mayoral Commission Appointments

MEETING
DATE

04-04-22

ITEM NUMBER

E.

Mayoral appointments:

(1) Aaron Kapellusch, 8464 S. River Terrace Dr., Aid. Dist. 4, to the Economic Development
Commission for a 2 year unexpired term expiring 06/30/23.

(2) Diane Donohoo, 8836 W. Whispering Oaks Court, Ald. Dist. 2, to the Fire and Police
Commission on 05/01/22 for a 5 year term expiring 04/30/27.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to confirm the Mayoral appointments: Aaron Kapellusch, 8464 S. River Terrace Dr., Ald.
Dist. 4, to the Economic Development Commission for a 2 year unexpired term expiring 06/30/23; and
Diane Donohoo, 8836 W. Whispering Oaks Court, Aid. Dist. 2, to the Fire and Police Commission on
05/01/22 for a 5 year term expiring 04/30/27.

CITY CLERK - slw



Shirley Roberts

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

volunteerfactsheet@franklinwi.info
Monday, March 7, 2022 2:52 PM
Lisa Huening; Shurley Roberts; Sandi Wesolowski
Volunteer Fact Sheet

Name:
PhoneNumber:
EmailAddress:
YearsasResident:
Alderman:
ArchitecturalBoard: no
CivicCelebrations: no
CommunityDevelopmentAuthority: no
EconomicDevelopmentCommission: yes
EnvironmentalCommission: yes
FinanceCommittee: no
FairCommission: no
BoardofHealth: no
FirePoliceCommission: no
ParksCommission: no
LibraryBoard: no
PlanCommission: yes
PersonnelCommittee: no
BoardofReview: no
BoardofPublicWorks: no
QuarryMonitoringCommittee: no
TechnologyCommission: no
TourismCommission: no
BoardofZoning: no
WasteFacilitiesMonitoringCommittee: no

Aaron Kapellusch

aaronkbills@gmail.com
1

BoardWaterCommissioners:
CompanyNameJobl:
CompanyAddressJobl:
TelephoneJobl:
StartDateandPositionJobl:
EndDateandPositionJobl:
CompanyNameJob2:
AddressJob2:
TelephoneJob2:
StartDateandPositionJob2:

no
Northern Lake Service, Inc.
400 N. Lake Ave Crandon, WI 5
800-278-1254
6/2007 -Biz Dev Director
8/12 Biz Dev Director
Wausau Chamber of Commerce
200 Washington Street #120 Wausau, WI 53440
715-845-6231
11/2012 CEO

1



, v4

EidDateandPositionJob2:
CompanyNameJob3:
Address.Job3:
TelephoneJob3:
StartDateandPositionJob3:
EndDateandPositionJob3:
Signature:
Date:
Signature2:
Date2:
Address:
Prioritylisting:

Whylnterested:

DescriptionofDutiesJobl:

DescriptionofDutiesJob2:

DescriptionofDutiesJob3:

AdditionalExperience:

See Current Results

5/2016CEO
Sebert Landscaping
1550 W Bartlett Rd Bartlette, IL 60103
630-497-1000
2017- Acting Branch Manager WI
2019- Regional Manager WI
Aaron Kapellusch
3/7/2022
Aaron Kapellusch
Aaron Kapellusch 3/7/2022
8464 S. River Terrace Dr. Franklin, WI 53132

I am a recovering Chamber CEO and sat on about 10 different
Boards/Committees while in Wausau. A lot of it was required in my
Grew the environmental lab from being just a WI drinking waster/waterwater
compliance lab into a national provider of water testing services including
working with over 25% out of the 4200 public water systems in the USA.
Responsible for staff of 12 full-time employees. Served on 8 boards,
collaborated with many schools in the footprint of the Chamber Collaborate
with 8 local Municipalities. Served as Vice-Chair of local incubator Initiated
many partnerships
Grew two new acquisitions in SE WI. Positioned the company for success in WI
market.
I have a business degree with deep experience in running and growing
businesses. Started my own landscaping business while in college. Also served
as the Secretary of MCDEVCO in Marathon county (County Economic
Development Organization) and as the official agent for CWED (regional
planning commission). Currently working for a national disaster restoration
business.

2



r
i I

'·r

City ofFranklin
9229 West Loomis Road
Franklin; Wisconsin 53132

VOLUNTEERFACT SHEET

++,
' · •

1
• Ii

,!i !'\

? -»
:i
· a

i l'! r
 +e

Thank-you for your interest in serving on a City Board, Commission, or Committee. In order that consistent
information be provided to the Common Council, you are asked to complete the following:

m
Phone Number . . . . . .

as doo. dooofeoOaia7ae
Length of Time a Franklin Resident &7~f5 +: U
Alderman or District oms be.,Dlst. 2~~--~~~~~------------------

Name

Address

PERSONAL:

AREA OF INTEREST: Please check the line next to the Board, Commission or Committee or area of greatest
interest. If listing more than one, please prioritize your top three choices (3 being least priority).

Architectural Review Board
Community Development Authority
Environmental Commission
Fair Commission

){_ Fire and Police Commission
_ Library Board

Personnel Committee
Board of Public Works
Technology Commission
Board of Zoning and Building Appeals

Civic Celebrations Commission
Finance Committee

_ Forward Franklin Economic Development Comm.
Board of Health
Parks Commission
Plan Commission
Board of Review
Board of Water Commissioners
Waste Facility Siting Committee
Waste Facilities Monitoring Committee

Why are you interested in joining this (these) particular Board and/or Commission?



VOLUNTEER ORWORK EXPERIENCE
(Begn wthyourmost recent employment andcontinue wth allpast 10years ofemployment Please attach addtonalpaper ornclude resume, f
avalable.)

+0

Company Name: Address: Telephone:

Date started: Starting Position:

Date left: Position upon leaving:

Description ofduties:

Company Name: Address: Telephone:

Date started: Starting Position:

Date left: Position upon leaving:

Description ofduties:

Company Name: Address: Telephone:

Date started: Starting Position:

Date left: Position upon leaving:

Description ofduties:

ADDITIONAL EXPERIENCE OR QUALIFICATIONS: List any other experience, skills, or other
qualifications, including hobbies, which you believe should be considered in evaluating your qualifications for
volunteering.

Date:Signature:

I am aware that all of the information provided and this document itself is a public record which will be released
to a requestor; that I authorize such release and that I waive any right to any notice of such release and/or any
right of notice to augment the information provided upon this document upon such request or release.

\l±9a



Diane M. Donohoo, J.D.
8836 W. Whispering Oaks Court, Franklin, WI53132
414.403.3231- diane.donohoo@gmail.com

SUMMARY

Respected and accomolished trial attomev with 30 vears' experience prosecuting sensitive
crimes, complex white-collar crime, and traffic, reckless, and intentional homicide cases.

University and technical college lecturer; multi-disciplinary instructor for undergraduate and
law students, law enforcement, social services, crime lab experts, and medical personnel.

EDUCATION

Marquette University Law School, J.D., May 1992
Milwaukee County District Attorney's Office internship assignments included research and/or
courtroom assistance in State ofWisconsin v. Jeffrey Dahmer; and State v. Charles W. Barkley.
Volunteer law student peer tutor for Evidence I, Civil Procedure II

University of Wisconsin-Madison, B.A., Political Science, Madison, WI 1996- 1998
University of Wisconsin-Marathon Center, Wausau, WI 1984 - 1985

EXPERIENCE

Assistant District Attorney

Racine County District Attorney's Office, January 2019 -Present
Assigned to felony caseload prosecuting sensitive crimes, homicides, domestic abuse, child
pornography, and other cases as assigned.

Assistant District Attorney

Walworth County District Attorney's Office, June 1992 - January 2019
Developed intern program and manual. Responsible for comprehensive training and supervision
of all Marquette University and University of Wisconsin law school interns, and University of
Wisconsin-Whitewater undergraduate interns.

Lecturer

UW-Whitewater, Political Science Department, 2001 -- 2003
Board Certified Instructor

Wisconsin Law Enforcement Standards, 1994-1997
Adjunct Instructor

Gateway Technical College, Police Science Program, 1993 -- 1997
Special Prosecutor

Racine County District Attorney's Office, May-June 1992

Page 1 of 9



Intern

Milwaukee County District Attorney's Office, 1990 -- 1992
Federal Court Judicial Intern-Appellate

Honorable John Coffey, 7Circuit Court of Appeals, 1991

RELATED TEACHING EXPERIENCE

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

Walworth County District Attorney's Office Intern training and manual compilation, ongoing
from 1995 to present

State Prosecutor Education and Training Spring Conference, "An Afternoon with the Experts
(and Diane"), panel discussion presenter and facilitator with members of the State of Wisconsin
Crime Lab, Lake Geneva, Wisconsin, May 2017

6" Annual Fabulous Free February Training Event for Law Enforcement Officers, Elkhorn,
Wisconsin, February 2017

Walworth County Department of Health and Human Services, Effective Courtroom Testimony,
Elkhorn, Wisconsin, November 2016

Annual Fabulous Free February Training Event for Law Enforcement Officers, Elkhorn,
Wisconsin, February 2016

Law Enforcement Update, Lake Geneva, Wisconsin, May 2015

Wisconsin District Attorney State Prosecutor Education and Training, New Prosecutor Training,
2015, "Basic Rules ofEvidence"; "Preliminary Examinations"; "Avoiding Mistrials", Oshkosh,
Wisconsin, April 2015

4' Annual Fabulous Free February Training Event for Law Enforcement Officers, Elkhorn,
Wisconsin, February 2015

State Prosecutor Education and Training Fall Conference, "4hAmendment Violations: How to
Use Evidence Even ifa Court Has Found a 4" Amendment Violation", Madison, Wisconsin,
November 2014

National White-Collar Crime Center, Financial Records Examination and Analysis, "Prosecution
Issues and Effective Courtroom Testimony", Madison, Wisconsin, July 2014

Law Enforcement Update, Lake Geneva, Wisconsin, May 2014

3"" Annual Fabulous Free February Training Event for Law Enforcement Officers, Elkhorn,
Wisconsin, February 2014

2' Annual Fabulous Free February Training Event for Law Enforcement Officers, Elkhorn,
Wisconsin, February 2013

State Prosecutor Education and Training, "The Use ofa Defendant's Statement", Appleton,
Wisconsin, November 2012

Walworth County Law Enforcement Legal Update, "Domestic Abuse and Concealed Carry,"
Elkhorn, Wisconsin, February 2012

Wisconsin District Attorney State Prosecutor Education and Training, "But Judge, We Didn't
Need a Warrant: A Survey ofthe Law ofSearching, Seizing, Stopping, Standing and Singing",
Middleton, Wisconsin, October 2010

Wisconsin District Attorney State Prosecutor Education and Training, "[Dono] Hoo Said It: How
to Admit Defendant/Witness Statements", Elkhart, Wisconsin, November 2008

Gateway Spring Law Enforcement In-Service, Elkhorn, Wisconsin, February 2007
Page 2 of 9



•

•

Wisconsin District Attorney State Prosecutor Education and Training, "Rules ofEvidenceforNew
Prosecutors," Appleton, Wisconsin, January 2007

Effective Courtroom Testimony Training, Hales Corners, Wisconsin, Fall 2005

Gateway Spring Law Enforcement In-Service, "Asset Forfeiture Proceedings", Elkhorn, Wisconsin
February 2005

Report Writing and Courtroom Testimony for Emergency Medical Service Providers, Elkhorn,
Wisconsin, Spring 2004

Command Staff Meeting, "Escape & BailJumping Prosecutions", Walworth County Jail, Elkhorn,
Wisconsin, March 2004

Gateway Spring Law Enforcement In-Service, "Search and Seizure; Miranda", Elkhorn,
Wisconsin February 2004

Walworth County Law Enforcement In-Service, Juvenile In-Service Training, "Fifth and Sixth
Amendment Right to Counsel: A.K.A. When Can/ Interrogate MySuspect?''; "Juvenile
Interrogation Procedures"; "Taking a Juvenile into Custody"; Walworth, Wisconsin, November
2002

Walworth County Law Enforcement In-Service, "Automobile Searches and Closed Containers",
"Fifth and Sixth Amendment Right to Counsel", Elkhorn, Wisconsin,
Spring 2001

State Prosecutor Education and Training, "Criminalistics: Practical Considerations in Court",
Appleton Wisconsin, January 2001

Walworth County Law Enforcement Training, "Computer Related CrimesAgainst Children",
Elkhorn, Wisconsin, November 2000

Midwest Gang Investigators 11" Annual Gang Crimes Conference, "Investigating Gang Crimes:
John Doe Investigations", Milwaukee, Wisconsin, May 1998

Law Enforcement In-Service, "Juvenile Custody Procedures", Elkhorn, Wisconsin,
April 1998

PUBLICATIONS AND PAPERS

Wisconsin District Attorney's Association {WDAA), Wisconsin Prosecutor's Domestic Abuse
Reference Book (2012), Section Author & Editor

STOP Grant Sub-Committee Member, Domestic Abuse Benchbook cards for all Wisconsin Circuit
Court Judges and Court Commissioners

STOP Grant Sub-Committee Member, Sexual Assault/Sex Trafficking Bench book cards for all
Wisconsin Circuit Court Judge and Court Commissioners

• Wisconsin Trooper Magazine, Winter 1996, Vol. 11, No. 4, "Wisconsin's New Juvenile Justice
Code"

• Marquette Law Review, Member, 1991-92, Associate Member, 1990-91. "High Comedy But
InferiorJustice: The Aftermath ofGrady v. Corbin", 75 Marq. L. Rev. 265, Fall 1991, cited with
approval by Wisconsin Supreme Court in State v. Thierfelder, 174 Wis.2d 213, 220, n. 6,495
N.W.2d 669,672, n.6 (1993); State v. Kurzawa, 180 Wis.2d 502,521, n. 10 & 12,509 N.W.2d
712, 720, n. 10 & 12 (1994)

ONGOING PROFESSIONAL TRAINING
Page 3 of 9

t$

•



2017 Robert F. Boden Lecture, "International Law and Peace Among Nations", Marquette
University Law School, Milwaukee, Wisconsin, September 2017

• The Highs & Lows of Drug-Impaired Driving, Brookfield, WI, September 2017
National Institute for Trial Advocacy/Association of Prosecuting Attorneys Domestic Abuse
Supervisory Skills Program, Milwaukee, Wisconsin, June 2017

National Computer Forensics Institute United States Secret Service, Computer
Forensics in Court for Prosecutors Program, Hoover, Alabama, May 2017

• 2017 Hallows Lecture, "Tough Talk and the Institutional Legitimacy ofOur Courts", Marquette
University Law School, Milwaukee, Wisconsin, March 2017

• National Center for Missing and Exploited Children, Jimmy Ryce Law Enforcement
Training Center Child Sex Trafficking: Awareness & Response Training, Milwaukee,
Wisconsin, January 2017

• National Center for Missing and Exploited Children, Introduction to Child Sex
Trafficking: Awareness & Response, Milwaukee, Wisconsin, Online course,
November 2016

•

•

State Prosecutor Education and Training Fall Conference, Appleton, Wisconsin, November 2016

National White-Collar Crime Center, Advanced Financial Investigations Practical
Skills, Utica, New York, April 2016

State Prosecutor Education and Training Fall Conference, Elkhart Lake, Wisconsin, November
2015

2015 Robert F. Boden Lecture, "Neighborhood Inequality and Public Policy: What
Can Milwaukee Learn from Chicago and Boston?", Marquette University Law School, Milwaukee
Wisconsin, September 2015.

• Vehicular Homicide Training, Appleton Wisconsin, March 2015

• Elder Abuse, Neglect, and Financial Exploitation, Wisconsin Department of Justice
State Prosecutor Education and Training Webinar, September 2014

• 2014 Hallows Lecture: "Screws v. United States and The Birth of Federal Civil Rights
Enforcement", Marquette University Law School, Milwaukee, Wisconsin, March 2014

• State Prosecutor Education and Training Webinar, Ethics-Special Duties of Prosecutors,
December 2013

• National White-Collar Crime Center, Financial Crimes Against Seniors, Richmond,
Kentucky, October 2013

• Vehicular Homicide Conference, Brookfield, Wisconsin, September 2013

• Wisconsin Association of Treatment Court Professionals Conference, Appleton,
Wisconsin, April 2013

• Wisconsin District Attorney State Prosecutor Education and Training, Elkhart Lake,
Wisconsin, November 2011

Page 4 of 9



•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

Wisconsin Department of Justice, Concealed Carry Regional Workshop, Franklin,
Wisconsin, October 2011

2011 State Prosecutor Education and Training Pre-Trial Practice Training, Green Lake,
Wisconsin, May 2011

State Prosecutor Education and Training Webinar, Daubert Nuts and Bolts, March 2011

Regional Domestic Violence Training, Waukesha, Wisconsin, November 2010

Principled Negotiations for Lasting Solutions, Wisconsin State Public Defender,
Milwaukee, Wisconsin, September 2010

FBI-LE EDA Lifelock Identity Theft Summit, Franklin, Wisconsin, July 2010

State Prosecutor Education and Training Webinar, Subpoenas for Documents: Practices and
Procedures Pursuant to Wis. Stat. 968.135, February 2010

Wisconsin District Attorney State Prosecutor Education and Training, Elkhart Lake,
Wisconsin, November 2009

Wisconsin Department of Justice 2009 Public Records and Open Meetings Laws
Seminar, Milwaukee, Wisconsin, October 2009

Wisconsin District Attorney State Prosecutor Education and Training, Appleton, Wisconsin,
January 2008

State Prosecutor Education and Training Webinar, Ethics in Tutoring in Prosecuting,
November 2007

Ralph Adam Fine's Win-Your-Trial Program, Milwaukee, Wisconsin, November 2007

Investigating Domestic Abuse, Law Enforcement's Role in Homicide Prevention and
Ending Intergenerational Violence, Elkhorn, Wisconsin, June 2007

State of Wisconsin State Public Defender, Current Research on Sex Offenders,
Madison, Wisconsin, May 2007

National Law Center for Women and Children, National Law Center Protects Seminar, Chicago,
Illinois, April 2007

State of Wisconsin Department of Justice, Elder Abuse: Undue Influence, The Criminal
Justice Response Training, Brookfield, Wisconsin, April 2006

State Prosecutor Education and Training Webinar, Recording Statements, March 2006

Wisconsin District Attorney State Prosecutor Education and Training, Lacrosse, Wisconsin,
January 2006

Violence Against Women Act Statewide Planning Meeting, Appleton, Wisconsin, September
2005

Wisconsin District Attorney State Prosecutor Education and Training, Lacrosse, Wisconsin,
January 2005

National District Attorney's Association, Advanced Techniques in Forensic DNA
Evidence, National Advocacy Center, Columbia, South Carolina, May 2004

Page 5 of 9



• State Prosecutor Education and Training Wisline, Impaired Driving Update, March 2004

• Wisconsin District Attorney State Prosecutor Education and Training, Appleton, Wisconsin,
January 2004

• National District Attorney's Association, DNA: Witness to the Truth, Columbia, South
Carolina, December 2003

• Walworth County Department of Health and Human Services, Bridges Out of Poverty,
Elkhorn, Wisconsin, September 2003

• State Prosecutor Education and Training WisLine, Limits of Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner
Testimony-Current Challenges & Responses, April 2003

• State Prosecutor Education and Training Wisline, Adoption and Safe Families Act or Bust,
March 2003

• State Prosecutor Education and Training Winter Conference, Appleton, Wisconsin, January 2003

• State Prosecutor Education and Training Network, Ethical Issues in Selecting and
Communicating with Jurors, November 2002

• Walworth County Department of Health and Human Services, Issues in Sex Offender
Treatment, Elkhorn, Wisconsin, November 2002

• Walworth County Department of Health and Human Services, School Violence,
Elkhorn, Wisconsin, November 2002

• State Prosecutor Education and Training Network, Prosecuting Parental Abductions,
September 2002

• State Prosecutor Education and Training, Appleton, Wisconsin, January 2002

• State Prosecutor Education and Training Network, Ethics and the Media, October 2001

• Children's Hospital of Wisconsin, Child Maltreatment: Front Line Interview Through
Successful Prosecution, Brookfield, Wisconsin, September 2001

• Walworth County Department of Health and Human Services, Adoption and Safe
Families Act: Implications for Practitioners, Agencies, and the Court, Elkhorn,
Wisconsin, January 2001

• State Prosecutor Education and Training Network, Other Acts Evidence Update, December 2000

• The Midwest Regional Children's Advocacy Center Conference on Child Abuse,
The Team Challenge, Making a Difference, November 2000

• State Prosecutor Education and Training Network, Criminal Discovery, February 2000

• State Prosecutor Education and Training Network, Truth in Sentencing, January 2000

• Asset Forfeiture Training, US Attorney's Office Eastern District Training, Oak Creek,
Wisconsin, October 1999

• National Highway Traffic Safety Administration Standardized Field Sobriety Testing, Town of
Delavan, Wisconsin, certification received June 1999

Page 6 of 9



•

•

•

•

•

•

Wisconsin District Attorney's Association/State Prosecutor Education and Training Summer
Conference, Egg Harbor, Wisconsin, June 1999

State Prosecutor Education and Training Network, Extraditions, January 1999

Milwaukee County Medical Examiner, 10" Annual Forensic Science Seminar,
Milwaukee, Wisconsin, September 1998

New Prosecutor Course, West Allis, Wisconsin, September 1997

Wisconsin District Attorney's Association/State Prosecutor Education and Training Summer
Conference, Egg Harbor, Wisconsin, June 1997

Midwest Gang Investigators' Association, Gang Seminar, Dubuque, Iowa, May 1997

State Prosecutor Education and Training Network, Search & Seizure, April 1997

State Prosecutor Education and Training Network, Video Gambling, February 1997

State Prosecutor Education and Training Network, New Criminal Discovery Issues and Full Faith
and Credit, November 1996

Wisconsin Department of Justice, One Voice for Children, Eau Claire, Wisconsin
September 1996

Children's Hospital of Wisconsin, Hot Topics in the Investigation and Prosecution of
Child Abuse, Lake Geneva, Wisconsin, April 1996

Midwest Gang Investigators' Association Seminar, St. Paul, Minnesota, April 1996

North East Multi-Regional Training, Gang Enforcement Gang Specialist Training,
Cary, Illinois, November 1995

Children's Hospital of Wisconsin, Advanced Topics in Child Sexual Abuse Investigation,
Milwaukee, Wisconsin, August 1995

State Prosecutor Education and Training Summer Conference, Egg Harbor, Wisconsin, June
1995

State Prosecutor Education and Training Network, The Civil Liability and Immunity of
Prosecutors, March 1995

DNA Training for Prosecutors, Gateway Technical College, Racine, Wisconsin,
November 1994

Midwest Conference on Child Sexual Abuse & Incest, Madison, Wisconsin,
October 1994

Advanced Symposium on Sexual/Physical Abuse of Children, Kenosha, Wisconsin,
May 1993, May 1994

State Prosecutor Education and Training Network, Pandora's Box, Does Parents' Third-Party
Consent to Search a Child's Room Extend to the Containers Within, March 1994

Rock County Conference on Child Maltreatment: A Multidisciplinary Approach,
Janesville, Wisconsin, July 1992

Page 7 of 9



AWARDS

• Wisconsin District Attorney's Association Assistant District Attorney of the Year, 2016

• Midwest Gang Investigators' Association, Instructor Award, May 1998

• Joseph J. and Vera J. Zilber Scholar, and scholarship recipient, 1991-1992

Page 8 of 9



• Robert F. and Patricia M. Boden Scholar, and scholarship recipient, 1990-1991

• UW-Marathon Center, Academic Scholar, and scholarship recipient, 1984-1985

MEMBERSHIPS

Wisconsin State Bar, admitted to practice May 18, 1992
United States District Court, Eastern District of Wisconsin, admitted to practice May 19, 1992

COMMUNITY SERVICE

• State of Wisconsin, State Courts STOP Grant Advisory Committee, prosecutor member, June
2011-present

• Walworth County Highway Safety Commission, prosecutor member, 2013-2016

• Veteran's Health Coalition, member, 2013-2015

• Walworth Elementary, High & Middle School, "Bullying, Harassment, Teasing and Inappropriate
Touching", presenter, Walworth, Wisconsin 2004-2012

• Walworth County Sheriffs Department, Camp C.O.P.S and Kids Day Camp, July 2004

• Gateway Alternative High School Informational lecture, Elkhorn, Wisconsin, March 2004

• Freshmen Harassment and Prevention Training Forum, Walworth, Wisconsin, January 2004

• Career Day Speaker, Brookwood Middle School, Genoa City, Wisconsin, March 2003

• Freshmen Harassment Prevention Training Forum, Walworth, Wisconsin, January 2003

• Community Based Treatment Alternatives for Seriously Disturbed Youth Project Team,
December 2002

• Walworth County Children's Court Advisory Board, committee member, 1992-2002

• Freshmen Harassment and Prevention Training Forum, Walworth, Wisconsin, November 2002

• Freshmen Harassment and Prevention Training Forum, Walworth, Wisconsin, April 2001

• University of Wisconsin-Whitewater, Political Science Student Association, Career Night
Speaker, Whitewater, Wisconsin April 2001

• City of Whitewater Police Department Citizen's Academy Speaker, Whitewater, Wisconsin,
September 1999

• Walworth County Gang Intelligence Team, member, 1995-2000

• Walworth County Dept of Health and Human Services Advisory Board, member, 1992-1996

• Marquette University law School Student State Bar liaison to the Judicial Independence
Committee, 1990-1991

• Elected Student Government Delegate, University of Wisconsin-Marathon Center,
1984-1985

Page 9 of 9



APPROVAL

ho
REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

A RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS
AND RESTRICTIONS

FORTHE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE
FORTHE DEVELOPMENT

OF AN APPROXIMATELY 271,753 SQUARE
FOOT SPECULATIVE

INDUSTRIAL BUILDING AND FORTHE
APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL

USE FOROVERNIGHT PARKING FOR
VEHICLES EXCEEDING 8,000

POUNDSMANUFACTURED GROSS
VEHICLE WEIGHT UPON

PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED AT
WEST OAKWOODROAD,

THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE PARCEL
ADJACENT TO THE FUTURE

HICKORY STREET (LOT 1 OF CERTIFIED
SURVEYMAP NO. 9362)

(BY HSA COMMERCIAL, INC., D/B/A HSA
COMMERCIAL REAL

ESTATE, APPLICANT, SFT FRANKLIN
OAKWOOD, LLC, PROPERTY OWNER)

MEETING DATE
April 4, 2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.1.

On March 1 7, 2022, the Plan Commission voted to recommend approval of Special Uses for HSA
Commercial Inc., d/b/a HSA Commercial Real Estate., to permit the operation of eCommerce/warehousing
and distribution within the approved 271,753-square foot industrial building approved by the Plan
Commission on March 3, 2022, and to permit the overnight parking of vehicles exceeding 8,000 pounds
manufactured Gross Vehicle Weight, in the area of the site as approved for such vehicles (along the south side
of the Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 9362. Subsequent to the Plan Commission vote recommending
approval, the Milwaukee County Register of Deeds uploaded the changes to the property maps, such that the
Tax Key Numbers for the prior parcel were created and the only number was removed. Therefore, staff
updated that attached Resolution reflecting that the property in question is now listed as Tax Key No. 951-
9994-002.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt Resolution 2022- , imposing conditions and restrictions for the approval of a
Special Use for the development of an approximately 271,753-square foot speculative industrial building for
operation of an eCommerce/warehousing and distribution use, and approval of a Special Use for overnight
parking for vehicles exceeding 8,000 pounds manufactured gross vehicle weight upon property generally
located at West Oakwood Road, the nmihwest ¼ of the parcel adjacent to the future Hickory Street, otherwise
known as Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 9362 (HSA Commercial, Inc., d/b/a HSA Commercial Real
Estate, applicant).

Department ofCity Development HE



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 2022--

MILWAUKEE COUNTY
[Draft 3-8-22]

A RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS
FOR THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE FOR THE DEVELOPMENT

OF AN APPROXIMATELY 271,753 SQUARE FOOT SPECULATIVE
INDUSTRIAL BUILDING AND FOR THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL
USE FOR OVERNIGHT PARKING FOR VEHICLES EXCEEDING 8,000

POUNDS MANUFACTURED GROSS VEHICLE WEIGHT UPON
PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED AT WEST OAKWOOD ROAD,

THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE PARCEL ADJACENT TO THE FUTURE
HICKORY STREET (LOT 1 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 9362)
(BY HSA COMMERCIAL, INC., D/B/A HSA COMMERCIAL REAL

ESTATE, APPLICANT, SFT FRANKLIN OAKWOOD, LLC, PROPERTY OWNER)

WHEREAS, HSA Commercial, Inc., d/b/a HSA Commercial Real Estate having
petitioned the City of Franklin for the approval of Special Uses within Planned Development
District No. 39 (Mixed Use Business Park), to allow for the development of an
approximately 271,753 square foot speculative industrial building generally located at West
Oakwood Road, at the northwest 1/4 of the parcel adjacent to the future Hickory Street (Lot
1 of Certified Survey Map No. 9362), (eCommerce/warehousing and distribution require a
Special Use per Section 15-3.0444BB.3.a.e. of the Unified Development Ordinance) and to
allow for overnight parking for vehicles exceeding 8,000 pounds manufactured Gross
Vehicle Weight (which requires Special Use approval per Section 15-3.0444B.D.1.a.iii.
(Design Standards, addendum to Ordinance No. 2016-2238) of the Unified Development
Ordinance), upon property generally located at West Oakwood Road, the northwest 1/4 of
the parcel adjacent to the future Hickory Street (Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 9362),
zoned Planned Development District No. 39 (Mixed-Use Business Park). The property
which is the subject of the application bears Tax Key No. 951-9994-002 and is more
particularly described as follows:

Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 9362, recorded November 05, 2021,
recorded in the Register of Deeds office for Milwaukee County as Document
No. 11183864, located in the Northeast 1/4 and Northwest 1/4 of the Northeast
1/4 of Section 36, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin,
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin; and

WHEREAS, such petition having been duly referred to the Plan Commission of the
City of Franklin for a public hearing, pursuant to the requirements of §15-9.0103D. of the
Unified Development Ordinance, and a public hearing having been held before the Plan
Commission on the 17th day of March, 2022, and the Plan Commission thereafter having
determined to recommend that the proposed Special Uses be approved, subject to certain
conditions, and the Plan Commission further finding that the proposed Special Uses upon



HSA COMMERCIAL, INC., D/B/A HSA COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE- SPECIAL
USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2022--
Page 2

such conditions, pursuant to §15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance, will be in
harmony with the purposes of the Unified Development Ordinance and the Comprehensive
Master Plan; that they will not have an undue adverse impact upon adjoining property; that
they will not interfere with the development of neighboring property; that they will be served
adequately by essential public facilities and services; that they will not cause undue traffic
congestion; and that they will not result in damage to property of significant importance to
nature, history or the like; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having received such Plan Commission
recommendation and also having found that the proposed Special Uses, subject to conditions,
meet the standards set forth under §15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the petition of HSA Commercial, Inc., d/b/a HSA
Commercial Real Estate, for the approval of Special Uses for the property particularly
described in the preamble to this Resolution, be and the same are hereby approved, subject to
the following conditions and restrictions:

1. That these Special Uses are approved only for the use of the subject property by
HSA Commercial, Inc., d/b/a HSA Commercial Real Estate, successors and
assigns, for an approximately 271,753 square foot speculative industrial building,
and for overnight parking for vehicles exceeding 8,000 pounds manufactured
Gross Vehicle Weight uses, which shall be developed in substantial compliance
with, and operated and maintained by HSA Commercial, Inc., d/b/a HSA
Commercial Real Estate, pursuant to those plans City file-stamped February 21,
2022 and annexed hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A.

2. HSA Commercial, Inc., d/b/a HSA Commercial Real Estate, successors and
assigns, shall pay to the City of Franklin the amount of all development
compliance, inspection and review fees incurred by the City of Franklin, including
fees of consults to the City of Franklin, for the HSA Commercial, Inc., d/b/a HSA
Commercial Real Estate approximately 271,753 square foot speculative industrial
building, and overnight parking for vehicles exceeding 8,000 pounds
manufactured Gross Vehicle Weight Special Uses, within 30 days of invoice for
same. Any violation of this provision shall be a violation of the Unified
Development Ordinance, and subject to § 15-9.0502 thereof and § 1-19 of the
Municipal Code, the general penalties and remedies provisions, as amended from
time to time.

3. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon the HSA Commercial, Inc.,



HSA COMMERCIAL, INC., D/B/A HSA COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE -- SPECIAL
USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2022--
Page 3

d/b/a HSA Commercial Real Estate approximately 271,753 square foot
speculative industrial building, and overnight parking for vehicles exceeding
8,000 pounds manufactured Gross Vehicle Weight Special Uses for the property
generally located at West Oakwood Road, the northwest 1/4 of the parcel adjacent
to the future Hickory Street (Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 9362): (i) being
in compliance with all applicable governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes, orders
and ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all other governmental approvals, permits,
licenses and the like, required for and applicable to the project to be developed
and as presented for this approval.

4. The approved location of all overnight vehicle parking shall be restricted to the
truck parking spaces located south of the proposed warehouse/office building
along the south property line adjacent Outlot 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 9362,
and limited in duration to 24-48 continuous hours per vehicle.

5. This Special Use approval shall be contingent on the approval terms and
conditions of the Site Plan as approved under Plan Commission Resolution 2022
007.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in the event HSA Commercial, Inc., d/b/a HSA
Commercial Real Estate, successors or assigns, or any owner of the subject property, does
not comply with one or any of the conditions and restrictions of this Special Use Resolution,
following a ten (10) day notice to cure, and failure to comply within such time period, the
Common Council, upon notice and hearing, may revoke the Special Use permission granted
under this Resolution.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any violation of any term, condition or
restriction of this Resolution is hereby deemed to be, and therefore shall be, a violation of the
Unified Development Ordinance, and pursuant to §15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the
Municipal Code, the penalty for such violation shall be a forfeiture of no more than
$2,500.00, or such other maximum amount and together with such other costs and terms as
may be specified therein from time to time. Each day that such violation continues shall be a
separate violation. Failure of the City to enforce any such violation shall not be a waiver of
that or any other violation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be construed to be such
Special Use Permit as is contemplated by §15-9.0103 of the Unified Development
Ordinance.



HSA COMMERCIAL, INC., D/BIA HSA COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE- SPECIAL
USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2022---
Page 4

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, pursuant to §15-9.0103G. of the Unified
Development Ordinance, that the Special Use permission granted under this Resolution shall
be null and void upon the expiration of one year from the date of adoption of this Resolution,
unless the Special Uses have been established by way of the issuance of an occupancy permit
for such use

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to obtain
the recording of a certified copy of this Resolution in the Office of the Register of Deeds for
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
___ day of , 2022.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of>2022.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--- --- ---



Item C.t.

Fent CITY OF FRANKLIN hew»
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting of March 17, 2022

Special Use

RECOMMENDATION: City Development Staff recommends the Plan Commission forward a
recommendation of approval for the proposed uses, subject to the conditions on the attached draft
Resolution.
Property Owner: SFT Franklin Oakwood LLC (JAMS-4, LLC, as shown on Site

Plan Application dated July 26, 2021)

Applicant:

Project Address:

Agents:

Zoning:

Use of Surrounding Properties:

Special Use Request:

Staff Planner:

H.S.A. Acquisitions, Inc.

3303 West Oakwood Road (TKN 951-9994-001)

Werner H. Brisske, Partners in Design
Matthew Carey, Pinnacle Engineering, Inc.

PDD-39 Mixed Use Business Park
South 27 Street Design Overlay

North: Residential zoned R-2 and R-3 and Ascension Hospital
zoned B-7
West: Office/warehouse (under construction) zoned PDD-39
East: Food converting facility (approved) zoned PDD-39
South: Conservancy outlot (as per CSM 9362) zoned PDD-39

To authorize use of the subject property as "E-commerce,
warehousing and distribution" and authorize "Overnight truck
parking of vehicles more than 8,000 pounds Gross Vehicle
Weight".

Heath Eddy, AICP, Planning Manager

INTRODUCTION
On July 13, 2021, the applicant submitted applications for a Site Plan and Special Use to develop a
single, 271,780 square foot industrial building intended for flexible end users on the northwestern
quarter of the parcel identified as Tax Key Number 951-9994-001, which is located in the Business
Park section of Planned Development District No. 39 (PDD-39). The development does not currently
have tenants. The Site Plan application was just approved by the Plan Commission at the March 3,
2022 meeting.

The applicant's request for Special Use approval is to accommodate potential future users in the areas
of "eCommerce, Distribution, and Warehousing," along with "Overnight Parking of Vehicles More
Than 8,000 Pounds Gross Vehicle Weight."



PROJECT DESCRIPTION ANDANALYSIS
The proposal is the same as was approved for the applicant on the properties located on Aspen Way,
south of this site. Due to various difficulties getting the development work going on that property, the
applicant moved the development to this site. In terms of each use, the intensity of the "eCommerce"
use is suitable to this location following construction of the Hickory Street segment between Elm Road
and Oakwood Road. Truck routing through the Corporate Park runs westbound along Elm Road, then
north on the future Hickory Street, then east on Oakwood Road (or south on Hickory Street) then back
onto I-94 via the slip ramp. Therefore, this location is suitable for this kind of intensive use.

The overnight parking request is also a replica of the previously approved Special Use on Aspen Way.
The applicant's Site Plan includes 78 truck parking spaces, which are located between the building and
the protected woodland area on Outlot 1. In addition, the landscaping along the west edge adjacent
Hickory Street should provide additional appropriate buffering against any trucks parked overnight.

UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE REQUIREMENTS
Special Use and Site Plan Applications are subject to the following provisions of the UDO. Subject to
the development conditions of approval, the Special Use and Site Plan shall meet these standards:

• §15-3.0701 General Standards for Special Uses

GENERAL STANDARDS FOR SPECIAL USES (§15-3.0701)

Summary of Standard Staffs Finding
I. Harmony with UDO and The applicant's requests are in keeping with the requirements of the UDO,

ComprehensivePlan are consistent with the mtent of the PDD-39 Ordmance, and consistent
purposes and intent. with the objectives of the City with respect to this development The

requests are also m keeping with the mtent of the South 27 Street Design
Overlay, and consistent with the purpose and intent of the Czty ofFranklzn
2025 Comprehensive Master Plan

2. No Undue Adverse Impact. The evaluation of"undue adverse impact" can be subjective. In the context
of thus use, the applicant's proposal mantamns an ex1sting bufferyard of
young and mature woodlands on the adjacent Outlot, which should
mut1gate any noise from 1dlmng vehicles located in the parking area Other
uses in the area are commercial, hospitality, service-oriented, or industrial
mn character, and the proposed uses are designed to fit mnto this location.

3. No Interference with The approved Site Plan shows a 36-foot facade with up to 2 stories of
Surrounding Development. interior development, consistent with adjacent development of similar uses

The applicant's requested uses should fit w1thm the context of this
development and with adjacent development to the west (Wangard) and
east (Saputo) Therefore the proposed use should not mterfere or dominate
adjacent properties.

4. Adequate Public Facilities. The proposed development will be served by City water and regional sewer
services, and should have ready avalabulrty for emergency services, fire,
and polce protection

5. No Traffic Congestion. The proposed development is designed with three access points along
Oakwood Road and a single access from Hickory Street Truck traffic will
enter from Hckory Street and exrt from the easternmost access on
Oakwood Road and travel eastbound to South 27 Street (STH 241) The
other two Oakwood Road accesses are intended for regular velucular
access, but the srte 1s not per-se designed to restrict access However, staff
sees no major impact to traffic m the area.

2



6. No Destruction ofSignificant The proposed design of the site does not impact any protected natural
Features. features, as any proposed impact was elminated with a modification to

grading adjacent the Outlot.
7. Compliance with Standards. The proposed use complies with the requirements of the PDD-39 Mixed-

Use Business Park District, and with all other aspects of the UDO, as noted
by the Site Plan approval.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
The Department of City Development staff recommends providing a recommendation of approval for
the Special Use requests as discussed and included in the draft Resolution as attached.

3



TKN: 951 9994 001

psis''4,g«

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 460 920 1,840 Feet A
NORTH

2021 Aerial Photo
This map shows the approximate relative location ofproperty
boundaries but was not prepared bya professional land surveyor
This map is providedfor informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriatefor legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.



TKN: 951 9994 001

Property

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

o 460 920 1,840 Feet A
NORTH

2021 Aerial Photo
This map shows the approximate relative location ofproperty
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor
This map is providedfor informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriatefor legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.



Phone: (414) 425-4024
Fax: (414) 427-7691

Web Site: www.franklinwi.goy

City of FranklinPlanning Department
9229 West Loomis Road
Franklin, Wisconsin 53132
Email: generalplanning@franklinwi.gov

Date of Application: 07.23.21
SPECIAL USE/ SPECIAL USE AMENDMENT APPLICATION

Complete, accurate ond specific Information must be entered. Please Print.

Zip: 60015

Applicant (Full Legal Name[s]):
Name: Mark TeGroolenhuis

Company: HSA Commercial Real Estate

Mailing Address: 100 S Wacker Drive, Suite 950

City /state: Sc@9o.EEzip. 60606
Phone: 312-683-7224

Email Address: tegrootenhuis@hsacommercial.co

Applicant Is Represented by: (contact person)(Full Legal Name[s])
Name: Werner H. Brisske, AIA

Company: Partners in Design

Mailing Address: 2610 Lake Cook Road
City/ State: Riverwoods/ Illinois

Phone: 847-940-0300

Email Address: wernerb@pldarchitects.com

Project Property Information:
Property Address: Future South Hickory Street & West Oakwood Road

Property Owner(s): _J_A_M_S_-_4_, _L_LC _

Mailing Address: 10467 S. 27th Street

City/State: Franklin, WI Zip: _5_3_13_2 _
Email Address: matt@langdonpartnersre.com

Tax Key Nos: 9519994001

Existing Zoning: Planned Development
Existing Use: Unimproved land

Proposed Use:IUUs"ad
Future Land Use Identification: _

*The 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan Future Land Use Map is available at: http:ljwww.franklinwi.gov/Home/ResourcesDocuments/Maps.htm

Special Use/Special Use Amendment submittals for review must include and be accompanied by the following:
Ii] This Application form accurately completed with original signature(s). Facsimiles and copies will not be accepted.
Ii] Application Filing Fee, payable to City of Franklin: D $1000 Special Use Amendment

[@] $1500, New Special Use over 4,000 square feet D $750, New Special Use under 4,000 square feet
Ii] Legal Description for the subject property (WORD.doc or compatible format).
Ii] One copy of a response to the General Standards, Special Standards (if applicable), and Considerations found in Section 15-3.0701(A), (B), and (C) of

the Unified Development Ordinance available at www.franklinwi.gov.
Ii] Seven (7) complete collated sets of Application materials to include:

[@] one (1) original and six (6) copies of a written Project Summary, including description ofonynew building construction and site work,
interior/exterior building modifications or additions to bemode to property, site improvement costs, estimate ofproject value and any other
information that is available.)

Ii] Three (3) folded full size, drawn to scale copies (at least 24" x 36") of the Site Plan/Site Plan Amendment package. (Thesubmittal should include
only those plans/items as setforth in Section 17-7.0101, 15-7.0301 and 15-5.0402 of the Unified Development Ordinance that ore impacted by the
development. (e.g., Site Plan, Building Elevations, Landscape Plan, Outdoor Lighting Plan, Natural Resource Protection Plan, etc.)

[@] Four (4) folded reduced size (11"17") copies of the Site Plan/Site Plan Amendment package.
Ii] One colored copy (ll"x17") of the building elevations, if applicable.
D Three copies of the Natural Resource Protection Plan and report, if applicable (see Section 15-4.0102 & 15-7.0201 of the UDO).
Iii Email (or CD ROM) with all plans/submittal materials. Plans must be submitted in both Adobe PDF and AutoCADcompatibleformat (where applicable).

•Upon receipt of a complete submittal, staff review will be conducted within ten business days.
•Special Use/Special Use Amendment requests require Plan Commission review, a Public Hearing and Common Council approval.

The applicant and property owner(s) hereby certify that: (1) all statements and other information submitted as part of this application are true and correct to the best
of applicant's and property owner(s)' knowledge; (2) the applicant and property owner(s) has/have read and understand all information in this application; and (3)
the applicant and property owner(s) agree that any approvals based,onrepresentations made by them in this Application and its submittal, and any subsequently
issued building permits or other type of permits, may be revoked without notice if there is a breach of such representation(s) or any condition(s) of approval. By
execution of this application, the property owner(s) authorizethe City of Franklin and/or its agents to enter upon the subject property(ies) between the hours of 7:00
a.m. and 7:00 p.m. daily for the purpose of inspectionwhile the application is under review. The property owner(s) grant this authorization even if the property has
been posted against trespassing pursuant to Wis. Mt. §943.13.

(The applicant' 5ignltu frg inaging Member if the business ls an LL, or from the President or Vice President if the business is a corporation. A
999BJ/trma 'be provided in lieu of the applicant's signature below, and a signed property owner's authorization letter may be

nr's signature[s] below. lfmore than one, all of the owners of the propertymust sign this Application).

Signature - Property Owner Signature - Applicant's Representative

Name & Title (PRINT) Name & Title (PRINT)
Date: _ Date: _



Phone: (414) 425-4024
Fax: (414) 427-7691

Web Site: www.franklinwi.gov

City of FranklinPlanning Department
9229 West Loomis Road
Franklin, Wisconsin 53132
Email: generalplanning@franklinwi.gov

Date of Application: 07.23.21
SPECIAL USE/ SPECIAL USE AMENDMENT APPLICATION

Complete, accurate ond specific Information must be entered. Please Print.

Zip: 60015

Applicant {Full Legal Name[s]):
Name: Mark TeGroolenhuis
Company: HSA Commercial Real Estate

Mailing Address: 100 S Wacker Drive, Suite 950

city / State: Ch"ago.Sip. 60606
Phone: 312-683-7224

Email Address: tegrootenhuis@hsacommercial.co

Applicant is Represented by: (contact person)(Fu/1 Legal Name[s]}
Name: Werner H. Brisske, AIA

Company: Partners in Design

Mailing Address: 2610 Lake Cook Road
City/ State: Riverwoods / Illinois

Phone: 847-940-0300

Email Address: wernerb@pidarchitects.com

Project Property Information:
Property Address: Future South Hickory Street & Wes! Oakwood Road

Property Owner(s): _J_A_M_S_-_4_, _L_LC _
Tax Key Nos: 9519994001

Mailing Address: 10467 S. 27th Street

City/ State: Franklin, WI Zip: _5_3_13_2 _
Email Address: matt@langdonpartnersre.com

Existing Zoning: Planned Development
Existing Use: Unimproved land

Proposed Use:"US"a
Future Land Use Identification: _

·The 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan Future Land Use Map is available at: http://wy.franklinwi.gov/Home/ResourcesDocuments/Maps.htmn

Special Use/Special Use Amendment submittals for review must include and be accompanied by the following:
Ii] This Application form accurately completed with original signature(s). Facsimiles and copies will not be accepted.
Ii] Application Filing Fee, payable to City of Franklin: []$1ooo special Use Amendment

[E@] $1500, New Special Use over 4,000 square feet []$750, New Special Use under 4,000 square feet
Ii] Legal Description for the subject property (WORD.doc or compatible format).
Ii] One copy of a response to the General Standards, Special Standards (if applicable), and Considerations found in Section 15-3.0701(A), (B), and (C) of

the Unified Development Ordinance available at www.franklinwi.gov.
Ii] Seven (7) complete collated sets of Application materials to include:

Ii] One (1) original and six (6) copies of a written Project Summary, including description of any new building construction and site work,
interior/exterior building modifications or additions ta be made ta property, site improvement costs, estimate of project value and any other
information that is available.)

Ii] Three (3) folded full size, drawn to scale copies (at least 24" 36") of the Site Plan/Site Plan Amendment package. (The submittal should include
only those plans/items as set forth in Section 17-7.0101, 15-7.0301 and 15-5.0402 of the Unified Development Ordinance that are impacted by the
development. (e.g., Site Plan, Building Elevations, landscape Pion, Outdoor lighting Plan, Natural Resource Protection Plan, etc.)

Ii] Four (4) folded reduced size (11"17") copies of the Site Plan/Site Plan Amendment package.
Ii] One colored copy (11"17") of the building elevations, if applicable.
D Three copies of the Natural Resource Protection Plan and report, if applicable (see Section 15-4.0102 & 15-7.0201 of the UDO).
Ii] Email (or CD ROM) with all plans/submittal materials. Plans must be submitted in both Adobe PDF and AutoCAD compatible format (where applicable).

•Upon receipt of a complete submittal, staff review will be conducted within ten business days.
Special Use/Special Use Amendment requests require Plan Commission review, a Public Hearing and Common Council approval.

The applicant and property owner(s) hereby certify that: (1) all statements and other information submitted as part of this application are true and correct to the best
of applicant's and property owner(s)' knowledge; (2) the applicant and property owner(s) has/have read and understand all information in this application; and (3)
the applicant and property owner(s) agree that any approvals based on representations made by them in this Application and its submittal, and any subsequently
issued building permits or other type of permits, may be revoked without notice if there Is a breach of such representation(s) or any condition(s) of approval. By
execution of this application, the property owner(s) authorize the City of Franklin and/or its agents to enter upon the subject property(ies) between the hours of 7:00
a.m. and 7.00 p.m. daily for the purpose of inspection while the application is under review. The property owner(s) grant this authorization even if the property has
been posted against trespassing pursuant to Wis. Stat. §943.13.

(The applicant's signature must be from a Managing Member if the business is an LLC, or from the President or Vice President If the business is a corporation. A
signed applicant's authorization letter may be provided In lieu of the applicant's signature below, and a signed property owner's authorization Jetter may be
provided in lieu of the property owner's signature[s] below. If more than one, oil of the owners of the property must sign this Application).

Signature - Propert}Owner2cf <car vao, 1la»s«
Name & Title (PRINT) J ~ J

one: '7 3 oafI

Signature · Applicant

Name & Title (PRINT)
Date: _

Signature Property Owner Signature - Applicant's Representative

Name & Title (PRINT) Name & Title (PRINT)
),e Date: _



WEST OAKWOOD ROAD DEVELOPMENT - FRANKLIN, WI

PROJECT SUMMARY:

The project development will be located in the proposed Gateway Area district situated along West
Oakwood Road. HSA Commercial will be developing a speculative industrial building. The building
is situated at the intersection of South Hickory Street and West Oakwood Road. The proposed
development will be a Class A industrial development that reflects best in class design standards for
the asset class.

The building will be approximately 271,800 square feet. The building will be constructed with load
bearing precast concrete painted wall panels and interior steel columns and roof framing. The
proposed design for the building includes two primary corner entrances and two secondary entry
features each with their own storefront and covered walkways. Additional windows and clerestory

f,
indows are provided. The car traffic has been separated from truck traffic for safety purposes. Car
arking is in front of the building to the north with access from West Oakwood Road. Truck loading
s from the west with access at future South Hickory Street and from the east with a shared truck

access drive from West Oakwood Road. The shared access drive will be located between the building
and adjacent west site. Two accessible routes will connect the building entrances to West Oakwood
Road for pedestrian and bike access. Stormwater detention ponds are located on the west of the site
for onsite stormwater management and to provide visual amenities. Our discussions with City staff
have revealed that the Natural Resources Protection Plan on file with the city will be adequate for this
development proposal.

The estimated project value for the development of the west building and site work is $20,000,000.
The estimated project schedule is to break ground on the buildings in the fourth quarter of 2021 for
completion in the third quarter of 2022.

Page [1



Highlighted sections are new responses to Staff Review Comments 02.11.22.

DIVISION 15-3.0700

SECTION_L5-3OZ0I

SPECIAL USE STANDARDS AND REGULATIONS

GENERAL STANDARDS FOR SPECIAL USES

A. General Standards. No special use permit shall be recommended or granted pursuant to
this Ordinance unless the applicant shall establish the following:

l. Ordinance and Comprehensive Master Plan Purposes and Intent. The proposed use and
development will be in harmony with the general and specific purposes for which this Ordinance
was enacted and for which the regulations of the zoning district in question were established
and with the general purpose and intent of the City of Franklin Comprehensive Master Plan or
element thereof.

Response: The development will be located in the proposed Gateway Area district situated at
the intersection of the future South Hickory Street and West Oakwood Road. HSA
Commercial will be developing a Class A speculative industrial building in which
Tenants have not yet been identified. To ensure the success of the project in the
COVID -19 era, in which businesses are making decisions on locations under rapidly
accelerated timeframes, the applicant is requesting additional uses to be considered
as approved Permitted Usesfor the development. The current Gateway area zoning
approves Office/Light Industrial Corporate Headquarters use classification as a
Permitted Use as well as Indoor Warehouse, Distribution and Storage as a Permitted
Accessory Use. The applicant is requesting that business classifications ofeCommerce
Fulfillment, Warehousing, and Distribution uses are considered Permitted Uses. The
proposed development will be a Class A industrial development that reflects best in
class design standards for the asset class. The additional approved permitted uses
align with the types ofbusinesses that are expanding in the area which will enhance
long term property value and maximize assessed property increment to help support
TID4.

2. No Undue Adverse Impact. The proposed use and development will not have a substantial or undue
adverse or detrimental effect upon or endanger adjacent property, the character of the area, or the
public health, safety, morals, comfort, and general welfare and not substantially diminish and impair
property values within the community or neighborhood.

Response: The proposed development site is situated next to thefuture South Hickory Street
on the west and West Oakwood Road to the north. The development is bordered by a
pond and wooded area to the south. On the east, the development is adjacent a similar
future office/industrial use. All employee, vendor and logistics access will be directed
to the south side ofthe property. West Oakwood Road is already a commercial grade
road.

3. No Interference with Surrounding Development. The proposed use and development will be
constructed, arranged, and operated so as not to dominate the immediate vicinity or to interfere
with the use and development of neighboring property in accordance with the applicable zoning

Page I 1



district regulations.

Response: The development is within the Gateway Area which is a Business/Industrial Park
in nature and consistent with other uses in thisproposedpark.

4. Adequate Public Facilities. The proposed use and development will be served adequately by
essential public facilities and services such as streets, public utilities including public water
supply system and sanitary sewer, police and fire protection, refuse disposal, public parks,
libraries, schools, and other public facilities and utilities or the applicant will provide adequately
for such facilities.

Response: The development will be adequately serviced by all existing public utilities,
infrastructure, and services.

5. No Traffic Congestion. The proposed use and development will not cause undue traffic
congestion nor draw significant amounts of traffic through residential streets. Adequate
measures will be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed as to minimize traffic
congestion in the public streets.

Response: The development is at the intersection ofthefuture South Hickory Street and West
OakwoodRoad. There should be no reasonfor trafficfrom the development tofunnel
into residential neighborhoods in the area.

6. No Destruction of Significant Features. The proposed use and development will not result in
the destruction, loss, or damage of any natural, scenic, or historic feature of significant
importance.

Response: The proposed development will be located on an unimproved site within the
Gateway Area district. The proposed development will have on-site detention ponds
helping to blend into the natural environment and will offer prospective tenants
nature-based amenities that will help attract growing businesses to the area.

7. Compliance with Standards. The special use shall, in all other respects, conform to the
applicable regulations of the district in which it is located, except as such regulations may,
in each instance, be modified by the Common Council pursuant to the recommendations of the
Plan Commission. The proposed use and development shall comply with all additional
standards imposed on it by the particular provision of this Division and Ordinance authorizing
such use.

As part of our application and this submittal, we are requesting some exceptions to the
applicable design standards. The requested exceptions are in blue text below. We are also
identifying areas where we exceed the design standards these are in green text.

PDD No. 39 Design Standards, Section 15-3.0444A.D. Gateway Area Design Standards

Item 3b. Central Areas/Features required. Each development which contains a building over
forty-thousand (40,000) square feet in area shall provide central area(s) or feature(s) such as a
patio/seating area, pedestrian plaza with benches, outdoor playground area, water feature,
and/or other such de! iberately designated areas or focal points that adequately enhance the
development or community. All such area shall be openly accessible to the public, connected

Page I 2



to the public and private sidewalk system, designed with materials compatible with the
building and remainder of the site, and maintained over the life of the building and project.

Request: We have located stormwater detention ponds at the intersection ofthefuture
South Hickory Street on the west and West Oakwood Road to provide a waterfeature visible
from the public way. The ponds also act as a buffer to the building. Each building
entrancefeatures architectural walkway protection at the parking lot leading to a covered
entry plaza with a bench. However, the intended usesfor the building are not "public" in
nature and amenities such as a playground area are inappropriate.

Item 4a.i. All principal buildings shall be multi-story and exhibit quality architectural design.
Corner building shall also serve as landmarks with distinctive architectural character,
including such features as towers, rounded walls, recessed entries, or other unique features.

Request: We have created large glazed openings at the corners ofthe building with
clerestory windows above. This provides the ability ofafuture tenant to build a two-story
office while also providing the look ofa multi-story buildingfrom initial construction. We
have also provided architectural covered walkways and large canopies at ourfour building
entries.

Item 4a.iii. Brick and stone are preferred primary materials for the solid (non-window)
portion of the new buildings or additions.

Request: Articulated, painted precast concrete wall panels are utilizedfor the exterior walls
ofthe building. This is the industry standardfor a Class A building ofthis type. In
addition, we are callingfor the use of a stone pattern form liner on the lower 10'-6" ofa
great deal ofthe wallsfacing West Oakwood Road. Finally, our arcaded covered walkway
piers arefurther upgraded to a stone masonry. No concrete masonry units or EIFS is used
in the buildings.

Item 4a.xi. Commercial buildings shall have at least 60% of their ground floor front
elevations with transparent windows.

Request: We have created large glazed openings at the corners ofthe building and at the
two center entries with clerestory windows above. Additional larger individual windows are
provided along thefront elevation. The proposed design provides 30. 7% glazing on the
north elevation and 8.6% on the west elevation. Providing 60% glazing at thefront
elevation is not desired or typically providedfor a Class A building ofthis type.

Item 5. All signs must be in accordance with the Municipal Code, as amended, approved by
the Plan Commission, and be subject to issuance of a Sign Permit through the Inspection
Department. On-site directional signage may be allowed in any area needed to control traffic
or parking provided such signage has received approval from the Department ofCity
Development.

Request: We request a waiver ofthe Plan Commission review ofthe proposed signsfor the
site and defer the review and approval to the Department ofCity Development under a Sign
Permit Application. We note that the PDD-39prohibits all Signs.

Item 7. Supplemental Design Guidelines. It is intended that the applicable design guidelines
set forth in South 27" Street Corridor Plan, and the applicable design standards in the South
27 Street Design Overlay District, be utilized - as a supplemental guide - to the mandatory

Page I 3



design standards set forth elsewhere in this Ordinance pertaining to the Business Park Area
portion of the Planned Development District No. 39. The purpose of these supplemental
guidelines are to serve as general recommendations to further encourage good quality design
in new building and site design, which in turn will support an attractive, interesting, safe, and
sustainable District. It is also intended that these supplemental guidelines serve as the
supplemental design elements or improvements to be incorporated into any project which
requires compensation for any waiver of the additional design standard as set forth in this
Ordinance. In particular, it is encouraged that the design standards, set forth in Section 15
3.0355B and Section 15-3.0355C of South 27 Street Design Overlay District be considered.

Response: The intent as identified in bold text above is noted to encourage considering use
of the Supplemental Design Guidelines where applicable, as a supplemental guide. In line
with our intent to provide an industrial building which is aesthetically pleasing and
appropriatefor its use and location in the business park, thefollowing indicates how the
proposed design relates to these encouraged guidelines.

Village of Franklin Zoning, Chapter UDO, Part 3, Division 15-3.0350, Section 15-3.0351
-South27"street_Design Qyerlay District

15-3.0352.A. Parking required and Location Regulated. Not more than 50% of the off-street
parking spaces shall be located directly between the front facade of the building and the public
street, unless additional buildings in the overall development are or will be located between
the main building and the public street. Such additional buildings must be sufficient in size,
location, and number to provide an effective visual break between the public street and the
parking lot.

Request: The speculative nature of this building is intended to be extremely flexible to meet
needs ofpotential companies searching for a facility of this type. The goal is to separate the
car trafficfrom truck trafficfor safety purposes through primary employee and visitor car
parking located in parking lot on the north side of the building while any truck
maneuvering being confined to the south sides of the buildings. The flexible nature of this
site planfeatures pavement areas on the south side of the building to be stripped as
additional carparking almost equivalent to that provided on the north. It is our opinion that
our site planning forflexibility with this potential parking achieves the spirit of locating
50% of the parking behind the building. Enhanced landscaping beyond the minimum
requirements is being provided between the carparking and adjacent public ways.

Provided: The proposed design provides large entrance canopies and architectural
walkway protection at each of the proposed tenant entrances to accent the entries and
provide rain cover while the pedestrian enters the building. The weatherprotection extends
89' beyond the minimum 30' required at the corner entrances and 38' beyond the minimum
30' required at the center entries.

15-3.0352.B. Number ofParking Spaces Limited. Parking lots in which the number of spaces
significantly exceeds the minimum numberofparking spaces required under 15-5.0203 are
not permitted.

Request: The minimum required parking spaces under the UDO 15-5.0203 section is 136
per the staffcomments. e are requesting 201 car parkingPaces. This is4speculative

Page I 4



development and actualparking needs will vary with the prospective tenants. This parking
ratio is consistent with the other similar develop_ments and necessaryfor marketability.

15-3.0353.G. Central Areas/Features. Each development which contains a building over
50,000 square feet in area shall provide central area(s) or feature(s) such as a patio/seating
area, pedestrian plaza with benches, outdoor playground area, water feature, and/or other such
deliberately designated areas or focal points that adequately enhance the development or
community. All such areas shall be openly accessible to the public, connected to the public
and private sidewalk system, designed with materials compatible with the building and
remainder of the site, and maintained over the life of the building and project.

Request: We reqJjj!St a waiverfor this requirement. The proposed design does not include
any specific central area/feature as these are not typicalfor buildings ofthis type. However,
we have located our stormwater detention pond at the intersection ofthefuture South
Hickory Street and West Oakwood Road to act as waterfeature visiblefrom the public way.
We have also provided architectural covered walkways and benches at ourfour building
entries.

15-3.0355.A. Building Character and Design.

3. Brick, stone and terra-cotta arePreferred primary materials for new buildings or additions.

Request: See or response under PDD-39, item 4.a.iii above and UDO, section 15
r.J.0355.B.3.b below.

4. The use of false brick or other "faux" sidings is discouraged.

Request: See our response under PDD-39, item 4.a.iii above and UDO, section 15
3. 0355.B.3.b below.

6. Painting of brick and stone is discouraged.

Request: See our response under PDD-39, item 4.a.iii above and UDO, section 15
3.0355.B.3.b below.

10. Multi-story buildings that allow for a mix of retail, office or residential uses are preferred.

Request: The development is within the Gateway Area which is a Business/Industrial Park
in nature and consistent with other uses in thisproposedpark. The speculative nature of this
building is intended to be extremely flexible to meet needs ofpotential companies searching
for a facility of this type. Facilities of this type are typically one story. Our two-story glazed
corner entry design does allowfor a tenant to construct a two-story office or two-storyspace.

15-3.0355.B.3.b. Exterior building materials shall convey an impression of durability.
Materials such as masonry, stone, stucco, and wood are encouraged. Metal is not allowed as
the primary exterior building material, though it may be used for accents including awnings.

Request: As also stated in response to Item 4a.iii. in the PDD No. 39 above, articulated,
paintedprecast concrete wall panels are utilizedfor the exterior walls of the building. This
is the industry standardfor a Class A building of this type. Metal and stone masonry
accents are incorporated into our design.

Page I 5



15-3.0355.B.5.a. Decorative devices - such as molding, entablature, and friezes - are
expected at the roofline. Where such ornamentation is present in the form of a linear molding
or board, the band must be at least eight inches wide.

Request: The proposed design includes a simple color coordinated metal coping at the top
of the wall.

15-3.0355.B.6. Change in Relief ofBuilding. Buildings must include changes in relief on at
least I 0% of their primary facade for pedestrian interest and scale. Relief changes include
cornices, bases, fenestration, fluted masonry, or other treatments.

Provided: The proposed design providesfacade articulation in theform ofprecast recesses
and projections at the entrance areasfor a total of 25.9% of the building's north facade. In
addition, there are grade level windows, clerestory windows andpaint changes to provide
further visual interest/relief. Approximately 20.5% of the north elevation, the bottom 10'-6"
of the building, incorporates 'stone'form liner to provide additional texture to the building.
In addition, we are providing a stone pier arcade with articulated covered walkways leading
to entry canopies across 37% of the north facade.

15-3.0355.B.7.a. Windows which allow views to the interior activity or display areas are
expected. Windows shall include sills at the bottom and pediments at the top. Glass curtain
walls, reflective glass, and painted or darkly tinted glass shall not be used.

Request: The glazing at these buildings will typically be to office areas that are part of the
overallfunction of the tenant's operations. These are not typically retail or showroom
display areas as seem to be intended by the language in the standards.

15-3.0355.C.5 Building Design. The building exterior shall be unified in design throughout
the structure, and shall complement other buildings in the vicinity. The building shall employ
varying bui I cling setbacks, height, roof treatments, door and window openings, and other
structural and decorative elements to reduce apparent size and scale. A minimum of 20% of
all the combined facades of the structure shall employ actual facade protrusions or recesses.
A minimum of20% of all of the combined linear roof eave or parapet lines of the structure
shall employ differences in height, with such differences being six feet or more as measured
eave to eave or parapet to parapet for buildings over 50,000 square feet. Roofs with particular
slopes may be required by the City to complement existing buildings or otherwise establish a
particular aesthetic objective. Ground floor facades that face and are on properties that are in
any part within 100 feet of public streets shall have arcades, display windows, entry areas,
awnings, or other such features along no less than 50% of their horizontal length. The
integration ofwindows into building design is strongly encouraged.

Request: We request a waiverfor the technical aspects ofthis requirement. However, we
feel the design does meet the intent ofthe requirement. As noted in response to 15
3.0355.B.6 above, the proposed design providesfacade articulation in theform ofprecast
recesses and projections at the entrance areasfor a total of15.9% ofall combinedfacades
and 3 7% ofthe north facade is articulated with arcades and canopies. The proposed design
also provides varying parapet heights at the entrance areas with a combined percentage of
varied parapet being 14% ofall the combined linearparapets. The proposed elevations
indicate the relative heights to varyfrom 2'-3" to 4'-3". An accent paint scheme and
additional glazing are used to further accentuate the entrance areas. These recesses,
projections and elevation changes are appropriatefor the visual impact ofthe entrances

Page I 6



and the proportions of each element. As statedpreviously, the proposed design also
provides large entrance canopies and architectural walkway protection at each of the
proposed tenant entrances to accent the entries andprovide rain cover while the pedestrian
enters the building.

15-3.0355.C.6 Building Entrances. Public building entryways shall be clearly defined and
highly visible on the building exterior design, and shall be emphasized by on-site traffic flow
patterns. Two or more of the following design features shall be incorporated into all public
building entryways: canopies or porticos, overhangs, projections, arcades, peaked roof forms,
arches, outdoor patios, display windows, distinct architectural details. Unless exempted by
the Plan Commission all sides of the building that directly face or abut a public street or public
parking area shall have at least one public entrance, except that the City shall not require
building entrances on more than two sides of any building.

Request: The proposed design includes a canopy element infront of thefuture South
Hickory Street although the main entry is on the north side of the building.

15-3.0355.C.8 Modest building setbacks are encouraged. Where buildings are proposed to be
distant from a public street, the overall development design shall include smaller buildings on
pads or outlots closer to the street.

Request: We request a waiverfrom this requirement. The building setback on the north to
allow spacefor employee / visitorparking andprovide separation between car and truck
traffic.

B. Special Standards for Specified Special Uses. When the zoning district regulations authorize
a special use in a particular zoning district and that special use is indicated as having special
standards, as set forth in Section 15-3.0702 and 15-3.0703 of this Division, a Special Use
Permit for such use in such zoning district shall not be recommended or granted unless the
applicant shall establish compliance with all such special standards.

Response: The applicant is requesting that business classifications of eCommerce
Fulfillment, Warehousing, andDistribution uses be consideredPermitted Uses, which may
be approved by the ZoningAdministrator, and not subject to the requirements ofSection
15-3.0702 and 15-3.0703.

C. Considerations. In determining whether the applicant's evidence establishes that the foregoing
standards have been met, the Plan Commission and the Common Council shall consider the
following:

I. Public Benefit. Whether and to what extent the proposed use and development at the particular
location requested is necessary or desirable to provide a service or a facility that is in the interest
of the public convenience or that will contribute to the general welfare of the neighborhood or
community.

Response: The proposed Class A development will be attractive to many different types of
industrial operations who will be looking to capitalize on the access that West OakwoodRoad
provides to Interstate 94. The development will be a catalyst projectfor TID 4 which will
establish immediate assessed property value increment.

2. Alternative Locations. Whether and to what extent such public goals can be met by the location

Page I 7



of the proposed use and development at some other site or in some other area that may be more
appropriate than the proposed site.

Response: The proposed Class A development site presents an optimal site plan layout which
is inclusive ofall ofthe amenities that progressive industrial tenants are searching for. The
site is located in the Gateway Area District section of TID 4 which allows the community of
Franklin to attract immediate investment and increment, while preserving future
development sites closer to the 27 Street corridorfor signature corporate headquarter
developments.

3. Mitigation of Adverse Impacts. Whether and to what extent all steps possible have been taken
to minimize any adverse effects of the proposed use and development on the immediate vicinity
through building design, site design, landscaping, and screening.

Response: The proposed Class A developmentpromotes maximum density development
which maximizes the per acre assessed value of land in the community. HSA Commercial
was drawn to the naturalfeatures of the community ofFranklin and they have long
been a proponent of creating sustainable long-term development that protects the
environment. Maximum per acre development ensures that the community maximizes
property value while also protecting its natural resources. The opportunity to leverage the
natural environment surrounding the development aspart of necessary greenspace
requirements will ensure that the community ofFranklin will experience both a development
that blends into the environment and a development that immediately provides a
return on investment to the community in TID 4.

4. Establishment of Precedent of Incompatible Uses in the Surrounding Area. Whether the
use will establish a precedent of, or encourage, more intensive or incompatible uses in the
surrounding area.

Response: The proposed development will be thefirst Class A development in the Gateway
Area district and it will set the barfor the continuing development ofproperties along the
West Oakwood Road corridor.

Page I 8



c:J t w
"'

/ ii:1
.§i:O.I 0j: a:·i•: w• <i: 5r ... ,

0 oeri; :e: ~~ a:'. f--- w Clw:I II i' ~ oZ > .s ...o Uu woz a:'. ~-
50 z E• ::ij B
:,,:'. ...J

I I < I Cl.si 4+; m oc w#, f---ii ! 1lg {}! f---0 vi ■• •lu (/)±%#f ±#jlji I± f·i··~ wfl}i =~ • g _5±%, fl~ 5±ii? iuh ±ii#k uih

~, ,. -"~"~,,.l·1· ·~•·1•~~,. ·····~- .. ,, I-"E,"if $i;;.. ' {,\, (, '
;%2 7;' zsi

I• w
~a.. I-0 Cf)
_J w
w s- s
> aI!... >w I- z w
0 w - o::'.w _J

o::'. ~ z
0 I- z <(

Cf) <( _J c:c~<( >- o::'. CL

0 o::'. LL ~ E5...0 --z cn10::: ~ o_
u <( 0

0 - 0 _J
:r: a'. -:10 :::>:r: 0 co

0 I- 0 0s :::> 0 zQ <(
~

Cf) ~ ww <(<( o::'. I-0 -0 :::> Cf)
I-

I- :::>
LL

(f)
ws



~w
_J
w

§

□□1111

!0

©-

0-

©-

0-

0-

z

~
_J
w

~w

~-!--1---1---- :
I

-I-I--+--_,

'a}g;
l-~1-1- ----1--■ :!!
l-l+-1-1---l--- : ii

Ii I-IWC-l----1-..
t!

0- \J'-'+-1-1---1--

0-

0-

0-

0-u
8 . H+·++-+---

{ ! I-IWC-1----'--

0--

i
_J
w

~

SNOl.lv'J\313 l:l011:l3.LX31 =•=~"•• 5 J ) 3 ! I H ) ll 'If • 11• ~11
p-eoi:, pooM)l'BO !S~M ~;;';::::..: ~s;:iau~S.l;:lUJ.llH ~! ;,., _i ~

lN3'1'1d073A3G 01101:, COOM>iv'O 1S3.M ~.::;::, .."'"' i g u • ,

0-

0-

0-

0--

0-

©
,,.,..

I~ LfJ++-.f-L--l lliil.,j
%

0-/11-1-1-1-1-----lll!!!!III

uu

0--



°'UJ>
:J
5
z
\.J
8j
0
z
'.5

ell
.J
<z
3ln D.
Zl!Jwz
5
Cl <
UJ D.

5

11 1 i

-;;--;:,,I±t
I Inaa

+4#
~ ,.J I I

0 I
<( V}
Ow
ct s:
0 .....
0 1-:::
O Zz·
~ w'.:l,-±
<( c.~
0 gu.
I- w
V} >uu Is: Q

r: 1--,~- _8 ---l~,

- -rrr;uun -~~ ~~:s
rv,;r-- ...,n,.
6a¢sos

._ - J

I'
'

I
I

'

I I I ii-W--+--j
i -tt--rl
#

,A+--i-l~,i! I ,I .
: ' I I!
Ii I I - : J
"7TTl

.
I
0

II'-:+ ,+---1--1
9=f=R_,_, __,,

,,.~~· ,. ·.·1,H I '" I I~,-~..

-H-+4I I . ,,

\ I ! 'II I
Ii ' i

I
I, ,

I
I

I

tttlI

·,
I

I
'l
I f _J_-1--_J_ ---S.(

I
_j

N'1ld 9NIAVd 18 7VNOISN3WIO 3.LIS

--; I

//
I
I
I
I
I

_j__

+-
--

I-,- ---,-

-!- _l__

I I
__i__

I

I I I
7+

I

-~i l-
t- -,- r

L +-- __]__ I

t I

J..33H.l.S AHO>l81H 3Hn1n::1

0
<(
0a::
0
0
0e
<(
0

0zw
\!)
w
...J

w
...J
ca
~
£
0
w
E
(J)

(/)
z
0

5
0

er: ii:o
LL lrl
t- a.
"';' (I)
o<!l
... zww>
:,: <(
(/) Q,
wW
wt::
(/)(/)

wo)J6ua apeuu1dMMM ·,-



wo:, J5ua apeuu 1d MMM .!'

0
<{
0
0::%,
0·I 0
0
5~
<{
0

J
!

I
I

{
'i

w
...Ju
<(zza::

~,

:!:
U.J

~
U.J>0
U.Ja.
<tu
1/J
Clz
~

I

~ 1111

In 11

d
#
~~nh
~ o1 I I

- 3·~ '

L --

;}.,
i

111 ll
ht

I I .:,\', ,! · .. .,,
\·j, l,.
Ir,;;·•-·~
hU,f

<!i ii]-tw 111",=-"JI:~~
gr,

I

i I} 4i
/OY ij'

'.>; i,, t .
•(,

'
. l ,.. I ~ ~
I 11 r !

li ~· ~



+cza



0
N
0
N

O

0
N

N
0
N
0
I>-

';!!.a
N

"cf2.
0
M

"cf2.
0
uO

"cf2.
0
<D

5 N) lD ,;J' N) I'- u
N) 0 00 I'- N) ,;J'

N) u 00 N lD co_c5 <f NO ,.,.; 0» c5
0 u 0 N) ,;J' GLD N) t lD_ 0.,;J' I'- r-0 N

LD lD r--. 00 CJ) 0 0i5 5 5 6 5 N
0 0

N N N N q N N

0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0a_ a_ a_ a_ a_ a_
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0a. '°- a_ no a_ O
M N N

>-(.)
0, C

Cll
5 (.)

C1l Cll
·.::: N >
5 s:::J
O QJ

>C 0
<( IIf)
If)
C1l coo ~ C0 0N ·e-<l)
<l) 0
-"" (/)

.0:::J <l'.C1l> az= ro
9 I'- 5

0 I-6 N 0= I->-
I

<D
0
N



-;f2.
0
N

-;f2.
0
co

-;f2.
0o

-;f2.
0
t

-;f2.
0
N

-;f2.
0
ci

es
QJ
>
0

I

6
C
C1lu
C1l>

C
0:;:;
2-
0,,,
.0
<{

6z
ro
5
l-
o
~
I

L!)

0
N

<D

0
N

/12.
N
co

I.O NO 0 "SJ" N "SJ"
0 M) N. "SJ" "SJ" N 5N 00 o_ 0 co N)
f cri 0 cri 5 cri i
I.O p2 m N) Gco r-;- Lf) I •
Lf) I.O N, co 0» 0 0i5 6 5 5 6 N

0 0
N N N N N N N

0 0 0 0 0 0 00 0 0 0 0 0o_ o_ o_ 0 o_ o
0 0 0 o 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0o_ no o L!) u;, o
N "';"

ro·c
U)
:J
TI
C

co
rn
rn
roo

w
¥
a:
w
0co



0
I>
c=;;
0
N

0
N
0
N

Ol
5
"'

i
i
£,

G
15
.?-.

lD
5
N

C
.2
0a.

ro E5 9

?
·B
~
0u

N,

5
N

(J) I (J) Ul (J) N Ul 0 t0 0
Q)_ (J) t CX) lJ) Ul lJ) u'i

CX) 0
(J) O Ul t 0 CX) t0 0

0 o N ()) r--: r--: f 5 o f
CX) N. t CX) (J) t CX)Lf)_ Ul o_ CX)_ 0 N_ w. (J) t w.(J) <'i <'i t0

Ul N Ul (J) CX) N CX) t0 CX) CX)
0 Np Ul t0 Q)_ N CX) N N lJ)
lJ) lJ) 0» CX) N CX)_ sJ"
f ci o (J) 6 oi 0 00 t0 lJ)
(J) N. t0 • (J) CX) lJ) t (J)

s:r: l"l_ 0 t N CX)_ '<l"_ Lf)_ t0
N t0 i i i t0 N LJi

N t0 sJ" lJ) Ul N, CX) (J) 0 ;;:j0 0 6 5 6 5 6 6 N 0
N N N N N N N N 0 NN

0
f-->-

N

5
N

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 o_ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
c5 0 c5 c5 c5 c5 c5 c5 c5 c5
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 lf) 0 lf) 0 lf) o 0 g lf)

ui f f ,,; ,,; i N

V,
QJ...,
C
:J
0u
co.c
V,
QJ
.Y
:J

5
c
C
0
0)
C
.c
V,

5
Cl)
QJ

.Y
:J
co
N
0
Cl)
QJ

.Y
:J
co
3
z::

w
>
O'.'.
w
0co



§
0

zz
zzZzzz
3Z8zzz
98g43
u g of con n no

t
""

g.
<(<(<((I)(I)(I)(I)C()C()<( 1

2:-2:-
-~ -~
ID Q>
'O u
NN
0 0
NN
t
00

%
0

J!l
C:.,
E
E
0
0

"'£,,,,
d

C)
C:
=f; LL
:: Cf)
:::,
ID

u
illro
.3
'#-
0a

0) 0)

5 5
N N
'<t No a

c
rl
%
eNco

I
X
(1)u::

I

g
£>
s
g
0

I

E
rlro>
'#-
0
0

0
N
0
N

'"0N

O>

5

$
o
0

-g"
3ro
0
U)

o om m
385 5
N N N N
,q- ,q- ,q- Va a o a

8oco ma a t--.. 0s%co...-co coN.,..... ......

"'0o

0
8g
0
ui

J!l
C:.,
E
E
0
0

"'00
N

I

0
0
0g
0o

/

°0o

\

I

8
0g
0
ui

e
0
0

I

5
fil fil q> > -s

I >
<( o

4u u u:

N

8 8a en co
r,... r-,.." O')
t-- a, N
i

3g
0
0
N

a,

"'U1co
N
(")

<"i

±
ro
E.c
::,

en
ro
·5,,,
::,
'O.cs
0
Cf)
Q)

~
:,

l::e
<1ls

"'0N

"'00
ui

0
0
0g
0
i
N

6
£ro
E
.0
::J
U)

ro·c
1n
::J
-0
C

£
::J
0
U)
Cl)
Cl)

.0£.
::Jro
3
2:

I-w
~
0
<(=co
::>
Cl)
_J
<(
or
I-
Cl)
::>
0z
I
I-
::>
0
Cl)
ww
~ .
::>

¥ -..
__J-=

.

. .....w C\I
0¥ C\I
C\IO'.'. 0w u.

0 0

"'OJ <(
I

"'oOO
0z' j::«
"'u 5ro
I-'::::,<
"'u3:
I-... w--: X:
0::
<(:a:



Ia
f
t

0 0

~ ~ ~g !!!

~~~ HtC '° o '•
~ M ~ te

HJ
gg;-~-~--~-~!~~- .- !ij
ii#

fB~ a fM
a,



Blank Page



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Amendment to the Intergovernmental Agreement
between Milwaukee County and the City of Franklin
(Fire Department) for Emergency Medical Services

(EMS).

MEETING
DATE

4/4/2ozo-
ITEM NUMBER

G.2.

In its 2022 Budget, Milwaukee County restored supplemental funding to the pre-2013 historic sum of
$3M (up from the $1.5M distribution that has been in place since that time).

The agreement, which was negotiated between the Intergovernmental Cooperation Council (ICC) and
Milwaukee County, with participation and input from the Milwaukee County Association of Fire
Chiefs and Milwaukee County Office of Emergency Management (OEM)-EMS, has been in effect in its
current form since 2017, with minor modifications and through subsequent Board and Council re
approvals in 2017 and 2020, has been extended through the end of 2025.

The attached amendment reflects the disbursement of an additional $1M to Advanced (Paramedic)
Level service provider agencies, according to the original ICC/Milwaukee County distribution
formula (Exhibit A).

The remaining $0.5M is being used to fund a technology initiative implementing a shared County
wide cloud-based service data bridge for electronic patient care reports (ePCR). This was the
recommendation of the MCAFC, OEM, and the Milwaukee County Medical director; as it will not only
share costs between municipalities, but will also provide for more robust analysis of public health
trends within Milwaukee County and each participating municipality, and can also be applied
towards near real-time quality assurance and system improvement.

The fire chief recommends approval.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED
Request Council approval of an Amendment to the current Intergovernmental Agreement for
Emergency Medical Services between the City and Milwaukee County, reflecting distribution on
$1M in additional funding in 2022, and Agency participation in the data sharing and consolidation
initiative.

Fire: AJR



AMENDMENT NO. 3
TO INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT

FOR EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS)

This Amendment No. 3 to Intergovernmental Agreement for Emergency Medical Services (EMS) (this "Amendment No. 3")
is entered into as of January 1, 2022 (the "Amendment Effective Date"), by and between Milwaukee County, a Wisconsin
municipal body corporate ("County"), and ("Municipality"). Each of the County and Municipality also may be referred to
herein as a "Party" and both may be referred to collectively as the "Parties."

RECITALS:

Whereas, County and Municipality entered into that certain Intergovernmental Agreement Between Milwaukee County and
L_] For Emergency Medical Services(EMS)
(2017 - 2018), effective as ofJanuary 1, 2017 (the "Agreement"), relating to the provision ofa coordinated delivery system of
EMS services to the residents ofthe County and others; and

Whereas, County and Municipality previously extended the term of the Agreement via Amendment #I: Intergovernmental
Agreement for Emergency Medical Services (EMS) (2017-2018) dated July 21, 2017, through December 31, 2020 pursuant to
Article VII(E) thereof; and

Whereas, County and Municipality previously extended the term of the Agreement via Amendment #2: Intergovernmental
Agreement for Emergency Medical Services (EMS) (2017-2018) File 20-197 dated May 28 2020, through December 31,
2025 thereof; and

Whereas, representative of the strength ofthe County EMS System, as proven by the robust system-wide collaboration and
response to the COVID-19 pandemic; and

Whereas, the Parties desire to further amend the Agreement as more particularly set forth herein;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration ofthe covenants and promises hereinafter made, the Parties herebyagree as follows:

1.0 AMENDMENT TO COUNTY FUNDING REQUIREMENTS. The subsections of Article V arehereby amended as
follows:

a. The ICC EMS Formula Schedule in Article V(B) will be used to calculate the funds to be distributed to
the agencies providing ALS Transport capability. Annual amounts will be specified m Exhibit A. The funding
is calculated using a formula that takes into consideration population, service area, and ALS call volume.
Amendment #3 adds an additional $1.5 million dollars to the Agreement for a total contract amount of $3.0
million dollars.

b. The recognition of a new ALS transporting agency will be defined as the agency being considered
operating at full practice as an ALS agency for more than 90 days (3 months), will be eligible for County funding
111 the next quarterly payment.

2.0 AMENDMENT TO MUNICIPALITY REQUIREMENTS. This will serve as written notice to Milwaukee County of
, 's commitment to participate in the data sharing and data consolidation to
advance the health of the county. The intent of the information sharing clause is not to serve as a qualifier to receive the
additional distributions. It is intended as a good faith effort to gather consistent information to improve system-wide operations.
Additional sources of data that contribute to the advancement ofhealthcare operations in Milwaukee County will be proposed
to MCAFC for consensus.

3.0 MISCELLANEOUS. Except as modified by this Amendment No. 3, the Agreement remains in fullforce and effect. In the
event of a conflict between the terms of the Agreement, Amendment No. 2, and Amendment No. 3; Amendment No. 3 shall
prevail. Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined hereinshall have the meanings provided for them in the Agreement.

Sgnature Page Follows



WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement on the day, month, and year above written

FOR MILWAUKEE COUNTY: .-
BY _ DATE BY _ DATE _

NAME _

TITLE _

DEPARTMENT _

REVIEWED AS TO INSURANCE
REQUIREMENTS:

NAME _

TITLE _

TAXPAYER ID No. _

APPROVED WITH REGARDS TO COUNTY
ORDINANCE CHAPTER 42:

BY _

Risk Manager
Office of Risk Management

DATE BY _ DATE _

Director
Communtty Business Development Partners

APPROVED AS TO FUNDS AVAILABLE
PER WISCONSIN STATUTES §59.255(2)(e):

APPROVED REGARDING FORM AND
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS:

DATE _

Milwaukee County Comptroller
Office of the Comptroller

BY _

Corporation Counsel
Office of Corporation Counsel

DATE _BY _

REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY THE COUNTY
EXECUTIVE:

APPROVED AS COMPLIANT UNDER
§59.42(2)(b)5, STATS.:

DATE
David Crowley, County Executive
Office of the County Executive

BY _

Corporation Counsel
Office ofCorporation Counsel

DATE _BY _

DAS-Procurement Approved Template 4/19/2021



MILWAUKEE
COUNTY

EXHIBIT A

Per Article V of the Milwaukee County Office of Emergency Management EMS Division (OEM-EMS) agreement with
~--------------~ effective January 1, 2022 ("Agreement"), OEM-EMS will annually submit a
notice of available EMS subsidy funds to each ALS transport capable municipality.

For 2022, a total of $3.0M will be available to the Milwaukee County EMS System. OEM-EMS will retain $500,000 to
invest into the EMS system as a whole in collaboration with all EMS agencies. The remaining $2.5M will be awarded to
the ALS transport capable municipalities via the 30%-30%-40% Formula.

The funds assigned to the following BLS transport agencies will be awarded to the following ALS transport agencies:

Cudahy: 100% offunding to South Milwaukee
St. Francis: 100% offunding to Milwaukee
Hales Corners: 40% offunding to Franklin, 40% to Greenfield, and 20% to Greendale.

84,931/

212,704/
16,069/

219,131
s8,357%

132,387/
1,260,291]

15,286]
6,757/

1,282,333/
226,276/
170,425]

4

155,590,
29,341}

i
' tit $
·+ f$. 152,685]
·» {$ 173,474j

•
IEEE1

·$
IRENIsIE3ETA.s
IEEE
EEETs

'$'$an }$
owl 3$

}$•i$

30-30-40 FORMULA

TOTAL

Greendale
Greenfield

SERVED SERVED TRANSPORT
Franklin 36,816 39% $ 29,390 3458 143% $ 107,313 76% $
Hales Corners 7,720 08% $ 6,163 3192 13% $ 9,906 N/A

TOTAL 44,536 47% $ 37 772 15 6% $ 117,219 76% $
14,85 % $ 5 . % 2 .6
37,803 4 % $ 1 % 3 I 1 0% $

Milwaukee 577,222 61.4% $ 460,800 96.184 39.8% $ 298,491 50.1% $
St. Francis 9,161 1.0% $ 7,313 2.569 1.1% $ 7,972 N/A
west Milwaukee 4,114 0.4% $ 3,284 1.119 0.5% $ 3,473 N/A

TOTAL 590,497 62.9% $ 471,397 99872 41.3% $ 309,936 50.1% $
North Shore 67,591 72% $ 53,958 2427 100% $ 75,318 97% $
Oak Creek 36,497 39% $ 29,136 28.45 11.8% $ 88,290 53% $
South
Milwaukee 20,795 22% $ 16,601 4 83 20% $ 14,989 24% $
Cudahy 18,204 19% $ 14,532 4 772 20% $ 14,809 N/A

TOTAL 38,999 42% $ 31,133 9 602 40% $ 29,798 24% $
Wauwatosa 48,387 5.2% $ 1 7 $
West Allis 60,325 64% $ 48,158 1 3 47% $ 35,316 90% $

TOTAL 939,489 100.0% $ 750,000 241.676 100.0% $ 750,000 100% $ 1,000,000 $ 2,500,000

For Municipality:

by Date

For Milwaukee County Office ofEmergency Management:

by Cassandra Libal, OEM Director Date



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Approval ofan Agreement with QRS Group for the
Construction Buildout ofAdditional Inspection

DepartmentWorkspace in an amount up to $20,000

MEETING
DATE

4/4/2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.3.
BACKGROUND
The Fire Department's 2021 budget contained an appropriation in the amount of $20,000 to facilitate
the buildout of an unfinished storage and furnace room into an approximately 12' x 12' workspace for
a part-time Fire Inspection position.

The original proposal, in the amount of $16,930 was approved by council in September of 2021.
However, due to contractor availability and materials backlog, this project was delayed into 2022.

ANALYSIS
The project includes creation of a demising wall around existing HVAC unit to create additional office
space for the new Fire Inspection position, that is shared between Franklin and Oak Creek. The project
also includes dropped ceiling installation, floor and wall finishes, as well as lighting and minimal
electrical work. Current 2022 cost has increased slightly to $17,025 (from $16,930 estimate in 2021)
However, as explained below, the total appropriation carried forward from 2021 is still sufficient to
cover project costs along with any unexpected contingencies.

FISCAL IMPACT
$16,930 of the funding for this project was encumbered under a purchase order utilizing 2021
budgeted funds based on the proposal and approval last year, and the remaining $3,070 is being
requested for carryover as part of another item at this meeting. The project will be charged to
Account Number 41-0221-5822, Capital Outlay Fund - Fire Departments Building Improvements.

RECOMMENDATION
The fire department is seeking approval of a Remodeling Contract with QRS Group with updated
terms and pricing.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Approval of an Agreement with QRS Group for the Construction Buildout of Additional Inspection
Department Workspace in an amount up to $20,000.

Fire: AJR



0
QRSGRP

2244 W. Bluemound Rd. Suite D
Waukesha, Wl53186
262-691-2895

PROPOSAL #21036 - Franklin Firehouse - March 29, 2022

Bob Manke
8901 W Drexel Ave.
Franklin WI 53132

We hereby submit specifications and estimates for:

office 414-425-1420
mobile 414-429-1733
rmanke@franklipwi.gov

1. Protect floor with Ramboard.
2. Build walls to enclose furnace using steel studs. Walls to be built to bottom of steel

joists.
3. Insulate interior of furnace room with mineral wool sound insulation.
4. Build wooden chase to cover AC line.
5. Electrical work, to include:

A. Eliminate (3) existing fluorescent light fixtures.
B. Furnish and install (3) 2' x 4' LED light panels on existing switch.
C. Furnish and install (1) keyless light fixture in new furnace closet on (1) switch.

6. HVAC work, to include:
A. Remove supply duct.
B. Add supply to office with 2' x 2' drop in.
C. Add return air box for 16" x 25" x 1" filter rack.
D. Tie return air from office to return air box.

7. Sprinkler work, to include:
A. Modify existing fire sprinkler protection to provide coverage per code.

• Note - New sprinklers will be chrome semi-recessed in areas with grid ceilings.
8. Furnish and install new 5/8" drywall at office side of new walls; tape, and finish

smooth. Furnish and install new 5/8" drywall at inside of furnace room; no tape, no
finish.

9. Repair rest of walls.
10. Prime and paint all new walls.
11.Furnish and install new:

A. grid and tile ceiling to match existing office
B. (1) steel frame and (1) solid core oak door
C. (1-1/2) pair of hinges
D. (1) AL50PDSAT626 Schlage commercial lock
E. weatherstripping, threshold, and sweep for door into furnace room

12. Paint new frame; stain and finish new door.
13. Furnish and install new vinyl base at new wall only.
14.Clean up and dispose of debris.

Franklin Firehouse 3/29/22 Page 1 of 2



DocuSign Envelope ID 374E7E26-177F-44E3-BCC3-56CAA5A9608C

Investment: $17,025.00

Notes
• QRS to coordinate and obtain permits.
• Removal or relocation of hidden mechanicals in walls other than specified will be done

at extra cost.
• Quote does not include any flooring work.
• Sherwin Williams paint figured; ProMar 200 for walls, ProMar 400 for ceilings, and

ProClassic for trim / woodwork.
• Credit card payments are accepted for your convenience. Any payment processed by

credit card will be charged a fee.
• The proposed work and relationship will be subject to and governed by a Remodeling

Agreement to be executed by both parties. QRS is under no obligation to perform any
work until that Remodeling Agreement is signed by all parties.

liDocuSigned by

±:2.
3/30/2022

Franklin Firehouse 3/29/22 Page 2 of 2



UOGUolJHI LIIVUIUU IL O/4L{LO-It tr-4IC3-DO-OOHHOHJOUO>

Bob Manke
8901 W Drexel Ave.
Franklin WI 53132
PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

2244 W. Bluemound Rd. Suite D
Waukesha, Wl53186
262-691-2895

REMODELING AGREEMENT

office 414-425-1420
mobile 414-429-1733
rmanke@franklinwi.gov

#21036 - Franklin Firehouse - 3/29/22

This Remodeling Agreement (including the following Terms and Conditions, the "Agreement") is between the above
Owner ("Owner," whether one or more) and ORS Group, Inc. ("QRS"; together with Owner, the "Parties"). The Parties
agree that all Work (as defined herein) shall be performed by ORS in accordance with all the provisions of this Agreement
and the following additional documents that are incorporated herein (collectively, the "Contract Documents"): (a) this
Agreement; (b) Attachment A- "Scope of Work, Drawings and Technical Specifications, and Construction Materials"; (c)
Attachment B - "Notice of Construction Defects and Right to Cure", "Lien Notice", and "Notice of Consumer's Right to
Receive Lien Waivers"; and (d) Attachment C -"Notice of owner's Right of Rescission", "Written Acknowledgment of
Receipt of Pamphlet", "Insurance Coverage Questionnaire", and "Notice of Cancellation".

1.WOKTO BE PERFORMED: Except as specified elsewhere in the Agreement, ORS shall furnish all labor, materials,
tools, supplies, equipment, supervision, and other services as described on Attachment A, which shall be known as the
"Work."

2.COMPENSATION: As full consideration for the performance by ORS of this Agreement, Owner shall pay to ORS the
amount of $17,025.00 plus an additional amount for consultation work as described below (as it may be adjusted by
Change Orders, the "Contract Price") in accordance with the "Payment; Lien Waivers" provision of the Terms and
Conditions. Owner shall pay each invoice in full within ten (10) calendar days of the date of QRS's Invoice. QRS will
invoice in accordance with the following schedule: $5,675.00 due upon signing: balance due upon completion.

ORS shall provide Owner with up to one (1) hour of on-site consultation per week with (a) QRS's project manager and
(b) QRS's foreman. Any consultation work in excess of one hour per week may be billed at the prorated rate of $80.00
per hour.

3.SCHEDULE: QRS will commence the Work approximately the first week of June. 2022 and Substantially Complete
(as the term is defined in this Agreement) the Work within 20 Working Days (the "Contract Schedule"). A ''Working Day"
shall be any day of the week, except Saturdays and Sundays, between the hours of 7:00 A.M. and 6:00 P.M.

By signing this Agreement, Owner represents and warrants that (i) Owner has legal authority to execute this Agreement,
and (ii) Owner has reviewed and approved each of the Contract Documents. This Agreement shall become binding only
after execution by QRS.

r-:DocuSlgned by

et.
3/30/2022

***PLEASE REVIEW THE FOLLOWING TERMS AND CONDITIONS"

Franklin Firehouse Remodeling Agreement 3/29/22 Page 1 of7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 374E7E26-177F-44E3-BCC3-56CAA5A9608C

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1)Relationship of the Bartles QRS's relationship to Owner is that of an
independent contractor

2)Authorization. Owner expressly authorizes QRS to contact Owner's
homeowners' insurance company Owner acknowledges that QRS has
not at any time represented, negotiated, offered to represent or
negotiate, or otherwise advertised to represent or negotiate on behalf of
Owner with respect to any insurance claim for any damage sustained by
Owner's property

3)l1Vmk.. QRS agrees to fully execute the Work. QRS Is responsible for,
and shall have sole control of the management, construction methods,
sequences, and coordination of the Work, unless expressly stated to the
contrary

4)Commencement of Work Owner warrants that the structure(s) on
which QRS is to work are in sound condition and capable ofwithstanding
normal construction work, equipment, and operations QRS's
commencement of the Work Indicates only that the surface of the
structure(s) appears satisfactory to QRS for the attachment of any
construction materials QRS is not responsible for the construction,
undulations, or structural sufficiency of the structure(s) or other
contractor's work or design

5)Substantial Completion The Work shall be deemed to have reached
"Substantial Completion" on the earlier of· (a) the date when the Work is
sufficiently complete in accordance with this Intended purpose; or (b) the
date the occupancy permit or other approval, if any, is issued by the
appropriate government authority

6)Construction Materials. All materials and work shall be furnished in
accordance with normal industry tolerances for color, variation, thickness,
size, weight, amount, finish, texture and performance standards Owner
understands and agrees that because of the natural characteristics of
building materials, perfect surface finishes cannot be achieved, wood
shrinks, swells and checks; plaster, drywall, masonry, asphalt and
concrete crack, peel and pit, and condensation normally occurs on
materials exposed to moist air. Excess materials delivered to Jobsite
and/or materials not physically attached to the structure after Substantial
Completion shall remain the property of QRS

7)Material Cost Escalation. Certain construction materials are
sometimes subject to unusual price volatility due to conditions that are
beyond the control and anticipation of QRS If there is a substantial price
increase for any of the materials used in the Work, which occurs between
the date of this Agreement and the date when Work commences, QRS
will provide notice to Owner, and the Parbes shall execute a Change
Order pursuant to the section of this Agreement entitled "Changes Due to
Owner Requests "

8)Access to. lork; lobsite Responsibility. Owner shall provide electric
power, water, and toilet facilities for use by QRS and its subcontractors/
employees, unless otherwise indicated herein Dry and secure storage
for all construction materials and QRS's equipment shall also be provided
by Owner All utility connections and service charges, if any, shall be
paid by the Owner Furthermore, Owner agrees to maintain access for
QRS at the Jobsite, to keep the Jobsite free from obstructions (including
snow and ice) and conflicting work, and to obtain permission for QRS to
gain access through adjacent property, if required by QRS to do so
Owner shall be solely responsible for all risk, shall hold QRS harmless
and free of liability, and shall compensate for any damages or costs
arising out of such access, the failure to maintain such access or
Owner's failure to provide dry and secure storage for construction
materials and QRS's equipment Owner agrees to remove/protect/
secure any personal property (including any pets) and fixtures at or near
the Jobsite If Owner asks QRS to move personal property or fixtures,
Owner agrees to hold QRS harmless for any damage caused to or by the
personal property or fixtures during relocation QRS shall take
reasonable efforts to avoid damage to existing property and in such
event shall not be responsible for damage to Owner's property, including
existing walks, concrete steps, driveways, curbs, septic tanks, sewer
Imes, water or gas lines, telephone or electric lines, lawn, shrubs, trees,
and other interior and exterior plantings or vegetation, whether caused in
whole or in part by QRS, its employees or subcontractors, or their
suppliers in the performance of work at the Jobsite Owner shall be
responsible for all landscaping and other site conditions at the Jobsite,
including finish grading, drainage, sol slippage or sinking, repair of
equipment access routes and the construction area, or any other site
conditions that may exist Unless stated elsewhere in the Contract
Documents, if material or labor furnished or installed by Owner or third
parties contracted by Owner cause loss of time or additional work for

Franklin Firehouse Remodeling Agreement 3/29/22

QRS, then the Owner shall pay to QRS the costs resulting from any
additional work or lost time ORS is not responsible for failures or
defects that result from work by third parties, whether occurring before or
after commencement or completion of the Work.

9)Permits and Inspections Except as otherwise specified, QRS shall
procure all permits, licenses, certifications and other applicable governing
authority requirements and inspections. Owner shall, as necessary,
provide ORS with assistance in obtaining such permits and access for
inspections

10)0wnar's FumJshad Labor and Materials If the Contract Documents
provide that Owner is to furnish labor or materials, Owner agrees that
Owner's performance of the Work shall be performed within a reasonable
time after notice from QRS that such Work must be performed or such
materials furnished Owner's Work and/or materials shall be acceptable
to the QRS and any applicable government authorities If Owner is
furnishing materials, QRS will notify the Owner of the date said materials
are to be installed, and the Owner-furnished materials must be on the
Jobsite and ready for installation on the date given. If such materials are
not on the Jobsite or ready for installation on the date given, then ORS
may charge Owner a trip charge of $125 for each return trip it or its
subcontractors must make to install the tardy Owner-furnished materials
Owner is responsible for determining that any party other than QRS or
QRS's subcontractors who performs any of the Work and/or supplies any
materials carries all insurance required to be carried by QRS hereunder
Owner agrees to hold QRS harmless from any and all claims, demands,
actions, liabilities, losses, and damages, including attorneys' fees and
costs incurred, to persons or property arising out of or related to any act
or omission of Owner or any contractor {other than QRS), subcontractor
or agent of Owner in, on or about the Jobsite in connection with the
performance of the Work or the furnishing of materials. Owner is
responsible for the protection of, and/or repair of, damage to any
materials or labor supplied by Owner or Owner's other contractors,
subcontractors or agents Any of the Work performed by Owner or
Owner's other contractors, subcontractors or agents, or any damage to
the Work caused by the Owner or Owner's other contractors,
subcontractors or agents is excluded from QRS's limited warranty

11 )Insurance. QRS shall maintain commercial general liability insurance
and such other insurance as required by applicable law ORS will furnish
a certificate of insurance evidencing the types and amounts of its
coverage, upon request. Owner shall maintain {or cause to be
maintained) homeowners' insurance covering all physical loss expressly
including, but not limited to, coverage for collapse, fire, wind damage,
hail, theft, vandalism and malicious mischief Owner shall be separately
responsible for paying any deductible under Owner's homeowners'
insurance policy QRS shall not pay or rebate all or any portion of
Owner's insurance deductible. Owner assumes all risk of loss during
construction, except for the intentional acts of QRS, its subcontractors or
employees.

12)Environmental Hazards, QRS is not responsible for any
environmental hazards identified or released at the Jobsite Owner
acknowledges and understands that hazardous materials may be
released by QRS during QRS's performance of the Work. Owner
expressly acknowledges ownership of any waste generated at the
Jobsite, whether or not such waste contains hazardous materials
Except to the extent of the QRS's intentional acts or omissions, Owner
shall be solely responsible for all risk, shall indemnify and hold QRS
harmless and free of liability, and shall bear the costs of any removal or
correction of environmental hazards at the Jobsrte. As required by the
Lead-Based Paint Renovation, Repair and Painting Program Rule (as it
may be amended from time to time), QRS shall furnish Owner with a
copy of the United States Environmental Protection Agency's pamphlet
entitled "The Lead-Safe Certified Guide to Renovate Right. Important
Lead Hazard Information for Families, Child Care Providers and
Schools," prior to the commencement of the Work affecting surfaces
containing lead hazards, and Owner shall acknowledge receipt of said
pamphlet by signing the "Written Acknowledgment of Receipt of
Pamphlet" (at Attachment C). Furnishing the pamphlet and
acknowledgment of receipt by Owner includes the extent of QRS's duties
to Owner with regard to the hazards of lead-based paint and materials.

13)Lead: PGBs Asbestos: Microbial Hazards This Agreement is
based on ORS not discovering or coming into contact with lead, PCBs,
asbestos-containing materials ("ACMs"), or mold, mildew, fungi, or other
similar microbial conditions {collectively, "Microbial Hazards") QRS is
not responsible for any expenses, claims or damages arising out of the
presence, disturbance or removal of lead, PCBs, ACMs, or Microbial
Hazards ORS shall be compensated for additional expenses resulting

Page 2 of 7



uocuIgn Envelope IL 3/4E/EZ6-1/(F-44L3-bG3-56CAA5A9608C

from the presence of lead, PCBs, ACMs, or Microbial Hazards. Owner
agrees to indemnify ORS from and against any liability, damages, loss,
claims, demands or citations arising out of the presence of lead, PCBs,
ACMs, or Microbial Hazards. If QRS discovers lead, PCBs, ACMs, or
Microbial Hazards while performing the Work, QRS shall stop the Work In
the affected area and give prompt notice to Owner. QRS shall not be
required to perform any of the Work in areas containing lead, PCBs,
ACMs, or Microbial Hazards until Owner has had all affected areas
remediated and provides cert ification to QRS of same.

14)Microbial Hazards anlng and Acknowledgme nt Microbial
Hazards occur naturally in the environment and may be present, during
or after the performance of the Work, in the indoor air and/or on the
interior surfaces of the Owner's building including, without limitation, wall
cavities, attics, windows, basements, and on the exterior surfaces of the
Owner's building, or any part thereof. Concentration of moisture in the
Owner's building may result from cooking, showering, or similar activities
inside the Owner's building, the outside atmosphere, and/or the design,
construction means and methods, and/or the building materials used in
the construction of the Owner's building. This moisture may cause the
growth, release, discharge, dispersal, or presence of Microbial Hazards
which, at certain levels, can cause deterioration of building materials,
damage to property, health hazards, personal injuries and other irri tant
effects such as, without limitation, skin Irri tation, respiratory problems and
allergic reactions Because Microbial Hazards occur natura lly in the
environment, Contractor cannot eliminate the possibility that Microbial
Hazards may grow in, on, or about the Owner's building. Owner may
minimize these effects by proper utilization and maintenance of heating,
cooling, dehumidification, or venti lation equipment, interior maintenance
and cleaning, and exterior maintenance such as, without limitation,
proper grading, landscaping, painting, and caulking. OWNER HEREBY
ACKNOWLEDGES THAT OWNER HAS BEEN INFORMED OF SUCH
DEFECTS AND OWNER ASSUMES ALL RISKS OF DAMAGE,
PERSONAL INJURY, OR DESTRUCTION OF OR INJURY TO the
Owner's building THAT MAY ARISE AS A RESULT OF OR IN ANY
WAY CONNECTED WITH THE PRESENCE OF Microbial Hazards IN,
ON OR ABOUT THE OWNER'S BUILDING.

15)BurledObstructlons: Site Conditions. Owner shall prior to the start
of any Work clearly mark all property boundaries and known
underground utilities, obstructions, and tanks If during the performance
of the Work, any unmarked or underground objects are damaged and
cause any additional damage, Owner agrees to indemnify and hold
harm less ORS its officers, agents, and employees from any and all
claims, suits, demands, liability, losses or costs, including attorneys' fees,
resulting or occurring to any and from all persons, firms or other legal
entit ies arising out of or in any way connected with the damage to any
concealed or unmarked underground object . QRS shall not be
responsible for any damages to any buildings or objects which are
adjacent to the Jobsite QRS does not guaranty against the settl ing of fill
around the foundation, utility latera ls or other excavated areas not
contracted for and within the scope of the Work

16)Noise Fumes and Emissions Owner is aware that the performance
of the Work produces noise and dust and may result in the emission of
fumes, vapors and odors Owner shall hold QRS harmless from claims
from third part ies relating to noise, dust, fumes and odors that are
emitted during the performance of the Work.

17)Payment· Lien Waivers, Owner shall timely make all payments in
accordance with the payment deadlines set forth on the first page of this
Agreement. lime is of the essence as to all terms of payment. Owner
agrees that, in addition to other remedies available to QRS, if payment is
not made within three (3) calendar days of the date it is due, QRS shall
be entitled to a service charge of 1 5% per month on all past due
amounts, plus, if not contrary to any law, all costs of collection, including,
without limitation, attorneys' fees Final payment shall constitute
acceptance and approval of all Work and a waiver of all claims by Owner,
except those arising from liens or QRS's limited warranty. No retention
shall apply to any of the Work Unless requested by Owner, QRS shall
furn ish lien waivers to Owner at the time final payment is made

18)Marketing. Owner agrees to allow QRS to display a company sign at
the Jobsite Owner agrees to allow ORS, or an agent thereof, to take
photographs of the Jobsite before, during, and after completion and use
such photographs for, without limitation, marketing and promotional
materials. Owner shall not be entitled to any compensation for QRS's
display of its sign or for use of such photographs in QRS's marketing and
promotional materials.

19)Changes Due to Owner Bequests. QRS may request or the Owner
may request changes in the Work or the timing or sequencing of the
Work that impacts the Contract Price or the Contract Schedule Al l such
changes shall be memorialized in a written Change Order to be signed
by the Part ies prior to QRS's commencement of any new work. The

Franklin Firehouse Remodeling Agreement 3/29/22

part ies agree that Change Orders may be documented via email
correspondences and approved by the part ies electronically. For
changes in the Work, the Parties shall negotiate an adjustment to the
Contract Price or the Contract Schedule in good faith and conclude
negotiations as expeditiously as possible. Where QRS seeks input and
Information from Owner prior to Issuing a Change Order, Owner shall use
reasonable efforts to respond to QRS's request for information within
three (3) calendar days. Acce ptance of a Change Order by Owner shall
not be unreasonably withheld.

20)Changes Due to Unforeseen Conditions. In the event that QRS
encounters unforeseen or unexpected conditions at the Jobsite, QRS will
immediately cease Work and bring to Owner's attention. QRS shall not
be required to resume working on the affected area until a written
Change Order is signed by the Parties The Part ies shall negotiate an
adjustment to the Contract Price or the Contract Schedule in good faith
and conclude negotiations as expeditiously as possible Acceptance of a
Change Order by Owner shall not be unreasonably withheld
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Contract Price includes a
"contingency" line item, Owner grants QRS the right to deduct costs
incurred because of an unforeseen condition from the contingency
without Owner's approval so long as such deduction is not in excess of
the remaining contingency funds.

21)ork Stoppage. Should work be stopped by any public authority or
Owner for more than fourteen (14) calendar days, QRS may terminate
this Agreement and collect for the value of all Work completed and
materials ordered as of the date the Work is stopped, plus QRS's
anticipated profit under this Agreement. Owner's failure to sign Change
Orders or Owner's refusal to make any payment required by this
Agreement, or any other cause beyond QRS's sole control, shall also be
cause forwork stoppage by QRS.
22)Delay. Work shall be completed within the number of working days

stated in this Agreement and the Contract Schedule, unless delay occurs
due to work stoppage, adverse weather conditions, labor disputes,
changes by Owner, work performed by Owner (or Owner's other
contractors or subcontractors) or governmental authorities, unavailability
of materials or supplies, unavoidable casualties, accidents,
environmental hazards, Owner's failure to make payments as required by
this Agreement, Owner's failure to timely make selections, or any other
cause beyond QRS's sole control. Any such delay shall extend the time
of performance or, at QRS's option, term inate this Agreement if the cause
of the delay cannot be resolved within fourteen (14) calendar days
Where QRS elects to extend performance, QRS shall also be entitled to
additional payment to reflect any increased cost of labor and/or materials
QRS will give written notice to Owner of any delay, said notice stating
any adjustment to time of performance or cost of the work necessitated
by the delay.

23)Disputes. This Agreement shall be deemed to have been made in and
governed by the laws of the State of Wisconsin Any legal suit or action
will be venued, in QRS's sole discretion, in a Wisconsin Circuit Court for
the county in which the Jobslte is located or in the Waukesha County
Circuit Court . QRS may also, in QRS's sole discretion, elect arb itration in
place of civil litigation, without regard to whether litigation has been
commenced by Owner. If arb itra tion is selected by ORS, all disputes
related to this Agreement shall be resolved through binding arbitration
conducted by the Milwaukee NARI Home Improvement Council Ethics
Board pursuant to its ru les, and Owner shall execute all documents and
take any actions necessary to commence such arbitration proceedings
The decision of the Milwaukee NARI Home Improvement Council Ethics
Board shall be final regarding all matters submitted to it and may be
enforced in any court having jurisdict ion thereof in accordance with the
Wisconsin Arbitration Act. No matter which method of dispute resolution
is selected, QRS shall be entitled to recover attorneys' fees and all other
costs and expenses incurred in prosecuting, defending, or collecting from
any dispute with Owner, whether such costs and expenses are incurred
by QRS before orafter any judgment or arb itration award.

24)Lilted Warranty. QRS warrants that all materials and equipment
shall be new unless otherwise specified, of good quality , in conformance
with the Contract Documents, and free from defective workmanship and
materials. QRS further warrants that the Work shall be free from material
defects not intrinsic to the design or materials required In the Contract
Documents Notwithstanding the foregoing, QRS's limited warranty does
not include (a) remedies for defects or damages caused by other
contractor's work or design, (b) normal wear and tear, including, without
limitation, defects or damages caused by the natural expansion or
contraction of the construct ion materials, or defects cause by natural
expansion or contraction of existing materials that impact the Work, (c)
use for a purpose for which the Work was not intended, (d) improper or
insufficient maintenance, (e) any materials furn ished by or modifications
performed by Owner or Owner's other contractors, subcontractors or

Page 3 of7



DocuSign Envelope I 374E7E26-177F-44E3-BCC3-56CAA5A9608C

agents, (f) abuse, or (g) defects in products, equipment, systems, or
materials covered by manufacturers' warranties Homeowner is
responsible for maintaining humidity levels of 30 - 50% in their home
year-round for best performance of new products. Unless requested by
Owner at the time a product, equipment, or system is installed, QRS shall
assign to Owner all manufacturers' warranties which apply to products,
equipment, or systems incorporated into the Work at the time of final
payment Any products, equipment, systems, or materials which are
covered by a manufacturer's warranty shall be covered exclusively by
that warranty This limited warranty shall commence upon
Substantial Completion and run for a period of twelve (12) months.
This limited warranty will not apply to the Work if QRS does not receive
final payment from Owner. This limited warranty shall extend to Owner
alone and automatically terminates upon Owner selling or vacating the
Jobsite. The warranty period is not extended by QRS's correction of
defective work or materials pursuant to this limited warranty If Owner
discovers any defect to which QRS's limited warranty applies, Owner
shall notify QRS in writing, identifying the defect and the relevant
Agreement requirement which has been violated, within fourteen (14)
calendar days of Owner's discovery of the defect. QRS shall promptly
correct the defect at its own time and cost and bear the expense of
additional services required for correction of the defect. If Owner does
not provide QRS notice of a defect within fourteen (14) calendar days of
discovery or does not permit QRS the opportunity to examine, test or
correct the defect as reasonably requested by QRS, Owner waives the
QRS's obligation to correct the defect. THERE ARE NO OTHER
WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING IMPLIED
WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A
PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR HABITABILITY. QRS IS NOT LIABLE
TO OWNER FOR INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES OF
ANY SORT. THE OWNER'S SOLE REMEDYAGAINST QRS FOR THE
QRS'S PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK AND ANY DAMAGES
ARISING OUT OF IT SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE LIMITED
WARRANTY SET FORTH ABOVE.

25)Safety. QRS is not responsible for the safety of any persons (or pets)
on the Jobsite other than its employees Owner agrees to indemnify and
hold QRS harmless from claims for personal injury by persons or entities
that Owner has allowed or authorized to be on the Jobsite

26)Indemnification, To the fullest extent permitted by law, Owner shall
indemnify and hold harmless QRS and its employees, subcontractors,
and material suppliers from all claims for bodily injury and property
damage, other than property Insured, including attorneys' fees, costs,
and expenses, but only to the extent such claims are the result of the
negligent or intentional acts or omissions of Owner, Owner's agents, or
anyone invited to the Jobsite by Owner.

27)Termination of Agre ement, If this Agreement constitutes a "consumer
approval transaction" (as such term is currently defined in Section
423.201 of the Wisconsin Statutes), this Agreement may be canceled
unilaterally by the Owner by notifying QRS in writing within three (3)
calendar days after signing this Agreement. In the event of cancellation
of this Agreement by the Owner thereafter, QRS shall receive
compensation from the Owner for all costs of labor and materials and all
other expenses incurred to that date plus QRS's anticipated profit under
this Agreement. QRS may unilaterally terminate this Agreement at any
time for any reason, including, without limitation, Owner's failure to timely
pay and Owner's failure to timely make decisions relative to the Work
Owner shall remain obligated to pay QRS for the value of all Work
completed and materials ordered as of the date of termination

28)lmp alrment of Credit. If Owner is or becomes insolvent, or is unable
to pay Owner's debts as such debts mature, or files or has filed against
Owner a bankruptcy, insolvency, or similar petition, or fails to pay any
debt arising hereunder to QRS on time, or if QRS in good faith doubts the
ability of Owner to pay, QRS may, at its option, either (a) terminate the
Work at any time thereafter, and Owner shall thereupon pay for all of the
Work performed and the materials supplied to date plus QRS's
anticipated profit, or (b) discontinue the Work until such time as the
Owner (i) has paid QRS in full for the all of the Work performed and the
materials supplied to date, (ii) has agreed to pay QRS for any additional
costs incurred because of such discontinuance, and (iii) upon such other
terms or conditions as may be imposed by QRS to ensure the payment
for the Work

29)Protection of Personal Property/Fixtures and lobslte Owner
agrees to remove or protect any personal property or fixtures inside and
outside the Jobsite QRS shall not be held responsible for damage to
Owner's personal property or fixtures if such damage occurs due to
Owner's failure to remove or protect personal property or fixtures Owner
agrees that QRS shall not be held liable for any minor damage to the
Owner's landscaping or building

30)Clean Up, Upon completion of the Work and pnor to Owner's final
Franklin Firehouse Remodeling Agreement 3/29/22

payment, QRS shall dispose of all rubbish and remove all equipment and
materials belonging to QRS from the Jobsite and leave the Jobsite in a
reasonably neat and clean condition QRS is not, however, responsible
for housecleaning following normal construction activities
31)Agreement Interpretation The Contract Documents and

subsequently issued Change Orders are essential parts of this
Agreement, and a requirement occurring in one Is binding as though
occurring in all If any inconsistency or ambiguity is believed to exist
among any of the Contract Documents, the inconsistency or ambiguity
shall be resolved by applying the following order of precedence (a) the
Agreement (including modifications by Change Orders), (b) the scope of
work and specifications described or referred to in Attachment A: (c) the
drawings or plans described or referring to in Attachment A; and (d) any
other documents not already listed comprising the Contract Documents
If any inconsistency or conflict arises between this Agreement and any
proposal provided by QRS to Owner, the terms and conditions of this
Agreement shall govern
32)Non-/alver, Failure by QRS to insist upon strict performance of any
terms or conditions of this Agreement or failure or delay in exercising any
rights or remedies provided herein or by law shall not be deemed a
waiver of any right of QRS to Insist upon strict performance hereof or any
of its rights or remedies in the future

33)Severablll ty, The provisions of this Agreement are severable lf any
provision shall be determined to be illegal or unenforceable, such
determination shall have no effect on any other provision hereof, and the
remainder of this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect so that
the purpose and intent of this Agreement shall still be met and satisfied

34)Owner' s. Einancla l Wherewi thal Eyd ence of Eunds Owner
represents and warrants to QRS that Owner has sufficient funds to timely
compensate QRS for QRS's performance of the Work If requested by
QRS, Owner shall timely provide to QRS evidence of Owner's ability to
pay for QRS's services, in form and substance acceptable to QRS

35)Miscellaneous All terms, conditions and provisions of thus Agreement,
which by their nature are independent of the period of performance, shall
survive the cancellation, termination, expiration, default or abandonment
of this Agreement. Thus Agreement is intended by the Parties as a final
expression of their agreement and as a complete and exclusive
statement of its terms, there being no conditions to the full effectiveness
of this Agreement except as set forth in thus Agreement. No course of
conduct or dealings between the Parties shall be the basis of any claim
that any provision of any of the Contract Documents has been amended
or modified Owner acknowledges that Owner read and understood all of
the provisions of this Agreement The signature of either Owner (If more
than one) subsequent to the signing of thus Agreement shall be sufficient
for all purposes under the Agreement, including Change Orders, if any

Page 4 of 7



ocu>gn Envelope IL 3(4EVE26-177F-44E3-BCC3-56CAA5A9608C

ATTACHMENT A
SCOPE OF WORK, DRAWINGS AND TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS, AND CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS

Scope of Work

See Proposal #21 036 - Franklin Firehouse - 3/29/22

Drawings and Technical Specifications

See Plans from Architects I Planners, S.C. dated 1/11/22

Description of Construction Materials (e.g, type, grade, quality, size or quantity}

See Proposal #21036 - Franklin Firehouse - 3/29/22

List of Intended Subcontractors to be Used on Project

JF Ahern 414-921-7580

Dave Perry Heating & Cooling 262-966-1959

Deppisch Electric 262-893-7616

If drawings, specifications, or other documents have been furnished to QRS, Owner warrants that they are sufficient and
conform to all applicable laws and all building codes and agrees to indemnify QRS from and against any liability,
damages, loss, claims, demands or citations due to defects in any such drawings, specifications, or other documents, or
any building code violations, unless such liability, damages, loss, claims, demands or citations result from a deviation by
QRS from the drawings or specifications without authonzaton from Owner.

Franklin Frehouse Remodeling Agreement 3/29/22 Page 5 of 7



DocuSign Envelope ID. 374E7E26-177F-44E3-BCC3-56CAA5A9608C

ATTACHMENT B

Notice gf Construction Defects and Right to Cure.

QRS and Owner agree to comply with Section 895.07 of the Wisconsin Statutes with regard to the requirements of Notice
and the Right to Cure before commencing any formal proceeding to resolve the dispute. Owner acknowledges that a
copy of the State of Wisconsin brochure of Notice and Right to Cure has been given to the Owner at the time this
Agreement is signed. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Agreement, QRS shall not be obligated to replace or
repair any Defect (as defined below) or pay for the replacement or repair of the same if such Defect is caused, in whole or
in part by: (a) Owner's improper or insufficient maintenance of the Jobsite or improper or insufficient maintenance or
operation of any of the Jobsite's systems; (b) natural occurrences beyond QRS's control; (c) an act or omission of Owner
or any third parties not under QRS's control, including, but not limited to, work performed by Owner or by other contractors
hired by Owner; or (d) normal wear and tear and normal usage. In the event of an alleged construction or design defect
arising out of or relating to the Agreement, including, but not limited to, breach of warranty, incomplete Work, or any other
condition of the Jobsite (each a "Defect"), Owner shall notify QRS through written notice of any such Defect, regardless of
the cause or source, promptly upon Owner's discovery of the Defect. Owner shall thereafter provide QRS with
reasonable access during normal working hours to the Jobsite for the purpose of investigating, testing and examining the
Defect. If the Defect is covered by QRS's limited warranty, then QRS shall be given reasonable access to the Jobsite and
a reasonable amount of time to, in QRS's sole discretion, replace or repair the Defect. THE REPLACEMENT OR
REPAIR OF THE DEFECT SHALL BE OWNER'S SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE REMEDY FOR A DEFECT. OWNER
WAIVES ANY AND ALL INCIDENTAL AND CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF OR IN ANY WAY
RELATING TOA DEFECT.

Lien Notice

AS REQUIRED BY THE WISCONSIN CONSTRUCTION LIEN LAW, QRS GROUP, INC. HEREBY NOTIFIES OWNER
THAT PERSONS OR COMPANIES PERFORMING, FURNISHING, OR PROCURING LABOR, SERVICES,
MATERIALS, PLANS, OR SPECIFICATIONS FOR THE CONSTRUCTION ON OWNER'S LAND MAY HAVE LIEN
RIGHTS ON OWNER'S LAND AND BUILDINGS IF NOT PAID. THOSE ENTITLED TO LIEN RIGHTS, IN ADDITION TO
QRS GROUP, INC., ARE THOSE WHO CONTRACT DIRECTLY WITH THE OWNER OR THOSE WHO GIVE THE
OWNER NOTICE WITHIN SIXTY (60) CALENDAR DAYS AFTER THEY FIRST PERFORM, FURNISH, OR PROCURE
LABOR, SERVICES, MATERIALS, PLANS OR SPECIFICATIONS FOR THE CONSTRUCTION. ACCORDINGLY,
OWNER PROBABLY WILL RECEIVE NOTICES FROM THOSE WHO PERFORM, FURNISH, OR PROCURE LABOR,
SERVICES, MATERIALS, PLANS, OR SPECIFICATIONS FOR THE CONSTRUCTION, AND SHOULD GIVE A COPY
OF EACH NOTICE RECEIVED TO THE MORTGAGE LENDER, IF ANY. QRS GROUP, INC. AGREES TO
COOPERATE WITH THE OWNER AND THE OWNER'S LENDER, IF ANY, TO SEE THAT ALL POTENTIAL LIEN
CLAIMANTS ARE DULY PAID.

Notice of Consumer's Right to Receive Lien Waivers

If a consumer requests lien waivers, a seller of home improvement services must provide lien waivers from all contractors,
subcontractors, and material suppliers. This Wisconsin law protects consumers from having liens filed against their
property. Lien waivers prevent the filing of a hen on your home in the event that a contractor does not pay suppliers or
subcontractors. For more information about home improvement law, contact the Wisconsin Consumer Protection Bureau
at 1-800-422-7128 or www.datcp.wi.gov.

Franklin Firehouse Remodeling Agreement 3/29/22 Page 6 of 7



DocuSign Envelope ID 374E7E26-177F-44E3-BCG3-56CAA5A9608C

ATTACHMENT C

NOTICE OF OWNER'S RIGHT OF RESCISSION

If this Agreement constitutes a "consumer approval transaction" (as such term is currently defined in Section 423.201 of
the Wisconsin Statutes), you, the Owner, may cancel this transaction at any time prior to midnight of the third (3rd)
business day after the date of this transaction. Cancellation must be in writing.

WRITTEN ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF PAMPHLET

I, Owner, have received a copy of the pamphlet, The Lead-Safe Certified Guide to Renovate Right: Important Lead
Hazard Information for Families, Child Care Providers and Schools, from ORS informing me of the potential risk of lead
hazard exposure from renovation activity to be performed in/on my dwelling unit. I acknowledge having received this
pamphlet before the work began.

INSURANCE COVERAGE QUESTIONNAIRE

To the best of my knowledge, the work contemplated by the "Remodeling Agreement" with QRS Group, Inc.
IS IS NOT related to a claim under a property insurance policy.

NOTICE OF CANCELLATION

IF YOU ARE NOTIFIED BY YOUR INSURER THAT THE CLAIM UNDER THE PROPERTY INSURANCE POLICY HAS
BEEN DENIED IN WHOLE OR IN PART, YOU MAY CANCEL THE "REMODELING AGREEMENT" WITH QRS GROUP,
INC. BY PERSONAL DELIVERY OR BY MAILING BY FIRST CLASS MAIL A SIGNED AND DATED COPY OF THIS
CANCELLATION NOTICE OR OTHER WRITTEN NOTICE TO QRS GROUP, INC. AT 2244 W. BLUEMOUND RD.,
SUITED, WAUKESHA, WISCONSIN, AT ANY TIME BEFORE MIDNIGHT ON THE THIRD (3RD) BUSINESS DAY
AFTER YOU HAVE RECEIVED THE NOTICE FROM YOUR INSURER. IF YOU CANCEL THE "REMODELING
AGREEMENT," ANY PAYMENTS MADE BY YOU UNDER SUCH "REMODELING AGREEMENT," EXCEPT FOR
CERTAIN EMERGENCY WORK ALREADY PERFORMED BY QRS GROUP, INC., WILL BE RETURNED TO YOU
WITHIN TEN (10) BUSINESS DAYS FOLLOWING RECEIPT BY QRS GROUP, INC. OF YOUR CANCELLATION
NOTICE.

____ I CANCEL THIS CONTRACT.

OWNER:

Date

Date

Franklin Firehouse Remodeling Agreement 3/29/22

ORS GROUP, INC.

Date

Page 7 of 7



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Municipal Judge Recommendations to Renew Approval
of the 2013 Municipal Court Bail Bond Schedule and
Approve $1,321.00 "Enhanced" Bond Amount on all

Milwaukee County District Attorney's Office
Referrals made to the City

MEETING
DATE

April 4, 2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.4.
Attached is a copy of a memo from the Municipal Court Judge dated January 21, 2022 stating that the current
(standard) Municipal Court Bail schedule from 2013, which is also attached, should not be changed and
requests renewed approval of that particular schedule. Upon approval, the 2013 the bail schedule shall continue
to be posted in the offices of the Municipal Court Clerk and the Police Department.

Additionally, attached is a copy of a memo from the Municipal Court Judge dated December 8, 2021 setting the
amount of $1,321.00 as a bond amount on all Milwaukee County District Attorney's Office referrals made to
the City for issuance as municipal citations. The Municipal Court Clerk will accept and file specially marked
DA referral citations issued by the Police Department which will show an "enhanced" $1,321.00 bond deposit
amount. Municipal Court staff has been experiencing an increase in referrals from the DA's Office for charges
originally submitted to the DA for criminal prosecution which were then referred back for civil action as a
citation. These DA referrals relate to events more aggravated than those which would typically cause issuance
of a citation. The "enhanced" bond amount is consistent with the general nature and severity of the event
referred. Upon approval, the enhanced bond amount shall be posted in the offices of the Municipal Court Clerk
and the Police Department as part of the standard Bail Bond Schedule.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to renew approval of the 2013 Municipal Court Bail schedule, pursuant to the Municipal Court Judge
memo dated January 21, 2022;

and

A motion to approve the "enhanced" bond amount of $1,321.00 for DA's Office referrals made to the City for
issuance as municipal citations, pursuant to the Municipal Court Judge memo dated December 8, 2021.

Legal Services Dept EMB, Jw



#+rnktin
E. WIS CO NS I N

TO: City ofFranklin Common Council

RE: Municipal Bail Schedule

City of Franklin Municipal Court
9455 West Loomis Road, Franklin, w153132

Phone: 414-425-4768 • Fax: 414-858-2625

Frederick F. Klimetz, Municipal CourtJudge

January 21, 2022

I have reviewed the current Municipal CourtBail Schedule and do not recommend any changes to
the schedule/listed bail amounts. I respectfully requesta renewed approval of the current Municipal Court
Bail Schedule as it was last approved in 2013.

Sincerely,

FRANKLIN MUNICIPAL COURT

3..£2l-j
Frederick F. KIimetz
Municipal Judge



**C
0·,.:.
IU....
G
(IJ
.c....
C
0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0

0 IJ') 0 LO IJ') 0 00 .... IJ') 0 0 IJ') 0 0 00 0 (0 0 0 IJ') 0 0 LO 0 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
"' .....

t ) <f (") C") ¢ 00 g ..... ¢ 0) C") (0 t 00 f C") f ....... ..... 0) LO ...... (0 00 t ....... "'¢ f < ....... 0 N
N 3 IJ') C") C") y 0) 00 y C") C") ....... y 0) l ....... V 00 00 C") (0 00 ....... 0) N 00 N N 00 IJ') C")

cu ........... IJ') ....... IJ') IJ') ..... EA- 4 ..... t IJ') C") ..... EA- ...... (A- ..... ...... N ¢ IJ') N C") (A- ..... ...... ..... ...... ..... ...... N
I- (A- (A- EA- EA- EA- EA- <( EA- EA- EA- EA- (A- (A- (A- (A- (A- (A- (A- (A- (A- (A- (A- (A- (A- (A- (A- (A- (A-

0 0
I- ..... 0fl)

::::, C")

5 .....
C")
(It

IC
0

+:.
('(I
0·s; -.... (I)0Q) ('(I (I)g ....X a, -cu Q) en

fl).I:. Cl) C: C: 60 ('(I g e 0
Q) C: C:,_ ..c 0 0 .Q::, C: 0 z ............ Q) - cag "' fl) 0E - ...... Q) E- C: Q) ·s;.E 9 0 ~ - fl) ::::,...... fl)u:: & "' .E C: C: fl) Q)

6Q) (I) e ::=: C: "O ::c 6 -E o C: C: 0.. .... 0 0 0 Q) ca C: C:
Cl)

(I) 0 c (I) :::i g :!:: Cca C: ca 0 ..c ...... 0 0 0
Cl) e g_ ::::, :.:; 0 - 0.. m 0 C: :-9 Q) ·o +:. +:. +:.

(I) g "' :.:; 0
~ E ..c 0 .Q ..c Cl) ca ca ca(I) 0 "' 0 "' z E (I) E iii <( (I) g ·o 2 0 0 0Cl) 0 ... 9 ... Q) fl) fl) N

2 2 E e a 5 C:
~ ca "' C: .... fl) 0.. z ·s; ·s; ·s;

0 0 5 0 ::::, e 6 "' <( <( 0o fl) 6 g ::::> g (I) z Cl) 06
0 8 +:. fl) 0 g ...J C: g fl) g C: # ~ e (I)g "C "' m u:: ::, a, ..c g fl) s (I) ca 0(I) (I) g I - C: C: - C: ~ fl) ...... ..0 ..0 ..0(/) (.) (I) ..c C: 0 E 0.. "O <U Es ·m ::!. e (I) e 0 Cl) +:. - ca Jg± ::, ca m - "' ·;:; 5 3: - "' C: fl) 0 "' (I) a.. z Cl) ca ...... ca

0 fl) C: - "O 0
...... ......

Q) 0 (I) (I) 0 .5 0 C: e 0 - O m ..0 ge ..0 fl) 0 C: en C: (I) ...... ·o ·o ·o
..0 ·o 0.. - <( 0 0 0 E ..c C: I ... (.) 5<( 0 E O E ::::, C: .5 - ::::> I I fl) 0.. (I) 0) £ £ I\

% 0 C: 2 0 0 (I) >, 0 .... 0) A - fl) "' ...... C: - t (0
0 0 "' 0 5 g .9 0 "' C: C: s (I) 0 ,_

0o ...... ::J "t: O - ... C: .....
<(

I ..c 0 .lll:: ± 0 gi C: x- 06 0o0 ~ (I) "C .... "' 0

~
z ..0 z z "' < ~ ~ ..c - 0 0 C: ::::> ii:i (I)

Cl "' :!: ::J ~ C: 0 0 ·;:: h ~
.c

9 ~
·;::

C: 0 Q) e .... ..c fl) (I) ?£ (I) ± 3: "C ·x ·;:: -- Cl) t:,C: z ..... "C - :::::s ~ :::::s ..... .$ "C • ..!.. ::,:::: C: ::::, fl) 0 0 g fl) e fl) :::::s 9,_
~ :::::s 9 0 ::J C: .!!!"O ca ca ca "' 0 0 .... :::::s (I) fl) .!!! "' c m a ~ ...... ·o 0z co co co 0 0 0 0 O 0 0 5 0 0 LL LL LL LL u:: u:: LL C: :::i ...J ...J ~ ~

g co
=It 7 - • 67 G -IJ') 0) C") ..... ..... N ...... ...... LO ...... ) ..... ...... ..... 6.s 5 5 , ,..;..;. '50 ...... N t 0 0 0 ...... IJ') ..... 0 l 00 0 .....
:::, o N t ('I') 0 00 ..... ...... r-..: i:o- 0) ...... ...... ) ....... ...... ...... 0 M .......
l'IS 3 v 0 t 00 ¢ IJ') ¢ t LO ¢ 3 IJ') ....... ....... -a; 00 v 3- 0) 0) v 0) t 0) 0) 0) 0) 0) ....... (0 (0 N 0)en 0) 0) ...... l ..... ...... (0..... IJ')

N

=It
Q) "' "' G e (!) N
(,) ...... 00 (J) ...... M 00 M ...... N 0 IO - "'lit IO (J) 0 0 M
C: g (J) IO IO I"';" 9 ,. g - M IO I"';" ,. ...... I"';" IO ...... ...... M IO co - co M ,. - ......
l'IS I I I I I I I I I I M I I I I I I I g
C: M 0 M M c9 M M M 9 M 9 9 9 0 co 0 co I M 00 M M 9 M M IO

00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 ...... 00 ...... M M ...... 00 00 00 00 00 "'lit M
"'O - - - e - - - e e e - e 00 - - - - - - N 00... - e -0

VI...
(IJu
!f
0

ci:
**



0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 LO 0 0 LO LO 0 0 0 LO LO 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 .... 0
<O ("') ¢ ¢ <O ("') ("') <O 0) LO 0) o 0) oi r-,.. t 0) co 0) IO <O

cu ¢...... 0) ...... ...... t 0) IO ¢ 3 t 0)

%r-,.. 00 ...... ) 00 00 N N r-,.. o9 M N ) r-,.. 3 co 3 r-,.. 9 co 3 N «> ..... N 9 r-,.. 9 co N 03 r--- N
o3 N 3 t N N ..... ..... o) LO IO ..... t O ¢ LO % 0 t LO f ..... ..... 0) ..... t 03 t IO ..... t ) ......
ti')- ti')- ti')- ti')- ti')- ti')- ti')- ti')- ti')- ti')- ti')- ti')- ti')- ti')- ti')- ti')- ti')- ti')- ti')- ti')- ti')- ER- ER- ER- ER- ti')- ER- ti')- ti')- ER- {fl- <( {fl--(/):::,

5

ecu....
Q)
>

(/) Q)

"O CCl
32 C .g
.c :::,

000 .... .c
(/) C) .... 0
:::, 'c 0 0 0
0 cu C <((/)

:§ 0 - ·- 00
ni LL .c Q) ~ - ......

ni 0 (/) 0·;:: v C eQ) en 0 "O C- 5 C e - Q) 0cu :::::. E Q) .4 C (I) .:t:: a <(
~ :::, cu C ni 0 0 £ ..0 ....± ~

(I) C - - .c E Q)g
~

0 .... 0 (/) a, 'c' g "OQ) (/) (I) :::, ..... g cu :::, C- 6 ..0 cu (/)ci:i ....
~

"O ]at (/) g a. =>C Q) .... 2 0 (I) g C.... 0 g .... ~ '6G CCl C
(/) 0 (/):::, C' E C C cu a. g ..... (I) (/) .!!1. 0 -CCl 0 g - ..... .... 00 > 0 0 C cu C 0 (/) cu 0 C 0 0 cu - :::,- 0 :!: +::: +::: ·u; a. cu C C cu C ·;:: C0 cu cu :::, 0 e e ~ .c a. Q) g 0 OC 8 :.a e (/)

C: ·- 0 - - .c 5 - g0) 0 0 5 ~ ·c:: cu a. (/) "§ l 'G cu 'G' :::, 0 "O 5C 0 :::, 5 5 cu .... cu .0 > a, 6 Jg :s. .e 0 ~ Q) O (/) a.Q) C 0 0 ~ 0 C - - n 6 (I) ::c - (/) a,6 C (I)
"O O a. g_ I 0 (I) (I) & (I) C ;: (/) 0I - - I- C (/) U) U) U) C U) 0 U) z cuC C e .E - - 0 U) ~ U) U) :::, g u, (/) 0cu • .9 (/) .... I 0 0 (I) 8 C C :s C C

(I) C C C a. .c C C s 0 ....J 0 0
I g Q) £ .... .!!1. U) u5 e g .... e e E cu e e 0 0 g e 0 0 a. cu0. Q) Q) Q) C C Q) <( t-: .... C .0 .00::: cu => :::, .2 - -l E 0 a. a.. .Q 0 o g 0 0 Q) 0 0

(I) .... 0 0 - 0 0 :::i g 0C 5 ·u; - C: .c LL I- g <( U) (/) (/)C g 0 (/) en C I-Q) 0 (/) .... .... en (/) 5 "O C I- "O "O ..... "O - en enQ) :::, C Q) ~ en "O "O - Q) "O g E 0 3 g s -.!2> 0 (I) Q) (I) (I) .9 C - C 0 C - C5 .... C G .... .!!! .... .... .lll::: 0I - 0 o "O C en U) en ! co ·m ! c2 C. N o) t- !o t- (I)
0) C Q) en ~ .... "O "O 0 en en en ::c 0 en (I) E - - 0 (I) Q) en O Q)- n G E 9 9Q) 0 .0 .0 cu cu (I) Q) .c 0 0 0 :::, Q) (I) (I) ·- :::, .c .c C (/)z z 0 0 a.. a.. a.. a.. a. a. a. a.. a. 0::: 0::: 0::: en en en en I- I- I- I- => =>

- w £ 0 N co ..... -<"! - <( ..... < E CClO N ..... C) ..... o) t0 0 ...... - ! ..... 0 0 t N...... 0) .... ..... [ .... N ...... :s..... -..i: -..i: N ..... 3 t t LO ..... 0 ..... <"! <O 0)N 0 r--- O u .....0) 0 o) ..... 3 r---..... LO <O <O LO r-,.. LO ..... l r-,.. • co o) r-,.. LO r-,.. 0) 03 o3 ...... 0 tt t v t ..... .... o) t t 0 ..... 0 ¢ t 3 LO0) ¢ ..... ..... 00) 0) 0) l ..... .o v 0) 0) LO 0) 0) ) LO N..... 0) <O ..... ..... t 0) 00 ..... LO t N0) co 0 '8; N ..... N 0) .....
0) ..... ..... ..... .....

It) ¢ It) "'l;f' iC 0 C") C N N It) ...... 0 00 "' N 0
N 00 'I""' N C") 'I""' 'I""' 'I""' C") 'I""'N It) It) C") N ~ 'I""' It) co It) co 'I""' C") t-;- co N ......0 I I I 9 I I t; I 'I""'I I I I 00 ...... C") N ...... I I I I 00 I 00 I I I 00 ......C") I M M M C") C") C") C") M C") C") C") M M0 It) M 0 C") I I It) It) M It) I

00 00 00 00 C") 00 C") 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 9
'I""' 00 'I""' 'I""' 'I""' 'I""' N N 00 00 00 'I""' 'I""' 00 'I""' 00'I""' 'I""' 'I""' 'I""' 'I""' 'I""' 'I""' 'I""' 'I""' 'I""' 'I""' 'I""'

'I""' 'I""' 'I""'

C
0
+:icu...u
Ill
5
Ill

"\..cuu±
0
+I
n,
+Icu
Ill
cu

.Cl
0
+I
cu...
n,
ocu_;
+I
0r
Illcu
Ill
Ce
0...g
n,cc
cu

.Cl
n,

.!:::!a
C.
n,
cu

.Cl
>r
E
+Irccu
E
Ill
Illcu
Ill
Ill
<C
cu
Ill
::J

.Cl
<C
uzcu
E
0
Cl
0
0
ci
i.n
-v,.



Franklin
st

TO: Franklin Police Department

City of Franklin Municipal Court
9455West Loomis Road, Franklin, WI 53132

Phone: 414-425-4768 • Fax: 414-858-2625

Frederick F. Klimetz, Municipal CourtJudge

December 8, 2021

WIS C O NS I N

RE: Citations Referred for Charges from the District Attorney's Office

Upon the approval of the Common Council, the Office of the Municipal Court Clerk shall begin
processing Milwaukee CountyDistrict Attorney's Office referrals as municipal citations which shall show a
bond deposit amount of $1,321.00. The Municipal Court Clerkwill accept and file specially marked District
Attorney referral citations issued by the Franklin Police Department with a $1,321.00 bond deposit
amount.

Sincerely,

FRANKLIN MUNICIPAL COURT

mi;
Municipal Judge



Blank Page



APPROVAL

REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Approve a One-Year WENS Service Agreement
Extension with lnspiron Logistics LLC for the City of
Franklin Emergency Notification System for the
Period 4/22/2022 - 4/21/2023 in the amount of $10,650

MEETING
DATE

4/4/2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.5.
BACKGROUND
The City has contracted with Inspiron Logistics LLC since 2010 for its Wireless Emergency Notification System
(WENS). The City currently has a very stable and functioning WENS system through Inspiron Logistics where
they have continued to improve their software and any such software upgrades are extended to us with the
basic service. The WENS System is an integral and important component of the Health Department's public
communication strategy and requirements as well as is used by the City's emergency services departments. The
current term of the City's WENS System is set to expire on April 21, 2022.

ANALYSIS

The current agreement includes the following extension language:

"At the end of the Two (2) years' service, this agreement will automatically renew for an additional year unless
customer provides written notce ofTermination with no less than Sty (60) days' notice following the end of
that year's con tract period."

Attached is a WENS Service Agreement Extension with Inspiron Logistics extending the current contract from
April 22, 2022 through April 21, 2023 that identifies the new contract extension agreement dates and pricing,
with all other terms and conditions stated in the original contract remainin g the same.

City staff recently explored various functionality capabilities that were thought to be missing from the WENS
System, however learned a lot about the system, including the fact that the capabilities are not missing but
instead just not implemented or used by staff in the past. It did become clear that staff could use additional
training on the system as well as explore optional upgrades that will further benefit City operations.

This one-year extension of the agreementwill allow staff to determine if the system will work effectively for the
City in the long-term, or if a new system should be considered.

From 2010 through 2021, annual costs for the System remained at $9,600. This year's higher price is solely based
on the increased costs of the carriers, Inspiron Logistics' vendors, and is beyond Inspiron Logistics' control.

FISCAL IMPACT
The one-year extension cost, for the period April 22, 2022 through April 21, 2023, is $10,650. $6,400 is funded by
the Health Department's "Public Health Emergency Preparedness" Grant (25-0411-5410-7034), and the other
$4,250 is funded through the Information Services Budget (01-0144-5410), both of which were budgeted for 2022.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends a one-year extension of the current WENS agreement with Inspiron Logistics LLC.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED
Motion to approve a one-year extension of the WENS Service Agreement with Inspiron Logistics LLC for the
City of Franklin Emergency Notification System for the period of 4/22/2022 - 4/21/2023 in the amount of
$10,650; and, to authorize the Director of Administration to execute the agreement extension.

DOA-PS



WENS Service Agreement Extension

This letter of agreement extends the previous contract named WENS Service Agreement
and Attachment A with an original ending date of4/21/22.

The contract extension is between lnspiron Logistics LLC, an Ohio Corporation with
its principal office located at 1970 N. Cleveland-Massillon Road, #526, Bath, OH 4421 O
("Inspiron Logistics") and City of Franklin, 9229 W. Loomis Road, Franklin, WI 53132
("Customer"), the same parties named in the agreement attached.

NEW CONTRACT EXTENSION AGREEMENT DATES AND PRICING

It is agreed that these parties extend the contract from 4/22/22 -4/21/23.

Due to rising carrier costs, the pricing for this extension is $10,650 due on 4/21/22.
All other terms and conditions stated in the original contract will remain the same for the
new dates of this agreement extension.

INSPIRON LOGISTICS LLC

_ -- --,
? '-«<

By: "_-_-_-- _

Name: ScottDettling

Title: Managing Partner

City of Franklin

By: _

Name: _

Title:. _



SERVICE AGREEMENT

This WENS Service Agreement (this 'Agreement") rs entered mto, by and between Insp1ron Log1st1cs, LLC, an
Oho Corporation wath 1ts pnnc1pal office located at 4000 Embassy Pkwy, Smte 100, Akron OH 44333 ('·Insp1ron
Log1st1cs") and City ofFranklm("Customer") with its pnnc1pal office located at 9229 W Loomis Road, Franklin,
WI 53132 effective as of the 21Day of Apnl 2020 ("Effective Date")

1.3 Restnctlons Customer shall not (1)
a:,;1gn, transfer modify, create any dervatrve work of
or pnvate label the Platform, or reverse assemble
decompile, reverse engmeer or attempt to denve source
code or the underlymg ideas. algonthms, strucrure or
orgamzat1on of the Platform. (u) alter or copy, or permit
a thrd party to alter or copy, any part of the Platform,
(m) use the Platform to provide service bureau, tame
sharmg, access through a pubhc computer bulletm board
or shareware" distribution process. or other sImlar
services to third parties or (av) sublcense, dstrbute,
sell, assign, transfer, lease, rent, disclose, or provide
access to the Platform to any third party In no event shall
Customer use or access the Platform except as permitted
hereunder lnsp1ron Log1st1cs acknowledges that the

l.l Serves In consideration for the
payment of fees by Customer provided for heremn,
during the Term, Inspron Log1st1cs agrees to provide to
Customer the followmg services (collectively, the
Services")

a) Setup of a WENS Account
whereas Insprron Log1st1cs will use the Master
Admmnustraton to plug mn Customer specific
account parameters,

b) Pre-population of "Canned·,
Meta data which the Customer can elect to use
for testmg purposes or ontmue to use well mto
official productlaunch.

c) Use of WENS Account
prov1ding an emergency notficaton service
wllh funLtionahty and support, at a mmnmmum
as set forth mn Attachment A, which 1s
mcorporated herem by reference, and

d) Provide the Customer
trammg for mtemal personnel on the WENS
Platform and how to best utulze 1ts
funct10nahty

1.2 Updates From trrne to time Insprron
Logstcs may deploy m 1ts dscret1on updates. fixes or
solut10ns to problems or bugs m the Platform
(' Updates") lnsp1ron Logistics shall mcorporate and
provide the Updates at no add1t10nal charge to Customer
when and 1favalable

a) Approvals Customer shall be
responsible for the procurement of any and all
hcenses, approvals. qual1ficat1ons, permits or
certificates where reqmred m connection with
the Account

2.1 Approval of Account Insp1ron
Logistics grants to Customer a worldwide nght and
hcense durmg the Term to send the Content via the
Platform to Subscribers on the terms and cond1t10ns
descnbed herem Customer will be responsible for
ensunng that all Programs and the Content of such
Account meet the reqmrements ofth1s Agreement and
any addtonal Account requirements that Inspron
Logistics may reasonably establish from time to time
In the event Customer does not agree such
requirements are reasonable and mutually agreeable
language cannot be reached, this Agreement will be
termmated upon 15 days' notice by either party

Customer Responsibilities2.2

Account.

customer must comply With all W1sconsm Record laws

1.4 Ownership Inspiron Logistics 1s, and
shall remam, the lcensee or the owner of the Platform
and any related documentatJon and all related
mtellecrual property mcludmg without hm1tat10n, all
wpynght, trade secret, patent. trademarks and other
Intellectual property nghts therem and mcludmg any
denvat1ve works made dunng the Term or thereafter
("Inspron Logstcs Property') No property or
ownership nght or mterest m the lnsp1ron Log1shcs
Property or any part thereof 1s granted to Customer by
this Agreement, the nghts granted hereunder to
Customer bemg solely contractual m nature Customer
hereby assigns to Inspron Log1stucs all of tts rght. tutle
and mterest m any such Inspron Logstcs Property
Any and all meta-data ontamed wthm the Platform
such as () mdrv1duals personal mnformaton, (i) private
contact Information (m) system atrvtty or (1v) system
inventory 1s the property of the Customer and 1s subject
to the Freedom oflnformation Act of 1996 mn the event
the Customer 1s a public entity

2.

Scope ofServ1ces.I.

Page ]1

lnsp1ron Log1st1cs, LLC- CONFIDENTIAL
V2 8 January 2020



b) Directions Customer shall
promptly provide Inspron Logistics wth such
guidelines, prov1sons or other mnformat1on
(collect1vely, ·'D1rect10ns ') as may reasonably
be required by Inspuron Logrstucs from
Customer m order to perform the Services
Inspron Logstics may rely on any directions
provided to it by Customer and shall mcur no
hab1hty as a result thereof Insptron Logistics
shall not be reqmred to follow any Directions
not made or confirmed m wntng or email

2.3 Trademarks Customer hereby grants
to Insp1ron Log1stcs a non-exclusrve, non-transferable,
royalty-free hcense to use, reproduce, distribute and
display the trademarks service marks and logos of
Customer (the Customer Trademarks') dunng the Tenn
and solely m connection with the performance of the
Services under thus Agreement. Insptron Logstcs agrees
that all uses of the Customer Trademarks. mcludmg the
goodwll and reputation associated therewth, wall mure
to the benefit of Customer

3 Fees.

.l Fees. [n consideration for the
performance of the Services Customer shall pav
Inspiron I ogstus the following fees (collectively the

Fe.es")
a) Account Set-up Fees For each

Account, m considerntmn for the set-up services
provided by Inspiron Logstcs for each Account,
Customer shall pay Insp1ron Log1st1cs the fee set
forth under the headmg Account Set- up Fee'
on Schedule A attached hereto

b) Annual Account Maintenance
Fees For each account, m cons1derat1on for the
mamtenance of Account(s) and management of
the account, for each year durmg the Account
Term, Customer shall pay Insp1ron Logistics the
fee set forth under the headmg "Annual Account
Mamtenance Fee'on Schedule A attached hereto
for each account The Annual Account
Mamtenance Feefor each year shall be mnvoced
on an Annual basis and payable on the first day
of such year dunng the Account Term with
payment due pnor to the start date of the Account
or the renewal date

4 Term.

4.1 Term The term of this Agreement
commences on the Contract Term Date and contmues for
Two (2) Years thereafter (together with any renewal
term the "Term") as specified in Schedule A At the end
of the Two (2) years' service this agreement will
automatcally renew for an add1t10nal year unless
customer provides wntten notce of Termaton with no

Page [2

Inspiron Logistics, LLC - CONFIDENTIAL
V2 8 January 2020

less than S1xty (60) days' notuce following the end of that
year's contract penod ln the event. notice occurs after
the end of that year's contract perod but pror to the end
of the 60-day notice penod, Customer shall be liable for
and promptly pay a prorated share of the Annual Account
Mamtenance Fee In the event terms m which [nspITon
Log1st1cs 1s engaged wth rts vendors to provide service
to the Customer changes, an addendum will be created
and must requure a signature to continue the term of this
agreement. In the event either party does not agree with
the addendum and mutually agreeable language cannot
be reached, this agreement will immediately be
termmated by wntten notice by either party

4.2 Termuaton. In addition to and as
otherwise stated herem, this Agreement may be
termmated 1mmed1ately by either Party upon wntten
notice to the other Party 1f () the other Party files a
pet1ton in bankruptcy or otherwise becomes subject to
bankruptcy proceedmgs, or makes an assignment for the
benefit of its creditors, or (n) the other Party matenally
breaches its obligations under this Agreement and fails
to cure the breach wathmn thrty (30) days after receiving
wntten notice of such breach, or (ui) Insp1ron Logstcs
has more than two failures, each notlced m wntmg by
the Customer to adequately perform under the
Agreement. such as but not hm1ted to failure to
d1stnbute notifications promptly to all expected
residents and d1stnbution oi false messages or messages
sent m error, except that Customer operator error and
errors attnbutable to Thrd-party compamies, other than
Inspmm l og1st1cs, shall not be attnbuted to or
accountable to Inspuron Logust1cs

4.3 Effect ofTermnaton. Except for data
that 1s reqmred to be retamed by Recipient to comply with
applicable laws or governmental regulat10ns, upon any
termmnaton or expraton of thus Agreement for any
reason, each Party shall promptly return the other Party's
Confidential lnformatmn or to the extent permttted by
law destroy 1t as directed by the owner of the Confidential
Information and certify its destruct1on mn wntmng wtthm
ten (10) days. Any Sections that by their nature refer to
obhgatJons of a Party applicable beyond the Term shall
survive the expiration or termination of thus Agreement.
Upon the termmat10n orexp1rat10n ofth1s Agreement, the
Parties hereto agree that each Party shall unmedmtely
cease the uthzat1on of any trademarks of the other In the
event of termmaton m advance of the term of the
Agreement with cause, Customer shall be promptly
refunded a prorated amount of the service fee paid, which
payment amount shall equal the amount paid by the
Customer times a ratio calculated as the amount of days
left m the mnrt1al term (or then current annual term) of the
Agreement drvded by the number of days mn the mnutal
term (or then current annual term) of the agreement



5 Confidenttahty.

Labhtv, Warranty

5.1 Confidential lnformatton Each party
Rec1pwnt") acknowledges that m the course oflnsp1ron

Log1st1cs perforrnmg the Services each party may have
access to certarn Confidential Information of the other
party ( Disclosing Party ')

5.2. Duties Reap1ent shall mamntam the
Confidenlial Informatmn as confidenual, and \,\,Jll not use
tt 1n any way, for itself or for any th!fd party except as
reqmred to achieve the purposes of this Agreement, nor
disclose to any thurd party (except to Rec1pent s
employees, consultants contractors, attorneys,
accountants and other advisors (collectively
Representatives") who have a need to know such

Confidential Informatmn for purposes of Rec1p1ent's
performance of its obhgauons IIIlder th1~ Agreement and
who have been mformed of and are obligated to comply
wnh the confidenlial nature of such mformat10n and of
the terms of this Agreement) Rec1p1ent shall be
responsible for any breach of this Agreement by any of
1ts Representatrves. and agrees. at Its sole expense to take
reasonable measures to restram its Representatives from
proh161ted or unauthonzed disclosure or use of anv ol
D,sclosmg Partv s Confidential Information and to the
extent permitted by law will take reasonable precaut10ns
to protect the confidentiahty of such mformation at least
as stringent as 1t takes lo protet Its own Confidential
Informaton but m no case less than reasonablecare

5.3 Exceptmns The obhgatlons of the
Recipient speafied mn thus Section shall not apply to the
extent any Confidential Information (1) IS known to
Rec1p1ent pnor to receipt from D1sclosmg Party other
than as a result of Rec1p1ent s breach of any legal
ubhgat10n, (n) become:, known (mdependently of
disclosure by Drsclosing Party) to Recipient directly or
md1rectly from asource havmg the legal nght to disclose
such Confidential Informatmn, (111) 1s or becomes
pubhcly known, except through a breach of this
Agreement by Recprent, or (v) 1s required to be
disclosed by Recipient to comply wth applicable laws or
governmental regulatons. provided that Recipient grves
D1sclosmg Party reasonable pnor wntten notice of such
disclosure sufficient to pentDisclosmng Party to contest
such dsclosure

5 4 Ownership of Contidenttal lnformatton
The D,sdosmg Party 1s and shall remam the exclusive
owner of Confidential Informat10n and all mtellectual
property nghts therem. 1\fo hcense or conveyance of any
such nghts to the Rec1pent 1s granted or mmpled under
thts Agreement

Page 13

lnsp1ron Log1st1cs, LLC- CONFIDENTIAL
V2 8 January 2020

6.1 Luntation of Lablutv EXCEPT 4S
OTHERWISE PROVIDED IN THIS AGREEMENT
UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES WILL EITHER
PARTY OR ITS RESPECTIVE AFFILIATES BE
IIABLE TO THF OTHFR PARTY FOR ANY
INDIRECT INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL.
SPECIAL. PUNITIVE OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES
ARISING FROM THE SUBJECT MATTER OF THIS
AGREEMENT REGARDLESS OF THE TYPE OF
CLAIM AND EVEN IF THAT PARTY Il'\S BEE1\f
ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH
DAMAGES, SUCH AS, BUT NOT LIMITED TO
LOSS OF DATA, LOSS OF REVENUE OR
ANTICIPATFD PROFITS OR I. OST BUSINESS
EXCEPT FOR AMOUNTS OWED HEREUNDER
AND CLAIMS ARISING OUT OF SECTIO"IS l 3, 6
AND 8, IN NO EVENT SHALL EITHER PARTY S
TOTAL LIABILITY UNDER THIS '\GREEMFNT
EXCEED $19 350

6.2 Warranty

a) \lutual Warrantv l:ach partv
hereby represents and warrants that 1t () has the
full power ownership mterests and the nght to
enter mto this Agreement and to grant the nghts
and hLenses contemplated by this Agreement.
without the need for any consents approvals or
1mmllil1t1es not yet granted and without any
conflict with. breach ofor default under its articles
of mcorporatmn, bylaws or other charter
documents or any contract by which 1t 1s bound
and (u) has all reqmred licenses, consents,
approvals and permits from any person necessary
to perform its obhgat10ns under this Agreement.

b) Ispron Logsties Warranty.
lnspuon Log1st1cs hereby represents and warrants
that It shall perform all Services m a good and
workmanlike manner The foregomg shall not be
construed a» a warranty that the Platform of
Services wll functton without error

.tl Exclusive Remedies For any breach
of the warranties set forth m Section 6 2(b)
Customer s sole and exclusive remedy and
Inspron Log1sues' entire habhty shall be, at
Customer s d1scret10n. either (a) correct the error
that caused the breach of warranty (b) re-perform
the Services or (c) m the event that Insp1ron
Logstucs 1s unable to cure such breach,
termmatmn ofth1s Agreement



l Carner Rcstnchons/Rcqmrements

ll General Carner Restrctons Customer
acknowledge, and agrees that (1) one or more Carners
may obhgate Inspron Logistics to require certain
commitments and representat10ns from thlfd parties such
as the Customer seekmg to use such Carners' services
and/or equipment (n)Jnspiron Logistics may be reqmred
to deliver and obtam agreement to terms of use of the
Carners' serv1ces and/or one or more Carners' services
or equipment from Subscnbers. and/or (m) certam
Carers may place lumrtat1ons on the type, length.
max1mum rate of message flow or other characterst1cs
of Messages that such Carners will agree to handle at a
grven tame Inspron Logstucs wll provde written notce
to Customer of any Carner terms (mcludmg updates
thereof from time Lo lime 1f required by Carners) that
lnsp1ron Log1s1Ics 1s obligated to require Customer to
acknowledge and comply with Customer will promptly
notify Insp1ron Logistics 1f Customer determmes that
Customer 1s unw1llmg to comply or cannot comply with
such Carner's then-current reqmrements. Customer
acknowledge, that such noncompliance may result m
Inspron Log1stus suspens1on of Its performance of the
Services under this Agreement with respect to one or
more Camers or Content. In the event of a su5pens1on of
lnsp1ron Log1st1cs performance for more than 15 days.
lh1, Agreement may be termmated immediately upon
wntten notice by either party

7.2 Vessage Blockug. Customer
acknowledges that Carners reserve the nght to
mnvestgate any Subscnber complamts allegmg a
volaton by InspIron Logistics or 1ts content providers
(such as the Customer) of a Carner agreement or
volaton of requirements Imposed by Carers on
lnsptron Log1st1cs and/or its content providers Customer
acknowledges that 1f a Carner reasonably believes that
Insp1ron Logistics has volated such requirements,
Carner may refuse to transmit Messages and may
suspend or remove Insp1ron Log1st1cs' access to the
Carner network If Carners notify Insp1ron Log1st1cs of
any alleged v10lation, and lnsplfon Logistics does not
promptly remedy such v10lat1on (for example by denymg
access to a Subscnber sendmg mappropnate messages to
other Subscnbers), the applicable Carner may also
terminate its agreement concemmg access of the Insp1ron
Logistics Service to such Carrers network Customer
further acknowledges that 1f a Carner receives a
complamt from a customer or a govermnental or law
enforcement agency (' Outsde Complaint') clamming that
any Messages are unlawful, obscene, racially or
ethmcally offensive or depict sexually explicit matenals
or mfnnge on the mtellectual property nghts of others,
the Carrier may notfy Insptron I ogstics m wntng of

such Outside Complamt and. m add1t10n, may suspend
such Carer s connection wth Inspmron Log1sties until
such a llme as the complamt has been remedied or
otherwise resolved [nspron Logistics has agreed to
remedy any su<,h complamts a, promptly as is
commercially reasonable Customer acknowledges that
such remedies may Include wthout lmrtaton removing
the recipient ofmob1le-terminated messages from various
participant hists or blockmng certam access to the Servce
Customer acknowledges that the obhgations descnbed m
thus Section may prevent Inspiron Logstues from
performmg under this Agreement with respect to such
Carners

7.3 Damage to Carrier Property
Customer will not use or assist others to use Carrier
commumcat10ns services (or any eqmprnent or network
connect10ns used with such services) m any way that
damages Carner property or mterferes with or disrupts a
Carner network or subscnbers

7.4 Privacy. Customer acknowledges that
Carers cannot guarantee the pnvacy of Messages. and
accordmgly Customer agrees that neither [nsp1ron
Log1st1cs nor the Carers wll be hable to Customer or
any other party for lack of pnvacy orsecunty expenenced
when usmg the Inspiron Logistics Service Customer also
acknowledges that to the extent permitted by law
Carers have the rght to intercept and disclose any
transmissions over their faclrtes mn order to protect their
rghts or property mcludmg without l1mitat1on to protect
the efficient operation ofthelf networks or to comply with
governmental authontJes

7 5 Carrier Charges. Customer
acknowledges that for any Message ongmated by a
Carner Subscnber and transmitted to InspIron Log1st1cs
or another Carrier Subscnber, the Carrier Subscnber will
be charged at the text messagmg rate reflected n theIT rate
plan

7.6 No liability for actions by Carriers.
Customer acknowledges and agrees that, with respect to
Carrier commumcat1ons services (a) one hundred percent
of the Messages may not be delivered, and (b) neither
Inspron Logistics nor any Carer wll be lable to
Customer for any Messages deleted or not dehvered,
regardless of the reason for deletion or non-delivery
mcludmg, without lim1tat10n, message processmg or
transmtss1on errors. Neither Inspnron Logistics nor any
Carner makes any representations or warranties
regarding the quality, rehab1hty, timeliness or secunty of
the earner commumcations services or that they will be
error-free mteIT1Ipted and free from unauthonzed access
or that all messages will be delivered

8 Miscellaneous.

8.1 Techmcal Terms. Each word and

Page [4

Inspron Logstcs, LLC - CONFIDENTIAL
V2 8 January 2020



Amendment o modification
alteration or amendment of thus Agreement shall be valid
or bmndmng unless mn wntung and signed by both Parties

agree to do and perform and cause to be done and
performed such further and other acts and thmgs as may
be reasonably necessary or desrable m order to give full
force and effect to this Agreement

8 13 Counterparts Thi, Agreement may
be executed m any number of counterparts each of,,h1ch
when executed and delivered 1s an ongmal but all of
which taken together constitute one and the same
Instrument. Facsimile signatures shall be ons1dered
ogmnal signatures

8.11 Assignment SubJect to the followmg
sentence neither Partv may assign its nghts and
oblroatons under or transfer an, ol its mterest m this
Agreement without the pror consent of the other Party
Notwithstandmg the foregomg, either Party may assign
this Agreement or transfer any of its mterests to any
affihate of such Party, to a purchaser of all or
substantially all of such Party s assets, to a successor m
mnterest of such Party or as part of a
corporate reorgan1zat1on, consohdat1on or merger This
Agreement and each ol the prov1S1ons hereof shall mure
to the benefit of and be bmdmg upon the Parties and
their respectrve successors admmnustrators and
permitted ass1gns

terms cond1t1ons
between the Parties
hereof except those

Further Assurances The Parties

warranties,

8 12

representatmns,
expectat10ns or agreements
regardmg the subject matter
expressly set forth herem

nature No course of dealmgs or contmumg conduct of
either Party shall constitute a v.atver of or amendment to
any prov1s1on hereof All remedies, nghts, undertakmgs
obhgauons and agreements contamed m this Agreement
shall be cumulatJ-.e and none of them shall be m
hm1tatton of any other remedy nght. undertakmg
obhgat10n or agreement of either of the Parties

8.8 Severance. If any prov1s1on of thus
Agreement. or part thereof 1s held by a court of
competent jurrsduct1on to be void or enforceable rt shall
be deemed to have been severed from the Agreement and
the remamder of the prov1s1ons of this Agreement shall
thereafter contmue m full force and effect to the extent
permitted by law

8.9 Entire Agreement rh1s Agreement
contams the entire agreement between the Parties with
respect to the matters contamed herem and supersedes all
previous d1scuss10ns. negottatmns, understandmgs.
expectatmns. rcprcscntatmns and agreements between
the Parties There are no additwnal or collateral

8.3 Remedies Cumulative Unless
expressly stated herem, all rghts and remedies of a Party
under thus Agreement are mn addition to the Party s other
rights and remedes and are umulatrve, not alternative

8.4 Governmg Law; Junsdeton and
Venue. Thus Agreement shall be governed by and
construed m accordance with the laws of the State of
W1sconsm without takmg mto account its prmc1ple, on
conflicts of law The Parties mevocably consent to the
exclusive Junsd1ct1on and venue of the federal and state
courts located m Milwaukee County mn the State of
Wisconsmn for any ht1gat1on arsmng under this
Agreement. A Party seekmng a remedy or rehef
(mncludmng mnyunctrve or other s1mular equatable rehet)
shall not be reqmred to post a bond or other secunty
for costs as a foreign plamntff or defendant. as the case
may be m any ursducton or venue n which the
mrt1gaton may anse under thus Agreement

8.5 otces All notuces required or desired
to be delivered or served pursuant to th1; Agreement
may be delivered and served by electromc mail.
personal deliverv or by pre-paid. first class mail
addressed to the mtended rec1p1ent Party at either
thetr respective addresses first wntten above or the
electronic mail address hsted below. or at such
other address as may have been designated m
accordance wth the provsons of thus paragraph.
Notice Is effectve on receipt Electronc mal
notices shall be sent to the followmg tor each Partv
City of Franklin: JMatelska@Franklnw gov.
LHuenmg:mFranklmw1 gov
Inspron Logstcs SDettlmng,@InspironLog1stucs com

8 6 '\o Partnership Nothmg m this
Agreement 1s intended or wll be construed as creatmg a
relat10nsh1p of JOmt venture partnership or employment
between the Parties hereto and each of the Parties
specifically acknowledges and agrees that lheLr
relat1onsh1p 1s and shall be solely as mdependent
contractors Neither Party shall hold itself out contrary to
the terms of this Agreement, and neither Party shall
become hable for the representation. act or omuss1on of
the other Party contrary to the prov1s10ns hereof

U "-ioWa,ver Awmverbye1therofthe
Parties of any term or condltlon ofth1s Agreement many
mstance shall not be deemed or construed to be a warver
of such term or condiuon for the future or any subsequent
breach thereof whether or not of the same or similar

82 Currency Unless otherwise stated, all
dollar amounts referred tom this Agreement are mn Unted
States dollars

abbreviation whch has a techncal or trade meanmng Is
used m this ,\greement m accordance with such
recogmzed meanmg

Page IS

lnsp1ron Log1st1cs, LLC- CONFIDENTIAL
V2 8 January 2020



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto, by their duly authonzed representatives,
have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date.

INSPIRON LOGISTICS LLC

o, Scottttog-

Name ScottDettlmg

Ttle Managmng Partner

CITY OF FRANKLIN

-it4

Inspron Logistics, LLC CONFIDENTIAL
V3 1 January 2020

inspiron logistics
errergeencManger ·rttwtork



inspiron logistics
Ernergen.yManagementtetwvark >

SCHEDULE A

1. ContractTerm Date:

Start Date' 4/22/2020- End Date. 4/21/22

2. AccountSet-up Fee: (waived)

3. 24 Hour/365 Day Client Support (included)

4. Total Combined AccountMaintenance Fee and PaymentDue Dates

Vear 1·

Vear 2:

$9,600.00

$9,600.00

DUE· 4/22/2020

DUE· 4/22/2021

• Basic Package mcludes 70k completed voice calls
• 1/3 of unused voice calls from previous year rollover to the next contract year

The contents of thus matenal are confidential and proprietary to Inspron Logistics LLC and may not be reproduced
published or disclosed to others without the prior wntten consent of lnspiron Log1st1cs LLC



WENS SERVICES AGREEMENT
Attachment A System Funct10nahty and Support Page I

In add1ton to text, ema1l, and paging functonalty, Inspron Logistics will retain a voice-call service
capablty wll retan the abltty to dustmnguush tornado wammngs from tornado watches, will send out notices
only for those weather events offered by the City and selected by residents through an opt-In procedure, and
will retam the ability to send notices based on long1tude/lat1tude polygons as estabhshed by NOAA and not
based upon FIPS codes

Inspron Logstrcs wall
l) achieve a I 20-second tum-around time between receipt of a weather notice from NOAA and sendmg out a
weather notice to registered crtzens,
2) mamntamn at least 3 call centers at least two ofwhich must be m differentstates,
3) mamntamn an "Opt-mn" screen that a) allows for citizen self-registration of an unhmted number of phone
numbers and e-mail addresses per household or busmess, but which may reqmre multiple registrations by the
c1tzen, b) allows for unlmuted Customer mod1ficaton to the screen, as performed by InspIron Log1st1cs to
enable registration for different call groups such as but not lmmrted to spec1al tssue notifications c) allows the
City to determme what NOAA weather alerts are placed as a selectable option for its residents (example
Tornado Wammgs), and cl) enables the Customer to alter Customer's opt-In options durmg the year and to
"map" or transfer to other call groups, as Customer determines, cItzens who have prevously opted-In,
4) mamtam a "maximum number of characters per message" of not less than 160 characters,
5) notfy Customer mmmehately of any outages that could affect the ablty to transmit a message 1f an
emergency arose
6) mamntam an [magmg & V1deo Dehvery System available for Customer's use
7) cooperate wth the Customer who wll coordinate wth the local telephone company to determme an
appropr1ate per-minute call rate, whch shall begm at the default rate of 300 per mmute
8) mamtamn a crtzen "response" capability, which may serve as a survey feature,
9) provide unhm1ted, free outgomg text, pagmng, and email messages and services
I 0) provide on-lme, web-based trammg as reasonably requured by the Customer to ensure Customer can
mamtam properly tramed staff mn the event of employee turnover or expanded system use byCustomer,
11) mamtam a staffed customer support !me available to Customer 24 hours per day, every day and
12) mamtam a Customer-accessible mappmg tool allowing dustrbut1on of messages wthm geographically
mapped polygons

The Customer may
l )name brand the system at the Customer's d1scret1on,
2) determme the number to appear m Caller ID location,
3) provide monthly or as otherwise determrned by Customer, an update to the 91 l database, and Inspiron
Log1st1cs will update the WENS database accordmgly at no cost to Customer and w1ll 1mport and scrub the
database agamst previous versions
4) offer at no extra cost to the Customer or the part1c1patmg orgamzat10n, the use of the WENS system for
delivery of messages by other governmental and quasi-governmental organ1zat10ns associated with the City of
Franklin, mncludmng but not lurted to local school systems and the Customer's Boards, Comm1ss10ns, and
Committees, but excludmg hospitals and pnvate busmesses,
S) have an unlimited number of admm1strators and/or adm1mstratlon accounts and an unhm1ted number of
Groups and Sub Groups and
6) use screen mnformat1on or copynghted text descrbmng the service mn Customer's promotional materal
designed to market the service and generate "opt-in" clients without violating restrctons on such use as may
be set forth m the Agreement

Citizens may opt-mn land Imes and cell phones, mcludmg non-local numbers but must be a Umted States
number



Page 2

WENS SERVICES AGREEMENT
Attachment A System Funct10nahty and Support

A completed call 1s a call answered by a person or an answenng machme

The Customer 1s not charged for calls n error or calls necessary to provide "cancellat10n" or other corrective
notficaton "Not charged" means that such calls will not be counted as a completed call and will not be
counted agamst the total number of calls allowed by the Agreement

If the contract 1s tcrmmatcd for whatever reason as provided for m the contract the database of opHn numbers
and the related opt-m selections will be transferred. at no cost to the Customer or the subsequent vendor, tf any
to the Customer or the subsequent vendor as determmed by the Customer The data shall be transferred n a
file format meeting generally accepted mdustry standard or an Excel database as detcrmmed by the Customer

OTHER SUPPORT ISSUES

Insurance Inspron Logistics shall, durug the term of the Agreement, mamtan insurance coverage wth an
authonzed msurance carrier acceptable to the Chent mn amounts at least equal to the mimmum hm1ts set forth
below

A Lmmrt of General/Commercial Lrabl1ty
B Professional I ablty

$2 000 000
$1 000 000

Certificates of insurance evidencing the above shall be delivered to the Chcnt upon request and shall provide
that such coverages may not be cancelled or amended wnhout 30 days pr1or written notuce to the Chent and
nam mng Clent as an addutronal insured for General L1ability

2 Indemnification To the fullest extent permitted by law, Inspiron Logistics shall defend mndemmfy and
hold harmless Customer Customer's officers, employees, agents, boards, commss1ons and agenres from and
agamst costs, losses, and damages (mcludmg but not hm1ted to reasonable fees, charges and reasonable court
and/or altemat1ve dispute resolution costs) caused by the neghgent or intentional and wrongful acts of Inspron
Log1st1cs its officers, drrectors employees, agents and consultants with respel.t to this Agreement

3 Conflct of Interest Inspron Logstcs warrants that nether tt nor any of rts affilates has any financial or
other personal mterest that would conflict many manner with the performance of the services under this
Agreement and that neither 1t nor any of its affihates will acqmre directly or indirectly any such mnterest
Inspiron Logustcs warrants that 1t wall immediately notify the Customer 1f any actual or potent1al conflict of
mnterest ar1ses or becomes known to InspIron Log1stcs Upon receipt of such notification, a Customer review
and wntten approval ts required for lnsp1ron Logistics to contmue to perform work under this Agreement

Failure to contmually meet the funl.t10nahty and service requrrements set forth herem shall constitute a breach
of the Agreement, which breach may be cured m accordance with Sect10n 4 2 of the Agreement, or a "fotlure"
In accordance with Section 4 2 of the Agreement

Section 4 2 shall be amended by strkmng (au) and (a) mn their entirety and msertmg the followmg m therr place

() the other Party matenally breaches 1t obligations under this Agreement or Inspron
Logistics fa ils to adequately perform under the Agreement, such as but not lunned to fatlure to
d1stnbute notifications promptly to all expected residents and drstrbuton of false messages or
messages sent mn error except that Customer operator error and errors attnbutable to fhlfd
party companies other than Inspiron Logistics, shall not be attnbuted to or accountable to
Inspron Logst1cs



ACOR> CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I DATE (MM/DD/YYYY).- 05/13/2021
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER
IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the tenns and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER CONTACT Rose DiTomasoNAME
Strachan Novak Insurance Services TI12. • (330)963-3800 I FAX

IA/C Nol. (330)963-3811
2190 E Enterprise Parkway E-MAIL rditomaso@sn-insure.comADDRESS,
Twinsburg, OH 44087 INSURERIS) AFFORDINGCOVERAGE NAIC #

INSURERA Llovd's of London
INSURED INSURERS

lnspiron Logistics LLC INSURERC
1970 N. Cleveland Massillon Rd INSURERD
Bath, OH 44210 INSURERE

INSURERF.

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 00004594-314823 REVISION NUMBER: 2
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS

INSR TYPE OF INSURANCE ADDL SUBR POLICYEFF POLICY EXP
LTR , hi. l nunPr POLICY NUMBER (MMIDDNv MMDDNYYYYM LIMITS

A LX COMMERCIALGENERAL LIABILITY y ES.J0131474786 05/03/2021 05/03/2022 EACH OCCURRENCE $ 2.000.000
~CLAIMS-MADE [i] OCCUR

DAMAGE TO RENTED 250,000PREMISES /Ea occurrence\ $

~ MED EXP (Any one person) $ 10 000
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $ 2 000 000~

GEN L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER. GENERALAGGREGATE $ 2.000 000

~ □PRO- [lo- PRODUCTS COMP/OP AGG $ 2.000 000POLICY JECT

OTHER $

A AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY ESJ0131474786 05/03/2021 05/03/2022 22,o.euwr $ 2 000 000-
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $

-
OWNED

-
SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $

- AUTOS ONLY - AUTOS
_X_ HIRED x NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY IPer accident\

$

UMBRELLALIAB HOCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $~
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED I I RETENTION $ $
WORKERS COMPENSATION I PER I I OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY STATUTE ER

Y/N
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE □ NIA EL. EACH ACCIDENT $
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH) E L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $

23,$#85%es.noso» E.L. DISEASE POLICY LIMIT $

A Professional ESJ0131474786 05/03/2021 05/03/2022 Ea Claim 2,000,000
Liability (E&O) Aggregate 2,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional RemarksSchedule, may be attached Ifmorespace Is required)
The certificate holder is named as an additional insured under the General Liability coverage.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

City of Franklin, Wisconsin
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

9229 W. Loomis Rd.
Franklin, WI 53132 AUTHORZSD REPRESENTATNE

/tl ... /

I
2+, i .in-e

(RAD)

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
@1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
Printed by RAD on May 13 2021 at 03 56PM



APPROVAL

ho
Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FORCOUNCIL ACTION

RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT PUBLIC RECREATIONAL
TRAIL EASEMENTS IN THE RYANMEADOWS

SUBDIVISION FORTHE COMPLETION OF THE RYAN
MEADOWS TRAIL (TKN 938-9994-004)

MTG.DATE
April 4, 2022

ITEM NO.

G.6.
BACKGROUND
Resolution 2022-7825 approved a Certified Survey Map (CSM) consisting of portions of Lot 84
in Ryan Meadows and a part of Parcel 1 of CSM No. 975 in and adjacent to the Ryan Meadows
Subdivision and S. 112th Street for joint applicants of Loomis & Ryan, Inc. and Gurjit Singh and
Gurmit Kaur, property owners. This CSM included Public Recreation Trail Easements for lots 2
and 3- both of which are on the previous Gurjit Singh and Gurmit Kaur parcel (TKN 938-9994-
004).

Enclosed are Public Recreational Trail easements for both lots.

ANALYSIS
On July 20, 2021, Common Council authorized GRAEF-USA Inc. (Resolution 2021-7753) to
design a portion of Ryan Creek Trail for this area anticipating another route to S. 112th Street.
Staffwas also authorized to bid the trail construction in 2021. Staffs discussions with the adjacent
property owners were not as anticipated and the design of the trail stalled. This new path to S.
112th Street will allow GRAEF to proceed with the design and allow construction of the path to
occur in 2022.

FISCAL NOTE
Acceptance of the easements has no financial impact except that it will allow the design and
construction of a trail anticipated in 2021 using park impact fees and City capital funds.

RECOMMENDATION
Resolution 2022-.... a resolution to accept Public Recreational Trail Easements in the
Ryan Meadows Subdivision for the completion of the Ryan Meadows Trail (TKN 938-9994-004)
and authorize trail construction to be bid in 2022.



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2022 -----

A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT PUBLIC RECREATIONAL TRAIL EASEMENTS IN THE
RYAN MEADOWS SUBDIVISION FOR THE COMPLETION OF THE

RYAN MEADOWS TRAIL (TKN 938-9994-004)

WHEREAS, easements are required to install, maintain and operate a public recreational
trail in Ryan Meadows subdivision; and

WHEREAS, the property owners Loomis & Ryan, Inc. and Gurjit Singh and Gurmit Kaur
have agreed to convey permanent easements across lots 2 and 3, respectively, as depicted and
described upon a Certified Survey Map approved by the Common Council pursuant to
Resolution No. 2022-7825 adopted on February 15, 2022.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the
City of Franklin that it is in the best interests of the City to accept such easements on Lots 2 and
3 of the Certified Survey Map approved pursuant to Resolution No. 2022-7825, that such
easements in the form and content as annexed hereto (with the blanks regarding tax key nos. etc.
to be completed following the recording of the Certified Survey Map), be and the same are
hereby approved and accepted.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Clerk be and the same are
hereby authorized to receive and execute such easements on behalf of the City of Franklin.

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and the same is hereby directed to
record said easements with the Register of Deeds for Milwaukee County subsequent to the
recording of the Certified Survey Map.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin the
____ day of , 2022, by Alderman _

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Franklin on the
day of,2022.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--



Document Number

PUBLIC RECREATIONAL TRAIL
EASEMENT

Document Name

This Recreational Trail Easement (the "Easement") by and
between Loomis & Ryan, Inc., (the "Grantor"), and the City of
Franklin, (the "Grantee") is entered into by and between the parties
this day of> 2022.

RECITALS

A. Grantor is the owner ofcertain real property located at
Monarch Drive, in the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County,
Wisconsin, which is more fully described in the attached Exhibit A
(the "Property").

B. Grantor desires to grant to Grantee a perpetual
easement for the purpose of creating and maintaining a public
recreational trail easement on and through the Property pursuant to the
terms and conditions of this Easement.

BASED UPON THE FOREGOING RECITALS, the mutual
agreements within this Easement and other good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby
acknowledged, the Grantor and Grantee agree as follows:

Recording Data
Name and Return Address
City ofFranklin
c/o City Clerk
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, Wisconsin 53132

Parcel Identification Number

798-9988-001

1. Grant of Easement: Grantor (including heirs, executors, administrators, personal representatives, successors,
and assigns) grants to Grantee, and its employees, agents, licenses, and contractors a perpetual easement over and across the
land hereinafter specifically described, to install, operate, maintain, repair, reconstruct, inspect and/or extend a recreational
trail for public pedestrian, bicycle, and similar non-motorized use. The location of the easement area with respect to the
Grantor's land is as shown and described on the attached Exhibit B (the "Easement Area"). Specifically, under this Easement,
Grantee shall have the right to keep access to the easement open by removing vegetation and by cutting or trimming trees,
shrubs, or other vegetation that may encroach on the Easement Area provided that Grantee shall dispose of all cuttings and
trimmings by hauling them away from the Property . Grantee shall also provide signage along the recreational trail in the
Easement Area acknowledging the grant of easement by the Grantor and requesting that users of the trail minimize noise
during funeral proceedings conducted on the Property .

2. Use ofEasement: Grantor shall not construct, place, grant, allow, or maintain any structures or impediments
of any kind within the Easement Area including, but not limited to, buildings, fences, gardens, and other landscaping that
would inhibit access by the Grantee and/or members ofthe public, such that Grantee shall have the full enjoyment and use of
the rights herein granted, including but not limited to, the rights to remove and to clear all structures and obstructions which
might interfere with the rights herein contained and the free and full right of ingress and egress over and across the Easement
Area and other adjacent lands of the grantor to and from said Easement Area and the use of said Easement Area and other
adjacent lands of the grantor as necessary or convenient for the full enjoyment and use of the rights herein granted. Trees,
bushes, branches and roots may be trimmed or removed so as not to interfere with Grantee's use of the Easement Area.
Subject to the above, Grantor reserves the right to use the Easement Area for purposes that will not interfere with the
Grantee's full enjoyment ofthe Easement rights granted in this Easement. If Grantor, upon reasonable notice to the Grantee,
inrtiates improvements on the Property which would interfere with the use ofthe Easement Area, the Grantee agrees to pay for
the relocation ofthe Easement Area to accommodate said improvements.

3. Restoration and Maintenance: Except in the case of a breach by Grantor or a termination by agreement
under Paragraph 9 below, Grantee agrees to restore or cause to have restored the Grantor's land as nearly as is reasonably
possible to the condition existing prior to such entry by the Grantee or its agents. This restoration however, does not



apply to any trees, bushes, branches or roots which may interfere with Grantee's use of the Easement Area. Regular
maintenance ofthe surface ofthe Easement Area shall be the sole responsibility ofthe Grantee.

4. Indemnification: To the fullest extent permitted by law, Grantee shall indemnify and hold harmless
Grantor and its officers, directors, partners, and employees from and against costs, losses, and damages caused solely by
the negligent acts or omissions ofGrantee or Grantee's officers, directors, partners, employees, agents, and consultants in
the performance activities called for under the Restoration and Maintenance provisions ofParagraph 3 above. However,
nothing contained within this Easement is intended to be a waiver or estoppel ofthe Grantee or its insurer to rely upon the
limitations, defenses, and immunities contained within Wisconsin law, including but not limited to those contained within
Wis. Stat. §§ 893.80, 895.52, and 345.05. To the extent that indemnification is available and enforceable, the Grantee or
its insurer shall not be liable in indemnity or contribution for an amount greater than the limits of liability for municipal
claims established by Wisconsin Law.

5. Exercise of Rights: It is agreed that the complete exercise ofthe rights herein conveyed may be gradual and
not fully exercised until some time in the future and that none ofthe rights herein granted shall be lost by non-use.

6. Waiver: No delay or omission by any party in exercising any right or power arising out of any default
under any ofthe terms or conditions ofthis Easement shall be construed to be a waiver ofthe right or power. A waiver by
a party ofany ofthe obligations ofthe other party shall not be construed to be a waiver ofany breach of any other terms
ofconditions ofthis Easement.

7. Enforcement: Enforcement ofthis Easement may be proceedings at law or in equity against any person
or persons violating or attempting or threatening to violate any term or condition in this Easement, either to prevent a
violation or to obtain any other relief. Should a party enforcing this Easement by appropriate action prevail in litigation,
that party shall be entitled to recover, as part ofits costs, reasonable attorney's fees.

8. Entire Agreement; Amendment: This Easement contains the entire agreement between the parties
relating to the rights granted and obligations assumed. Any modifications to this Easement must be in writing and signed
by both parties.

9. Termination: This Easement may be terminated only by a written agreement signed by all owners of
record and other successors to the respective interests ofGrantor and Grantee. Grantee, its successors, and assigns may
execute and record a release of this Easement at any time. This Easement shall also terminate if the purposes of the
Easement cease to exist, are abandoned by Grantee, or become impossible to perform.

I0. Governing Law: This Easement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the internal law ofthe
State ofWisconsin.

11. Covenants Run with Land: All ofthe terms and conditions in this Easement, including the benefits and
burden, shall run with the land and shall be binding upon, inure to the benefit of, and be enforceable by the Grantor and
the Grantee and their respective successors and assigns. Grantor shall cooperate with Grantee in recording any instrument
deemed necessary by Grantee to address the provisions ofWis. Stat.§ 893.33(6).

[SIGNATUREPAGES FOLLOW]



GRANTOR

LOOMIS & RYAN, Inc

By: Stephen R. Mills, President

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

STATE OF WISCONSIN )
)

KENOSHA COUNTY )

Personally, came before me this day of,2022, the above-named, Stephen R. Mills, to
me known to be the persons who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same.

Notary Public, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin
My commission (expires) (is)



GRANTEE

CITY OF FRANKLIN

By:
Stephen R.Olson, Mayor

STATE OF WISCONSIN )
)

MILWAUKEE COUNTY )

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Personally, came before me this day of 2022, the above-named Stephen R. Olson and
Sandra L. Wesolowski, Mayor and City Clerk of the City of Franklin respectively, to me known to be such
officers and acknowledge that they executed the foregoing instrument in such capacity.

Notary Public, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin
My commission (expires) (is)

DRAFTED BY:
Brian C. Sajdak, Assistant City Attorney



EXHIBIT A

Legal Description -Property

Being all of Lot 84 in Ryan Meadows and a part of Parcel 1 ofCertified Survey Nap No. 975, located in the
Southwest¼ and Northwest¼ of the Northeast¼ AND the Northwest¼ of the Southeast¼ AND the Northeast
¼ of the Southwest¼ AND the Northeast¼ and the Southeast¼ of the Northwest¼ all in Section 30,
Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, described as follows:

Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map Number



EXHIBITB

Easement Area

7 -
I to
I •> LO

N I ].
LO

I LII --0I C"')-I ('I)

I ('I)
0

I oo
I U)

I

LOT2

[«u310.00']

20' TRAIL EASEMENT.u.ur:n
.u.u
n

iii°I I /

'·· I: 1
i S89°42'41 "E I708.82'

{'(@kphI I · 'V ·I I I ) -----·

! I · I I 70' TRANSMISSION LINE WIRE

1,110·11 r
X)
---1--'""'";

11
-+-·111-1-1 ~I :◄---EASEMENT PER DOC.

1 1 NO. 2679800 & NO. 2679801
l I I:
: I I I
: 100' l 100' TREE CLEARING

f7iT!TirJEASEMENT PER DOC.
hilIl!I NO. 2679800 & NO. 2679801

J
\ I I: CENTERLINE WEPCO EASEMENT
l PER DOC. NO. 2679800 & NO. 2679801

··-.,. I II
''Hl •

101 ·---·-·· .....-+tilat--"·...2..
'V N17:··-.-. ··-··-------··"

18r0..

-

Description of Public Recreational Trail Easement

Part of the Lot 2 of the Certified Survey Map No.,Document No._Recorded
at Milwaukee County Register of Deeds. Also, being all of Lot 84 in Ryan Meadows and a part of Parcel 1 of
Certified Survey Nap No. 975, located in the Southwest¼ and Northwest¼ of the Northeast¼ AND the
Northwest¼ of the Southeast¼ AND the Northeast¼ of the Southwest¼ AND the Northeast¼ and the
Southeast¼ of the Northwest¼ all in Section 30, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin,
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, described as follows:

Commencing at the northeast corner of said Lot 2 also a point of beginning of the 20 foot wide Public
Recreational Trail Easement; thence N89°42'41 "W, 310.00 feet to a point; thence S00° 33739E, 20.00 feet to a
point; thence S89° 42'41 "E, 290.00 feet to a point; thence S00° 33 '39"E, 550.63 feet to a point; thence S77°
18'53"E, 20.55 feet to a point; thence N00° 33'39"W, 575.04 feet to the point of beginning.



PUBLIC RECREATIONAL TRAIL
EASEMENT

Document Number Document Name

This Recreational Trail Easement (the "Easement") by and
between Gurjit Singh and Gurmit Kaur, (the "Grantor"), and the
City of Franklin, (the "Grantee") is entered into by and between the
parties this day of .2022.

RECITALS

A. Grantor is the owner ofcertain real property located at
112 Street, in the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin,
which is more fully described in the attached Exhibit A (the
"Property").

798-9988-00 I

Parcel Identification Number

Name and Return Address
City ofFranklin
c/o City Clerk
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, Wisconsin 53132

B. Grantor desires to grant to Grantee a perpetual Recordmg Data
1------"'------------------i

BASED UPON THE FOREGOING RECITALS, the mutual
agreements within this Easement and other good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby
acknowledged, the Grantor and Grantee agree as follows:

easement for the purpose of creating and maintaining a public
recreational trail easement on and through the Property pursuant to the
terms and conditions ofthis Easement.

1. Grant of Easement: Grantor (including heirs, executors, administrators, personal representatives, successors,
and assigns) grants to Grantee, and its employees, agents, licenses, and contractors a perpetual easement over and across the
land hereinafter specifically described, to install, operate, maintain, repair, reconstruct, inspect and/or extend a recreational
trail for public pedestrian, bicycle, and similar non-motorized use. The location of the easement area with respect to the
Grantor's land is as shown and described on the attached Exhibit B (the "Easement Area"). Specifically, under this Easement,
Grantee shall have the right to keep access to the easement open by removing vegetation and by cutting or trimming trees,
shrubs, or other vegetation that may encroach on the Easement Area provided that Grantee shall dispose of all cuttings and
trimmings by hauling them away from the Property. Grantee shall also provide signage along the recreational trail in the
Easement Area acknowledging the grant of easement by the Grantor and requesting that users of the trail minimize noise
during funeral proceedings conducted on the Property.

2. Use of Easement: Grantor shall not construct, place, grant, allow, or maintain any structures or impediments
of any kind within the Easement Area including, but not limited to, buildings, fences, gardens, and other landscaping that
would inhibit access by the Grantee and/or members ofthe public, such that Grantee shall have the full enjoyment and use of
the rights herein granted, including but not limited to, the rights to remove and to clear all structures and obstructions which
might interfere with the rights herein contained and the free and full right of ingress and egress over and across the Easement
Area and other adjacent lands of the grantor to and from said Easement Area and the use of said Easement Area and other
adjacent lands of the grantor as necessary or convenient for the full enjoyment and use ofthe rights herein granted. Trees,
bushes, branches and roots may be trimmed or removed so as not to interfere with Grantee's use of the Easement Area.
Subject to the above, Grantor reserves the right to use the Easement Area for purposes that will not interfere with the
Grantee's full enjoyment ofthe Easement rights granted in this Easement. If Grantor, upon reasonable notice to the Grantee,
initiates improvements on the Property which would interfere with the use ofthe Easement Area, the Grantee agrees to pay for
the relocation ofthe Easement Area to accommodate said improvements.

3. Restoration and Maintenance: Except in the case of a breach by Grantor or a termination by agreement
under Paragraph 9 below, Grantee agrees to restore or cause to have restored the Grantor's land as nearly as is reasonably
possible to the condition existing prior to such entry by the Grantee or its agents. This restoration however, does not



apply to any trees, bushes, branches or roots which may mterfere with Grantee's use of the Easement Area. Regular
maintenance of the surface ofthe Easement Area shall be the sole responsibility ofthe Grantee.

4. Indemnification: To the fullest extent permitted by law, Grantee shall indemnify and hold harmless
Grantor and its officers, directors, partners, and employees from and against costs, losses, and damages caused solely by
the negligent acts or omissions of Grantee or Grantee's officers, directors, partners, employees, agents, and consultants 111
the performance activities called for under the Restoration and Maintenance provisions of Paragraph 3 above. However,
nothing contained within this Easement is intended to be a waiver or estoppel ofthe Grantee or its insurer to rely upon the
limitations, defenses, and immunities contained within Wisconsin law, including but not limited to those contained within
Wis. Stat. §§ 893.80, 895.52, and 345.05. To the extent that indemnification is available and enforceable, the Grantee or
its insurer shall not be liable in indemnity or contribution for an amount greater than the limits of liability for municipal
claims established by Wisconsin Law.

5. Exercise of Rights: It is agreed that the complete exercise ofthe rights herein conveyed may be gradual and
not fully exercised until some time in the future and that none ofthe rights herein granted shall be lost by non-use.

6. Waiver: No delay or omission by any party in exercising any right or power arising out of any default
under any of the terms or conditions ofthis Easement shall be construed to be a waiver ofthe right or power. A waiver by
a party of any of the obligations of the other party shall not be construed to be a waiver of any breach of any other terms
ofconditions ofthis Easement.

7. Enforcement: Enforcement of this Easement may be proceedings at law or in equity against any person
or persons violating or attempting or threatening to violate any term or condition in this Easement, either to prevent a
violation or to obtain any other relief. Should a party enforcing this Easement by appropriate action prevail in litigat10n,
that party shall be entitled to recover, as part of its costs, reasonable attorney's fees.

8. Entire Agreement; Amendment: This Easement contains the entire agreement between the parties
relating to the rights granted and obligations assumed. Any modifications to this Easement must be in writing and signed
by both parties.

9. Termination: This Easement may be terminated only by a written agreement signed by all owners of
record and other successors to the respective interests of Grantor and Grantee. Grantee, its successors, and assigns may
execute and record a release of this Easement at any time. This Easement shall also terminate if the purposes of the
Easement cease to exist, are abandoned by Grantee, or become impossible to perform.

1 0. Governing Law: This Easement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the internal law of the
State ofWisconsin.

11. Covenants Run with Land: All ofthe terms and conditions in this Easement, including the benefits and
burden, shall run with the land and shall be binding upon, inure to the benefit of, and be enforceable by the Grantor and
the Grantee and their respective successors and assigns. Grantor shall cooperate with Grantee in recording any instrument
deemed necessary by Grantee to address the provisions ofWis. Stat.§ 893.33(6).

[SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW]



GRANTOR

By:

By:

Gurjit Singh

Gurmit Kaur

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

STATE OF WISCONSIN )
)

KENOSHA COUNTY )

Personally, came before me this day of,2022, the above-named, Gurjit Singh, to me
known to be the persons who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same.

Notary Public, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin
My commission (expires) (is)

STATE OF WISCONSIN )
)

KENOSHA COUNTY )

Personally, came before me this day of,2021, the above-named, Gurmit Kaur, to me
known to be the persons who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same.

Notary Public, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin
My commission (expires) (is)



GRANTEE

CITY OF FRANKLIN

By:
Stephen R.Olson, Mayor

STATE OF WISCONSIN )
)

MILWAUKEE COUNTY )

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Personally, came before me this day of2022, the above-named Stephen R. Olson and
Sandra L. Wesolowski, Mayor and City Clerk of the City of Franklin respectively, to me known to be such
officers and acknowledge that they executed the foregoing instrument in such capacity.

Notary Public, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin
My commission (expires) (is)

DRAFTED BY:
Brian C. Sajdak, Assistant City Attorney



EXHIBIT A

Legal Description -- Property

Being all of Lot 84 in Ryan Meadows and a part of Parcel 1 of Certified Survey Nap No. 975, located in the
Southwest¼ and Northwest¼ of the Northeast¼ AND the Northwest¼ of the Southeast¼ AND the Northeast
¼ of the Southwest¼ AND the Northeast¼ and the Southeast¼ ofthe Northwest¼ all in Section 30,
Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin described as follows:

Lot 3 of the Certified Survey Map Number



EXHIBITB

Easement Area

Description of Public Recreational Trail Easement

Part of the Lot 3 of the Certified Survey Map No.,Document No.,Recorded
at Milwaukee County Register of Deeds. Also, being all of Lot 84 in Ryan Meadows and a part of Parcel 1 of
Certified Survey Nap No. 975, located in the Southwest¼ and Northwest¼ of the Northeast¼ AND the
Northwest¼ of the Southeast¼ AND the Northeast¼ of the Southwest¼ AND the Northeast¼ and the
Southeast¼ of the Northwest¼ all in Section 30, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin,
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, described as follows:

Commencing at the northeast corner of said Lot 3 also a point ofbeginning of the 20 feet wide Public
Recreational Trail Easement; thence S89°42'41"E, 533.96 feet to a point; thence N77° 42'4l"E, 20.55 feet to a
point; thence S00° 33 '39"E, 20.41 feet to a point; thence S89° 42'41 "E, 553.96 feet to a point; thence N00°
33'39"E, 20.00 feet to the point of beginning.



gh
Reports &

Recommendations

REQUEST FORCOUNCIL ACTION

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND §92-1 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE TO
ADD LANDSCAPING AND FINAL GRADE CERTIFICATION AS A

CONDITIONAT TIME OF ISSUANCE OF ANYFINAL
OCCUPANCY PERMIT AND DELETE §92-4

MTG.DATE
April 4, 2022
ITEM NO.

G.7.
BACKGROUND
Currently, a Developer submits a master grading plan for a subdivision. That master grading
plan is reviewed and approved by the City Engineer. Typically, the Developer completes the
subdivision and homes are constructed on individual lots by a Builder after the Developer is done
with his obligations. The home sites are not always constructed in compliance with the master
grading plan.

There is also a requirement to provide ground cover as landscaping within one year of occupancy
but that is only followed up when responding to complaints.

ANALYSIS
Outside of the Developer's obligations in the subdivision development agreement, the home
builder submits a marked-up plat of survey which proposes a plan that demonstrates the grading
on the individual lots are in compliance with the master grading plan. The City Engineer reviews
and approves the marked-up plat of survey and the Inspection Department inspects the
construction of the home and issues temporary and permanent occupancies.

The Inspection Department can only provide a visual inspection that the lot was graded in
compliance with the marked-up plat of survey. The Engineering Department does not visit each
site and certify that the lot is in compliance with the marked-up plat of survey. There have been
many cases where a building lot was not graded as was indicated on the marked-up plat of
survey. The non-compliance lot was not apparent until after all occupancies were granted and
the Engineering Department was called to settle a private property drainage concern.

Staff has discussed potential changes to procedures to ensure that this is no longer a concern.
The options were:

1. City Engineering Department must survey and inspect all lots prior to receiving final
occupancy permit. The Staff is already encumbered with many tasks and adding this to
the list would add more work to the backlog. It would be likely that many occupancy
permits would be delayed while coordinating schedules between the landscaper and City
Staff. In addition, state statutes may not allow this non-building code issue to hold up an
occupancy permit.

2. City Engineering Staff would spot check a portion of the lots for compliance. Although
not as much work as the first option, this has the same concern as above and can be seen
as unfair in that not all lots were checked and likewise has the same concern regarding
compliance with state statutes concerning holding up occupancy. There would be a
probability that any non-compliant lots would not be checked.

3. Require that the builder provide self-certification as other communities do. This will add
some expense to the builder but would shift the urgency of certification on the builders.
This option will not place additional burdens on the Engineering and Inspection



Departments and would expedite the occupancy permit without needing to coordinate
schedules with landscapers. Most importantly, this option is the only option that would
ensure that someone (the certifier) would be responsible to fix drainage concerns when
the lot was not graded as certified. The concern with this option is how one would certify
a property if occupancy permit were achieved in winter.

4. Add a requirement to the I-year landscaping requirements that includes self certification.
This would mimic what other communites require but tie the requirement to landscaping
and not building occupancy.

Staff recommends that Franklin implement a certification program as other local communities
do. Below is language borrowed from Oak Creek municipal code 15.12(0) (3). Note that it is
tied to, but not conditioned upon, issuance of occupancy and is complicated depending upon the
time of year.

Final Grade Certification As a condition at time of issuance ofany occupancy permit,
the building permit applicant or owner shall submit to the City Engineer for approval a
certified "As-Built" survey substantially conforming to the Master Grading Plan on file
in the Engineering Department. Subject to the approval ofthe City Engineer ifan owner
or builder requests afinal occupancy inspection between December 1st andApril Ist, the
builder or owner may submit a bond, certified check or money order payable to the city
in an amount determined by the City Engineer to secure the builder's or owner's
obligation to comply with this section. Upon submission ofa certified "as built" survey
substantially conforming to the master grading plan, the bond, certified check or money
order shall be returned. If the grades are not certified within six months the temporary
occupancy lapses, the deposit is lost and a citation may be issuedfor violation of this
subsection.

Staff's discussion with Oak Creek's Engineering Department indicates that they seldom get calls
concering a neighbor where a lot was not graded as proposed. However, when they do get a call,
they are able to say that the grading was correct at occupancy and that someone disrupted it at a
later date.

Staff proposes that Franklin Municipal Code §92-1 Building Site Improvements be amended
with relocated language from §92-4. In section A: paragraph (1) discusses the design of the site;
paragraph (2) discusses certification of grade and location of the home footings; and paragraph
(3) would read as follows:

(3) Landscaping and Final Grade Certification.
(a) At the time of issuance of a building permit, the building permit for a new one

or 2-family dwelling unit, applicant shall submit $500 bond, certified check or
money order for surety to ensure compliance with landscaping requirements
and substantial conformance with the approved Plat of Survey Grading Plan
on file in the Engineering Department.

(b) All lots in residential areas shall be landscaped with a ground cover of a
common species of grass to prevent erosion within one year after an occupancy
permit or temporary occupancy permit is issued.



(c) Within one year of issuance of occupancy permit, the building permit
applicant or owner shall submit to the City Engineer for approval a certified
"As-Built" survey substantially conforming to the Plat of Survey Grading Plan
on file in the Engineering Department. Certification shall be provided by a
licensed surveyor licensed to practice in the State of Wisconsin in a form
acceptable to the City Engineer.

(d) Upon submission of a certified "as built" survey substantially conforming to
the master grading plan, the bond, certified check or money order shall be
returned.

(e) If the grades are not certified within one year of issuance of occupancy permit,
the deposit is lost and a citation may be issued to the property owner for
violation of this subsection.

The above language incorporates §92-4 Sections A and B. Section C may be discarded as it is no
longer applicable to any lots in the City of Franklin.

A All lots in residential areas shall be landscaped with a ground cover ofa common
species ofgrass to prevent erosion See proposed (3)(b) above.

B The landscaping oflots on which homes have been constructed shall be landscaped
with a ground cover withn one year after an occupancy permit or temporary
occupancypermit is issued See proposed (3)(b) above.

C. All existing lots presently occupied at the time this section is adopted shall be
required to landscape their lots with a ground cover within one year from the
effective date ofthis section. No longer needed.

FISCAL NOTE
No impact on City finance. Staff has solicited builders and this will add approximately $400-
$600 to the cost of a new home.

COUNCIL ACTIONREQUESTED
Motion to adopt Ordinance 2022-,an ordinance to amend §92-1 of the Municipal Code to
add landscaping and final grade certification as a condition at time of issuance of any final
occupancy permit and delete §92-4.

Engineering: GEM



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-

ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 92-1 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE TO ADD LANDSCAPING
AND FINAL GRADE CERTIFICATION AS A CONDITION AT TIME OF ISSUANCE OF ANY

FINAL OCCUPANCY PERMIT AND DELETE SECTION 92-4

WHEREAS, the City wishes to address landscaping for new homes that does not comply with
master grading plans for subdivisions.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Franklin do hereby ordain as follows:

SECTION I.

SECTION II.

SECTION III.

Section 92-1 "Building site improvements" be amended with an addition of Section
A.(3) as follows:

(3) Landscaping and Final Grade Certification.

(a) At the time of issuance of a building permit, the building permit
for a new one or 2-family dwelling unit, applicant shall submit
$500 bond, certified check or money order for surety to ensure
compliance with landscaping requirements and substantial
conformance with the approved Plat of Survey Grading Plan on
file in the Engineering Department.

(b) All lots in residential areas shall be landscaped with a ground
cover of a common species of grass to prevent erosion within one
year after an occupancy permit or temporary occupancy permit
is issued.

(c) Within one year of issuance of occupancy permit, the building
permit applicant or owner shall submit to the City Engineer for
approval a certified "As-Built" survey substantially conforming
to the Plat of Survey Grading Plan on file in the Engineering
Department. Certification shall be provided by a licensed
surveyor licensed to practice in the State of Wisconsin in a form
acceptable to the City Engineer.

(d) Upon submission of a certified "as built" survey substantially
conforming to the master grading plan, the bond, certified check
or money order shall be returned.

(e) I the grades are not certified within one year of issuance of
occupancy permit, the deposit is lost and a citation may be issued
to the property owner for violation of this subsection.

Section 92-4 "Landscape of lawn areas" of the Municipal Code is deleted in total.

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any term or
provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of competent



SECTION IV

SECTIONV.

jurisdiction, the remaining terms and provisions shall remain in full force and
effect.

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in contravention to this Ordinance are hereby
repealed.

This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage and
publication.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City ofFranklin on the day
of2022, by Alderman _

Passed and adopted by the Common Council on the day of>2022.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



Blank Page



meh
Reports &

Recommendations

REQUEST FORCOUNCIL ACTION

ARESOLUTIONTO AWARD
THE 2022 LOCAL STREET IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

RESURFACING AND CONTRACT TO STARKPAVEMENT CORP.,
IN THE AMOUNT OF $891,491.05

MTG. DATE
April 4, 2022

ITEM NO.

G.8.

BACKGROUND
On February 15, 2022, Common Council directed Staff to advertise and bid the 2022 Local Street
Improvement Program as two separate contracts. One contract, the 2022 Local Street
Improvement Program Resurfacing (LSIP) will contain the segments receiving pulverize or mill
and overlay treatments. The other contract, the 2022 Local Street Preventative Maintenance
Program (LSPM) will contain the segments receiving seal coating treatments and is a separate
Council Action item.

Portions of the following roads were included in the 2022 LSIP bid documents: W. Mayers
Drive; W. Church Street; S. 68" Street; S. 49" Street (2 segements); W. Franklin Drive (2
segments); E. Francis Court; and W. Francis Court. The program is anticipated to begin in June
with completion in late August.

Four (4) bids were received on March, 24, 2022, for the 2022 LSIP.

ANALYSIS
The bids received were as follows:

Stark Pavement Corp.
Payne & Dolan, Inc.
Wolf
LaLonde Contractors, Inc.

Total Base Bid
$ 1,136,015.45
$ 1,228,816.24
$ 1,371,700.20
$ 1,522,704.88

The engineer's estimate for the roads that were bid was $1,099,168.40. Staff requested
$2,500,000.00, and $1,159,000.00 is in the Adopted 2022 budget. The budget available to the
2022 LSIP is $1,059,000.00, as $100,000.00 was anticipated (separate Council Action item) to
fund the 2022 Local Street Preventative Maintenance Program (LSPM).

Due to significant rises in material costs (asphalt prices went up from $58.45/ton in 2021, to
$76.30/ton in 2022), three segments will need to be subtracted from the Program. The Project
Specifications state that "Dependng on available budget and unit prices, street segments may be
added to or subtractedfrom the Program The City ofFranklin reserves the right to delete or
add any street segment they deem necessary. Such deletion or addtion shall not constitute the
basis for a claimfor damagesfor anticipatedprofitsfor the work dispensed with " Condition 41
in the General Conditions to the Contract portion of the Bid Documents states that "The Owner,
upon proper action by its governing body, may authorize changes in the work to be performed or
the materials to befurnishedpursuant to the provisions ofthis contract Adjustments, ifany, in
the amounts to be paid to the contractor by reason ofany such changes shall be determined by
one or more ofthefollowing methods (a) By unit prices contained in the contractor's original
bid and incorporated in his construction contract "

Since this is a unit price contract, City Staff re-calculated the estimate based on the removal of
three segments using Stark's bid unit prices. The revised estimate is $891,491.05.



Staff tries to keep the bid estimate about 15% under the budgeted amount to account for DPW
expenses and overruns. This allows $891,491.05 to be awarded to Stark and $167,508.95, for
DPW expenses and overruns.

Staff recommends the award to Stark Pavement Corporation in the amount of$891,491.05.

The revised estimate includes the following roads: W. Mayers Drive; W. Church Street; S. 68
Street; W. Franklin Drive; E. Francis Court; W. Francis Court.

OPTIONS
Approve or deny the award.

FISCAL NOTE
The 2022 Adopted Budget allocated $1,159,000 in available funds for the City's Street
Improvement Program, ADA Curb Ramps, and W. Mayers Drive improvements. $1,059,000 of
that is anticipated to fund the 2022 LSIP (GL No. 47-0331-5823)

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 2022 - a resolution awarding the 2022 Local Street
Improvement Program Resurfacing and contract to Stark Pavement Corporation, in the amount of
$891,491.05.

Engineering: TAB



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN. MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO 2022 

A RESOLUTION TO AWARD
THE 2022 LOCAL STREET IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM RESURFACING

AND CONTRACT TO STARK PAVEMENT CORP., IN THE AMOUNT OF $891,491 05
.--....-------.--

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin advertised and solicited bids for the 2022 Local Street
Improvement Program Resurfacing; and

WHEREAS, four bids were received on March 24, 2022 and Stark Pavement Corp. was the
lowest responsive and responsible bidder; and

WHEREAS, Stark Pavement Corp. is a qualified public works contractor; and

WHEREAS, DPW expenses and overruns are budgeted at 15 percent of the expenses; and

WHEREAS, the 2022 Local Street Improvement Program was adopted at $1,159,000 with
$1,059,000 available for the 2022 Local Street Improvement Program Resurfacing; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City as recommended by the City's Staff to award the
contract in the amount of $891,491.05 to Stark Pavement Corp..

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of the City of
Franklin, Wisconsin, to award the 2022 Local Street Improvement Program Resurfacing contract to Stark
Pavement Corp..

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized and directed to
execute a contract with Stark Pavement Corp. on behalf of the City.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin the
day Of 2022, by Alderman _

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Franklin on the
day of,2022.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



IClu.

<(
E

0:::

>-
z (\l

<(
4.

....J

-
1ii

0:::

...J 0,
Ql

w
>-

u.

>
$
- 0 0

::i
0

0
o_z (1) ~
M

0 0:::
<i: ~ 0..

z w<( >
o::<"I - -

w 0
w

~ 0

vu c::
}

0::: z
-o

0

w <(
uG E

> ....J

z

....J ....J

0 u (1)

::> =0...

0 >

I I
>- ..J 0I- •

...J"'

- 0..(.)
E

•

. <(,·

ll

•

e



2
Reports &

Recommendations

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

ARESOLUTION TO AWARD
THE 2022 LOCAL STREET PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE

PROGRAM AND CONTRACT TO SCOTT CONSTRUCTION, INC.,
IN THE AMOUNT OF $89,389.35

MTG.DATE
April 4, 2022
ITEM NO.

G.9.

BACKGROUND
On February 15, 2022, Common Council directed Staff to advertise and bid the 2022 Local Street
Improvement Program as two separate contracts. One contract, the 2022 Local Street
Preventative Maintenance Program (LSPM) will contain the segments receiving seal coating
treatments. The other contract, the 2022 Local Street Improvement Program Resurfacing (LSIP)
will contain the segments receiving pulverize or mill and overlay treatments and is a separate
Council Action item.

Portions of the following roads are included this in the 2022 LSPM: S. 92' Street; W. Forest
Hill Avenue (2 segments); S. 60" Street; W. South County Line Road; and S. 58" Street. The
program is anticipated to begin in June with completion in late August.

Two (2) bids were received on March, 24, 2022, for the 2022 LSPM.

ANALYSIS
The scope included the following Base Bid and 3 Mandatory Alternate Bids.

Base Bid (S. 92' Street, W. Forest Hill Avenue - east, W. South County Line Road)
Alternate 1 (W. Forest Hill Avenue - west)
Alternate 2 (S. 60" Street)
Alternate 3 (S. 58" Street)

Two (2) bids were received on March 24, 2022.
Bidder Base Bid Alternate 1 Alternate 2 Alternate 3

Scott Construction, $79,815.75 $31,115.60 $28,333.00 $9,573.60Inc.
Fahrner Asphalt $85,794.86 $36,799.23 $35,537.64 $11,024.00Sealers, LLC

Total

$148,837.95

$169,155.73

The engineer's estimate for the Base plus Alternates 1 through 3 was $177,238.00. The budget
available to the 2022 LSPM is $100,000.00.

Staff recommends the award for the Base Bid and Mandatory Alternate 3 to Scott Construction,
Inc., in the amount of $89,389.35. At this price there is room for required DPW expenses and
overruns.

OPTIONS
A. Award bid and contract to Scott Construction, Inc., for Base Bid plus Mandatory

Alternate Bid 3, or
B. Provide other direction to Staff.



FISCAL NOTE
The 2022 Adopted Budget allocated $1,159,000 in available funds for the City's Street
Improvement Program, ADA Curb Ramps, and W. Mayers Drive improvements. $100,000 of
that was anticipated to fund the 2022 LSPM (GL No. 47-0331-5823)

COUNCIL ACTIONREQUESTED
(Option A) Motion to adopt Resolution No. 2022 -> a resolution awarding the 2022
Local Street Preventative Maintenance Program and contract to Scott Construction, Inc., in the
amount of $89,389.35.

Engineering: TAB



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2022 ----

A RESOLUTION TO AWARD
THE 2022 LOCAL STREET PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE PROGRAM

AND CONTRACT TO SCOTT CONSTRUCTION, INC., IN THE AMOUNT OF $89,389.35
....-----.-

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin advertised and solicited bids for the 2022 Local Street
Preventative Maintenance Program; and

WHEREAS, two bids were received on March 24, 2022 and Scott Construction, Inc. was the
lowest responsive and responsible bidder; and

WHEREAS, Scott Construction, Inc. is a qualified public works contractor; and

WHEREAS, the 2022 Local Street Improvement Program was adopted at $1,159,000 with
$100,000 available for the 2022 Local Street Preventative Maintenance Program; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City as recommended by the City's Staff to award the
contract in the amount of $89,389.35 to Scott Construction, Inc.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of the City of
Franklin, Wisconsin, to award the 2022 Local Street Preventative Maintenance Program contract to Scott
Construction, Inc.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized and directed to
execute a contract with Scott Construction, Inc. on behalf of the City.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin the
day of,2022, by Alderman

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Franklin on the
day of,2022.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



.J
<(
w
Cl)

.J
<(
w
Cl)

(!)
0
LL
+ %%
o.. cc
:r:: Cl)
(.) (!)

I I

a
Q)

u..
0
0
0o

8
0
ri

E

-

z
...J>z
<( Cl)

f •
Lu.'n0 Cl)

Lu Eo %
> oI- ...J-(.)



APPROVAL

REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Annual Renewal ofBitdefender Gravity'Zone Ultra as
the Standardized Advanced Threat Management

(ATM) Client for Desktop, Laptop, and Server
Computing Environments in the amount of $11,301

MEETING
DATE

4/4/2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.10.
BACKGROUND

On April 16, 2019, the Common Council authorized the Director of Administraton and IT Director to
purchase the licenses and modules for Bitdefender Gravityzone Ultra as the Standardized Advanced Threat
Management (ATM) Chent for desktop, laptop, and server computing environments from appropriations
within the Information Services Operating Budget.

ANALYSIS

Bitdefender Gravityzone is an enhanced endpoint security management suite of products designed to
provide a significantly enhanced layered security infrastructure throughout the enterprise. The software uses
a single agent that is deployed onto servers and workstabons, either using automatic deployment methods or
allowing a manual installation for legacy operating systems (e.g. Windows XP, Windows 2003, or Windows
2008 servers). The single-management agent communicates to a cloud-based portal, completely eliminating
the need to have an onsite antivrus-management console.

The Gravityzone Ultra line of products provides the followmg layered secunty services, all that are controlled
through a single-management agent: Traditional Signature Based Antivrus, Email Server Protection, Real
timeAdvanced Threat Analysis (IPS), In Process Malware Detecton, Cloud-Based Sandboxing, Inter-process
Event Logging, Microsoft Bitlocker Hard Dnve Encryption Integration, for full encryption of hard drives for
mobile devices utilized by both the Police and Fire Departments. Additionally, it provides Scheduled
Security Patch Deployment & Management, which allows patches to be scheduled to be deployed on a
specific hour and day, a critical feature that is necessary for systems that are active 24x7x365.

Bitdefender is recognized as an industry software leader and, more importantly, also addresses pertinent
Computer Justice Information Systems (CJIS) regulations required related to Police and Fire computing
platforms.

FISCAL IMPACT

The cost is $11,301 for the 2022 annual renewal of the City's Bitdefender licenses. Sufficient budgeted funds
are provided for this purpose in the Information Services Software Maintenance Account (01-0144-5257).

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval to purchase the annual renewal.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to authorize the D1rector of Administration and IT Director to purchase the annual licenses and
modules renewal for B1tdefender Gravityzone through CDW-G per Quote MRNB207 mn the amount of $11,301
as budgeted withm the Informahon Services 2022 Operating Software Maintenance 01.0144.5257 budget.

DOA-PS/ IT-JM



QUOTE CONFIRMATION B,PEO.PLE
WHO
GETIT

DEAR JAMES MATELSKI,

Thank you for considering CDW·G LLC for your computing needs. The details of your quote are below.
Click here to convert your quote to an order.

QUOTE# QUOTE DATE QUOTE REFERENCE CUSTOMER# GRAND TOTAL

MRNB207 3/28/2022 BITDEF 1YR 0929696 $11,301.00

QUOTE DETAILS

ITEM QTY CDW# UNIPRICE EXT. PRICE
BitDefender Gravity?Zone Ultra - subscription license renewal 355 6029714 $22 21 $7,884 55
(1 year) - 1 I
Mfg Part# 2892ZZBGR120FLZZ
Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA
Contract Wisconsin NVP Software (505ENT-M21-NASPOSVAR-01)

BitDefender GravityZone Patch Management - subscription 355 5906664 $7 91 $2,808 05
license renewal (1
Mfg Part# 2897ZZBGR120FLZZ
Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA
Contract Wisconsin NVP Software (505ENT-M21 NASPOSVAR-01)

BitDefender GravityZone Full Disk Encryption - subscription 90 6780467 $6 76 $608 40
license renewal
Mfg Part# 2870ZZBGR120CLZZ
Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA
Contract Wisconsin NVP Software (S05ENT-M21-NASPOSVAR-01)

PURCHASER BILLING INFO

Billing Address:
CITY OF FRANKLIN
ACCTS PAYABLE
9229 W LOOMIS RD
FRANKLIN, WI 53132-9728
Phone: (414) 425-7500
Payment Terms: NET 30-VERBAL

DELIVER TO
e

Shipping Address:
CITY OF FRANKLIN
JAMES MATELSKI
9229 W LOOMIS RD
FRANKLIN, WI 53132-9728
Phone: (414) 425-7500
Shipping Method: ELECTRONIC DISTRIBUTION

SUBTOTAL. $11,301 00

$0 00

$0 00

$11,301.00

Need Assistance? CDW·G LLC SALES CONTACT INFORMATION

Brittany Larson (877) 220-1778 britlar@cdwg com



ArrRovA' gl
Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FORCOUNCIL ACTION

AUTHORIZE RELOCATIONOF LIGHT POLE TO
ACCOMMODATE MILWAUKEE COUNTYBRIDGE

PROJECT ON S. 76TH STREET CROSSING W.
LOOMIS ROAD

MTG. DATE
April 4, 2022
ITEM NO.

G.11.
BACKGROUND
Wisconsin Department of Transportation (WisDOT) is planning a bridge rehabilitation project of
S. 76th Street (CTH U) over W. Loomis Road (STH 36) for this summer. To accommodate the
project, Franklin needs to have a light pole/fixture relocated.

ANALYSIS
Pro Electric, Inc. is the company that DPW works with on a regular basis to supplement our
electrical and lighting efforts. The estimate to perform this work is $12,172.68.

FISCAL NOTE
This item was not included in the 2022 Budget. Staff recommends using a portion of the 2022
General Fund Contingency, Account Number 01-0199-5499, budgeted at $125,000, to fund this
item. If approved, this would be the first expenditure against the General Fund Contingency
Account in 2022, leaving a remaining balance of $112,827.32; and, the $12,172.68 will be
transferred from the General Fund Contingency Account to Account Number 01-0351-5246 Street
Lighting Maintenance Service, the correct functional account for the expenditure, and the
expenditure will be recorded appropriately.

RECOMMENDATION
Direct Staff to have a light pole relocated to accommodate Milwaukee County bridge project on
S. 76th Street crossing W. Loomis Road at a cost of$12,172.68 from the 2022 Contingency Funds.

Department ofEngmeering GEM



Blank Page



APPROVAL

sl»
REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

A Resolution Terminating Tax Incremental
Finance District #8 (Northwestern Mutual)

MEETING
DATE

4/4/2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.12.
BACKGROUND
On June 21, 2005, the Council approved a Resolution and Tax Incremental Financing (TIF) Project Plan for a
new Tax Incremental District (TID) identified as TID #3. The purpose for creating the TID was to improve
road infrastructure and promote quality development in the district. The Council also adopted a Resolution,
amending the Project Plan on September 3, 2013.

With the upcoming April 14th deadline to notify the Wisconsin Department of Revenue (DOR) of a TID
termination for the current year, staff is submitting this request in advance of the final determination to
preserve the opportunity to close the TID yet this year, if possible. While staff believes that the TID is ready
for closure, there are a few known items that will not be settled in the fund until next year. Because of this, I
need to make sure our auditors are amenable to reserving those funds for disbursement after the closure. If
there are any changes based on the auditor's recommendation, and the TID is not going to be terminated, staff
will bring this item back to the April 19th meeting with the details.

ANALYSIS
All of the projects included in the project plan for TID #3 have been completed, and TID #3 has generated
enough tax increment to pay off all of its obligations, including debt service, so it must now be closed.

Any remaining funds will be distributed back to the affected taxing entities.

After termination, staff will complete the following:
• Notify the DOR of the termination, as well as forward the final audit of the district to them;
• Engage the City's independent auditor to complete the required close-out audit; and
• Distribute any remaining funds to all affected taxing entities.

FISCAL IMPACT

Upon dissolution, the tax increment for this district will be converted to general tax revenue for all
subsequent tax years, and any remaining funds in the account will be divided among all of the taxing entities
according to Wisconsin Department of Revenue regulations.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends adoption of the above noted resolution.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED
Motion to approve Resolution No. 2022-, A Resolution Terminating Tax Incremental Finance District #3;
and to authorize staff to proceed with the final closure steps.

ROLL CALL VOTE REQUIRED

DOA-PS



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-

A RESOLUTION TERMINATING TAX INCREMENTAL FINANCE DISTRICT #3

WHEREAS, on June 21, 2005, the City of Franklin Common Council adopted Resolution No. 2005-5906,
creating Tax Incremental Finance District #3 (TID #3), a mixed-use district, with an effective date of January 1, 2005,
to improve road infrastructure and promote quality development in the district, and adopted a project plan in the same
year; and

WHEREAS, on September 3, 2013, the City of Franklin Common Council adopted Resolution No. 2013-6906
amending the project plan pursuant to Wisconsin State Statutes 66.1 105; and

WHEREAS, all ofthe projects included in the project planhave been completed and all obligations of the District
have been met in the prescribed allowed time; and

WHEREAS, sufficient increment was collected as of the 2021 tax roll, to cover TID #3 project costs; and

WHEREAS, Wisconsin State Statutes require that when a municipality recovers its costs incurred in a district,
that District shall be dissolved.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, bythe Mayor and Common Council ofthe City ofFranklin, that Tax
Increment Finance District #3 is hereby terminated; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk shall notify the Wisconsin Department of Revenue (DOR),
within sixty days of this resolution or prior to the deadline of April 15, 2022, whichever comes first, that the TID has
been terminated; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk shall sign the required DOR Final Accounting Submission
Date Form (PE-223) agreeing on a date by which the City shall submit the final accounting information to the DOR; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Treasurer shall distribute any excess increment collected after
providing for ongoing expenses of the TID, to the affected taxing districts with proportionate shares as determined in
the final audit by the City's auditor, CliftonLarsonAllen LLP (CLA).

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this 4th day of April,
2022.

Resolution introduced and adoption moved by Alderperson' Motion for adoption seconded
by Alderperson On a roll call motion passed by a vote of ayes to nays.

APPROVED:

Stephen R Olson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Confirmation of the Appointment of John Regetz as
Economic Development Director

MEETING
DATE

4/4/2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.13.
The Mayor requests the confirmation of John Regetz as Economic Development Director for the City
of Franklin pending successful completion of the background check, which is underway, and a pre
employment drug screen, which will take place after successful completion of the background check.

Along with all of the typical benefits granted to employees hired by the City, the starting salary will
be $95,750. With the position being identified as a Grade 10 in the City's established Pay Plan, this
starting salary puts Mr. Regetz at the 46.5 percentile of the salary grade which is very appropriate for
a new employee coming into a position with applicable experience in the same or similar position.

In addition to the standard benefits, Mr. Regetz has requested a stipend to cover his moving
expenses, up to a maximum of $5,000. In regard to the moving expenses, if the employee initiates
separation from City of Franklin employment within the first five years of his commencement in the
position, he will be obligated to reimburse the City for prorated expenses incurred. Specifically,
$1,000 will be deducted from his pay check for each year of service thatwas not completed, up to the
five-year requirement.

John's resume is attached for review.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to confirm the appointment of John Regetz as the Economic Development Director of the City
of Franklin pending successful completion of a background check and pre-employment drug screen.

Mayor Olson



JOHN G. REGETZ
4827 Brookstone Street Chubbuck, ID 83202

M: 219.877.8075 • johngregetz@gmail.com

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Development executive with a career builton integrity, perseverance, and successful leadership. Adept in
workforce and economic development, recruitment, infrastructure development, strategic planning, retention &
expansion, site selection and crafting proposals. Experienced in developing staff positions and leading employees.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

DEVELOPMENTADVISOR, Pocatello, ID 2020-PRESENT
Advising $100 million of investmenton site, finance, sales and development strategies to complete projects.

BANNOCK DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, Pocatello, ID

President and CEO
Accomplishments:

Structured incentive packages, administered grants, directed staff and led strategic planning initiatives.
Served on Pocatello's TIF Board, successfully preparing 7 business and infrastructure TIF projects for approval.

• Designed marketing, foreign investment, workforce development and retention and expansion campaigns.
• Collaborated with Idaho State University, cities, county and state to secure expansions and locations for Great

Western Malting, FBI, SME Steel/Core Brace, Frigrtek, Savage Logistics, ON Semiconductor, Amy's Krtchen, rural
solar farm, and Western States CAT, directly creating 1,500jobs and $450 million in investment.

MICHIGAN CITY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, Michigan City, IN

Executive Director

LAPORTE COUNTY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENTALLIANCE

Co-Director
Accomplishments:
• Facilitated locations and expansions of several companies, including those in the advanced manufacturing and

high-tech sectors (Sullivan-Palatek, Vanir Air and Sullair ar compressor companies and Michigan City Baking),
directly creating 900 newjobs and more than $50M in investment in Michigan City alone.

• Collaborated in county-wide development ofthe logistics sector, leveraging investment ofmore than $36M.
• Led establishment ofa county-wide marketing, retention and expansion and economic development program.
• • Established a revolving loan fund immediatelyretaining a manufacturingfacility, slated to the country. Sat on

the SBA 504 Board and Loan Committee and administered incentive programs (TIF, Enterprise Zone, new RLF).
• Developed strategic and marketing plans for the cities and county's development corporations.
• Created a site selector-focused website with the late renowned economic development consultant Bob Ady.

CITY OF URBANA, ILLINOIS

Economic Development Manager
Accomplishments:
• Played vital role in location and development ofa call center, bus center, and downtown mixed-use facilities.
• Addressed backlog ofdivisional tasks created by long absence of a division manager.
• Led marketing of commercial redevelopment and business recruitment and retention efforts.
• Reconvened and led Annexation Team, assisting landowners with accessing city services
• Administered TIF and Enterprise Zone programs.

2012--2020

2009-2012

2005-2012

2003-2005



JOHN G. REGETZ

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE CONTINUED

PAGE 2

CHIPPEWA COUNTY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, Chippewa Falls, WI

Executive Director
Accomplishments:

• Established a development network with area computer and electronics companies {e.g., Cray Inc., SGI, TTM
Technologies, Honeywell, Rex Systems, and Celestica).

• Appointed to the Wisconsin Technology Council, spurring collaboration with more universities and companies.
• Initiated first retention and expansion program in the county.
• Spearheaded development of Lake Wissota Business Park and acquiring $2.55 million in state and federal
funding for it and the Chippewa County Job Center, a one-stop workforce development center.

• Successfully facilitated the location and expansion often manufacturing plants, and the re-use and location of
state facilities, generating and retaining more than 2,200 jobs. Industries included high-tech, plastic extrusion,
ethanol production, warehousing and distribution.

• Facilitated strategic and marketing plans for the development corporation.
• Doubled the development corporation's funding and staff.
• Publicly recognized by the Wisconsin Dept. ofCommerce for successfully advocating for the establishment of a

Technology DevelopmentZone in the area. Assisted four companies thatwere awarded Tech Zone grants.

PIERRE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, Pierre, SD

Director
Accomplishments:

• Initiated an information-based development program, utihzmg the state's broadband infrastructure.
Successfully recruited and located several companies, including an insurance clamms processmng center.

• Advocated local Missouri River interests, resulting in a congressionalforum andfederal legislation.
• Designed and established the community's first retention and expansion program.
• Created award-winning promotional materials.
• Initiated and organized annual conference to assist local businesses in securing government contracts.
• Quadrupled the revolving loanfund and disbursed first loans to assist new and expanding businesses.

1997-2003

1991 - 1996

MILLER ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GROUP, Miller, SD

Executive Director
Accomplishments:
• Pioneered the first economic development program in the community.
• Located three industries in Miller.

1989 -- 1991

: i

• Acquired and administered a Community Development Block Grant for construction of a community daycare
and inclusive child development center.

• Acquired and administered grants for infrastructure in Miller's industrial park.

EDUCATION AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

B.S. - State University ofNew York-College at Cortland
Additional Coursework - University of Idaho

Economic DevelopmentCoursework -- Purdue University-North Central Campus
Economic Development Institute - University of Oklahoma

Professional development courses mn economic development finance, marketing, etc.



JOHN G. REGETZ PAGE 3

PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS
• BOD, Greater Pocatello Chamber ofCommerce, 2012-2020
• BOD and Loan Committee, Eastern Idaho Development Corporation (SBA 504 loan program), 2012-2020
• Eastern Idaho Economic Development Partners (regional collaboration), 2012-2020
• Idaho Economic DevelopmentAssociation Member and Past Board Member
• Local Committee Member, SE Idaho Chapter - Rocky Mountain Elk Foundation; Chapter Chair, 2018-Present
• Michigan City Chamber ofCommerce North-End Action Team, 2007-2012
• BOD Chair, Michiana Resources (adult rehabilitation facility providing vocational & developmental support),

2011-2012
• BOD and Loan Committee, Regional DevelopmentCompany (SBA 504 loan program), 2006-2012
• Northwest Indiana Forum (regional economic development partner organization), 2006-2012
• BOD, Champaign County Economic DevelopmentCorporation, 2004-2005
• Champaign County Chamber ofCommerce's Government Council, 2003-2005
• BOD, Urbana Business Association, 2003-2005
• Appointed Inaugural Member, Wisconsin Technology Council, 2000-2003
• BOD and Executive Committee, Momentum Chippewa Valley, 2000-2003
• Co-Chair, Business Development Subcommittee, Momentum Chippewa Valley, 2002-2003
• BOD, 1-94 Technology Zone, 2003
• Founding BOD and Executive Committee, South Dakota Discovery Center & Aquarium, 1993-1996

REFERENCES

Arlen Wittrock
President & CEO Wittrock Public Affairs
Former Public Affairs Consultant, ON Semiconductor
Former BOD, Bannock Development Corporation
Former Gov't. & Community Affairs Director, FMC
Former Chair, Minnesota Chamber ofCommerce
Former Chairman, Anoka County Economic
Development Partnership
Former BOD Minneapohs Technology Corridor Corp.
Mobile: (208) 380-0101; Arlen_Wittrock@msn.com;
Johnstown, Colorado

Matthew Hunter
President and CEO, Pocatello Chamber ofCommerce
Board Director, Bannock DevelopmentCorporation
Office: (208) 233-1525;
mhunter@pocatelloidaho.com

Rick Phillips
Director, Government & Public Affairs
JR Simplot Company
Board Director, Bannock Development Corporation
Mobile: 208-241-8911; rick.phillips@simplot.com

David Villarreal
Principal, Affinity Partnerships
BOD Pocatello DevelopmentAuthority
Former Deputy Mayor, City of Los Angeles
Mobile: (951) 805-1413; David@affinrtyps.com

Roger Gibson
Site Manager, Bayer U.S
Crop Science Product Supply
Office: (208) 547-1201; roger.gibson@bayer.com

Bruce Stelzner
Consultant, Public Administration Associates
Principal, Stelzner Management Consultants,
Chippewa falls, WI
Former Chippewa County Highway Commissioner
and Business Park Administrator
Mobile: (715) 577-1330; bruce.stelzner@yahoo.com

Bruce Hayhoe
Owner, Broker, Woods & Water Realty, Chippewa
Falls, WI
Mobile: (715) 456-2256;
brucejr@woodsandwater.com



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Approval ofProfessional Services for
Recruitment ofa Director ofFinance/Treasurer

MEETING
DATE

4/4/2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.14.
BACKGROUND

Due to the current vacancy in the Director of Finance/Treasurer Position, as well as the extremely tight labor
market, staff is requesting to proceed with professional consulting services to fill the vacancy.

ANALYSIS

There are a number of consulting firms that staff is considering at this time, and since an exclusive
arrangement is not required, staff may select a couple to work with to secure a new Finance
Director/Treasurer for the City. In regard to fees, the current market rate for these services is up to 35% of
the annual salary of the employee hired. However, the companies being considered have committed to a
maximum of 25% of the first year's annual salary, which would likely not be greater than $27,163 based on
the established market rate for this position. If an extremely highly qualified candidate is identified that
would require a starting rate higher than the market rate, the request must come back before the Council
with a strong justification as to why the higher amount is needed.

The benefits of using a professional services consultant to assist the City in hiring include the following:

• Professional recruiters leading the candidate search;
• Direct, targeted marketing of the City, its position, and overall needs to qualified candidates;
• A thorough vetting process to increase the likelihood that the candidate will be a good fit;
• A 90- or 120-day guarantee that the candidate will be successful, or the City would receive a

subsequent placement of a new employee at no additional cost, or a refund of its payment for
services (specifics vary by consultant); and

• A likely larger candidate pool than the City would obtain with an internal recruitment.

FISCAL IMPACT

The cost of the recruitment will be funded by budgeted pay and benefits which are unused due to the
vacancy and the expenditure will be charged to the correct functional account, Account Number 01-0147-
5160, Department of Administration Recruitment Costs. Most consultants' fees are not due until after the
newly hired employee has been hired and has begun working.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval of professional services for the recruitment of a new Director of
Finance/Treasurer, in an amount not to exceed $27,200.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to approve professional services for the recruitment of a Director of Finance/Treasurer; and to
authorize the Director of Administration to engage with professional services consultants regarding the
same, up to a maximum amount of $27,200.

DOAPS



Blank Page



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Request to Authorize Carry Forward ofUnused 2021
Appropriations, for Use in 2022, i the Amount of

$4,473,070

MEETING
DATE

4/4/2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.15.
The following items, included in the 2021 Budget, are being requested for carryover into 2022, so that the
initiatives may be completed in 2022 with the authorized 2021 budgeted funds:

l) Initiative: Fire Department Inspection Office Buildout
Amount: $3,070
Account: 41-0221-5822, Capital Outlay Fund-Fire Department, Building Improvements
Reason. Staff is requesting carryover of these funds to complete a buildout of the Fire Department

Inspection Office. The Fire Department has already encumbered $16,930 of the $20,000
budgeted for this project in the 2021 Capital Building Improvement Fund. However, staff is
seeking to carry forward the balance of that appropriation, $3,070, to be used toward
covering the unanticipated cost of additional blueprint renderings and other contingencies
as they may arise. This project has been extremely slow in taking shape due to
unanticipated setbacks and delays, from initial lack of interested bidders to COVID-19
building shutdowns and estimated materials delays, but it is expected to be completed in
the first part of 2022.

2) Initiative: Elections Department Printing
Amount: $10,000
Account: 01-0142-5313, Elections, Printing Costs
Reason: Staff is requesting carryover of these funds for printing of absentee ballot envelopes

(outgoing and return) and printing of additional voting direction material. This printing
was planned in 2021 to replenish the absentee ballot envelopes used in 2020 and to update
other voting direction material that will be changing. The purchase/printing was not able to
be done in 2021 as the wording on the envelopes was to be modified and updates have not
yet been approved and formatted at the State level; the same is true with directions and
guidance to voters. It is anticipated that any changes to Election procedures are expected to
be completed in time for purchasing for use in the April, August, and November 2022
elections.

3) Initiative: Tennis Courts (2) - Replacement at Jack Workman & Lions Legend Parks
Amount: $65,000
Account: 41-0551-5832, Capital Outlay Fund-Park Improvements & Development
Reason: Staff is requesting to carryover these funds as the work was not able to be completed in
2021.

4) Initiative: Pleasant View Park Improvements
Amount: $300,000
Account: 46-0551-5835.9806, Capital Improvement Fund-Park Equipment/Pleasant View Park and

Park Impact Fee Funds which will be transferred from Fund 27
Reason: Staff is requesting to carryover the entire $300,000 to be used for the re-bid of the project in

February of 2022, as approved by Council on 2/15/2022.



5) Initiative: Church Street Pathway
Amount: $75,000
Account: 46-0551-5833, Capital Improvement Fund - Recreation/Bike Trail and Park Impact Fee Funds

which will be transferred from Fund 27
Reason: Staff is requesting to carryover the entire $75,000 to be used for the re-bid of the project in

February of 2022, as approved by Council on 2/15/2022.

6) Initiative: Park Signage
Amount: $20,000
Account: 46-0551-5499/5832 Capital Improvement Fund - Park Improvements
Reason: Staff is requesting to carryover the entire $20,000 as the Parks Commission is still working

on this project.

7) Initiative: New Water Tower
Amount: $4,000,000
Account: 46-0755-5830, Capital Improvement Fund - Water Projects, Water Funds which will be

transferred from Fund 65, Special Assessment Funds which will be transferred from Fund
22, and Water Impact Fee Funds which will be transferred from Fund 27

Reason: Staff is requesting to carryover the entire $4,000,000 as the project was delayed and will be
constructed in 2022-2023.

As noted above, each of the detailed initiatives were part of the authorized 2021 budget that was not able to
be completed during the year, so the request is being made to carry the initiatives forward into 2022 so that
the funds can be used during 2022 for the identified purpose, in the same manner as previously authorized.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to authorize the carry forward of unused 2021 appropriations, for use in 2022, in the amount of
$4,473,070, and direct staff to prepare a 2022 Budget modification for the same, for Council consideration.

DOA-PS



APPROVAL

shr
REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

AN ORDINANCE TOAMEND ORDINANCE 2021
2486, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE 2022

ANNUAL BUDGETS FOR THE GENERAL FUND,
CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND, CAPITAL

IMPROVEMENT FUND, DEVELOPMENT FUND,
WATER UTILITY FUND, AND UTILITY
DEVELOPMENT FUND TO PROVIDE

CARRYFORWARD APPROPRIATIONS FROM 2021
TO 2022 FOR SPECIFICALLY IDENTIFIED
PROJECTS IN THE AMOUNT OF $6,948,485

MEETING DATE
4/4/2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.16.

BACKGROUND

On December 21, 2021, the Common Council approved a carry forward of 2021 budgeted funds, in the amount
of $1,475,415, and directed staff to prepare a 2021 Budget Amendment to carry forward certain 2021 unused
appropriations in the General Fund, Capital Outlay Fund, and Capital Improvement Fund for the same. That
Council Action Sheet is attached for reference.

On the current Council Agenda is another request to carry forward additional unused appropriations, in the
amount of $4,473,070, in the General Fund, Capital Outlay Fund, Capital Improvement Fund, Development
Fund, and Utility Development Fund.

ANALYSIS

The details of all of the carry forward requests are included in the specific requests, as attached to this item and
as included on the prior agenda item.

FISCAL IMPACT

The fiscal impact of the carry forwards is that unused 2021 funds, as specifically identified by account number
in the carry forward requests, will be used to fund these items which were all authorized in the 2021 Adopted
Budget.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends adoption of the proposed 2022 Budget amendment to carry forward the unused 2021
appropriations that will be included in ending 2021 Fund Balances of the respective funds.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion adopting Ordinance 2022-___, An Ordinance To amend Ordinance 2021-2486, An Ordinance
Adopting the 2022 Annual Budgets for the General Fund, Capital Outlay Fund, Capital Improvement Fund,
Development Fund, Water Utility Fund, and Utility Development Fund to Provide Carryforward
Appropriations from 2021 to 2022 for Specifically Identified Projects in the Amount of $5,948,485.

Roll Call Vote Required

DOA-PS



APPROVAL

REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Request to Authorize Carry Forward of Unused 2021
Appropriations, for Use in 2022, in the Amount of

$1,475,415

EETI

The following items, currently included in the 2021 Budget, are being requested for carryover into 2022, so
that the initiatives may be completed in 2022 with the authorized 2021 budgeted funds:

1) Intatve Website Redevelopment
Amount $18,600
Account 41-0144-5843, Capital Outlay Fund-Information Services, Software
Reason Staff is requesting carryover of these funds to make improvements to the website including:
the addition of an urgent alert message panel, the addition of a banner allowing for rotating images,
the expansion of authors and editors for the site to be able to improve managing content and keeping
data fresh, addition of subscription management to allow interested parties to sign up for notifications
of website information, training on the Google Analytics functionality, some auditing for content and
accessibility, reorganization of pages, and other improvements as needed. It was expected that this
would be a 2021 project, however other projects/initiatives were more took precedence and this project
will be re-initiated in 2022.

2) Intatrve Ken Windl Pavilion Repairs
Amount $65,000
Account. 41-0551-5822, CapitalOutlay Fund-Parks, Building Improvements
Reason Staff is requestmng to carryover $65,000 for this initiative that has been needed for some time,
and was approved and budgeted in 2021. With the Buildings and Facilities Survey that was
completed in 2020, staff re-evaluated citywide facility needs in 2021, and engaged with a business
partner, Industrial Roofing Services, Inc., in September of 2021, to move this, and other facility related
projects, forward. Specifications are currently being finalized so thatbids may be received on the
same and the projects will getunderway; this work willbe completed as soon as possible in 2022.

3) Inttatve Inspections Limited-Term Temporary Help
Amount $66,000
Account 01-0231-XXXX, General Fund-Inspection Services, Various Payroll Accounts
Reason- Staff 1s requesting to carryover the remaining $66,000 to preserve the option of hiring limited
term temporary help for the Inspection Services Department to use and assign as needed. This includes
various, appropriately-licensed, commonly-retired individuals to supplement our response in the
Department. The Director has access to individuals willing to do the work on such a part-time, on-call
bas1s. This provides additional flexibility to address peak demands. These funds have been carried over in
previous years, used sparingly, and will notbe replaced when spent.

4) Intatve Merit Pay Pool
Amount $36,600
Account 01-XXXX-XXXX, General Fund-Vanous Functions, Appropriate Payroll Accounts
Reason Staff 1s requesting to carryover the $36,600 that was budgeted for 2021, to be used for
merit increases, and was not spent due to not having developed the merit plan in 2021. As
discussed at budget time, the classification and compensation plan that was approved and
implemented approximately six years ago, includes a ment element that allows employees to
achieve lacement over the 65% level m their a ade; however, no merit Ian has been



developed to date, which 1s creating an 1ssue with retention as employees progress in their
positions. This carry over will allow the implementation of the merit portion of the pay plan
only after such plan is approved by the Council. Staff will be working on this project as early as
priorities allow in 2022.

5) Itatve Security Improvements
Amount: $350,000 (City Hall) and $247,000 (Police Department)
Account 46-XXXX-XXXX, Capital Improvement Fund-Various Functions, Various Accounts
Reason Staff is requesting to carryover $350,000 that was budgeted for security improvements at City
Hall, as well as $247,000 that was budgeted for the replacement of the video surveillance system at the
Police Department. This initiative is just gettingback on track after having other projects supersede it
priority wise in 2021; the actual improvements will be completed in 2022. There are a number of
needed improvements, including: cameras, Interior and exterior; door access control; alarm
availability, access, and management; electronic timekeeping; hallway safety; security glass; an
emergency plan; training; and other related improvements as needed. Since the $350,000 may not
suffice for all needed improvements at City Hall, staff willmonitor the year end numbers and
consider an additional request depending on the project needs, available funding, and other City
priorities.

6) Intiatve. Senior Travel Program
Amount: $6,815
Account 01-0521-5721, General Fund-Recreation, Senior Citizen Travel
Reason· Staff is requesting to carryover $6,815 of unspent 2021 funds for thispurpose, to be used in
2022, as directed by the Common Council at the December 7, 2021 Meeting.

7) Intatve IT Security Testing - Penetration/Vulnerability/Etc.
Amount $73,500
Account 01-0144-XXXX, General Fund-Information Services, Data-Processing/Telephone
Reason· Staff is requesting to carryover $73,500 of unspent 2021 funds for needed IT security testing
that was identified as high priority in 2021, tobe used in 2022.

8) Intatrve City Facilities - Improvements
Amount $350,000
Account. 4X-XXXX-XXXX, Capital Funds, Various Departments
Reason Staff is requesting to carryover the $350,000 of 2021 funds for this purpose. With the Buildings
and Facilities Survey that was completed in 2020, staff re-evaluated citywide facility needs in 2021,
and engaged with a business partner, IndustrialRoofing Services, Inc., inSeptember of 2021, to move
forward this and other facility related projects. Specificabons are currentlybeing finalized so that bids
may be received on the same and the projects will get underway; this work will be completed as soon
as possible in 2022.

9) Intatve City Facilities - Maintenance
Amount $250,000
Account 01-0181-5822, General Fund-Municrpal Buildings
Reason Staff 1s requesting to carryover the $250,000 of 2021 funds for this purpose. With the Buildings
and Facilities Survey that was completed in 2020, staff re-evaluated citywide facility needs in 2021,
and engaged with abusiness partner, Industrial Roofing Services, Inc., in September of 2021, to move
forward this and other facility related projects. Specifications are currentlybeing finalized so that bids
may be received on the same and the projects will get underway; this work will be completed as soon
as possible in 2022.



10) Inutative City Hall Landscaping - Trees
Amount $5,000
Account 41-0181-5822, Capital Outlay Fund-Municipal Buildings, Building Improvements
Reason Staff is requesting to carryover $5,000 of unspent 2021 funds that were budgeted to replace
trees that had previously been removed. And, due to other priorities, the purchase/planting was not
able to be done in 2021.

11) Inutatve Furniture/Fixtures - Caty Hall Lobbies
Amount $6,900
Account 41-0181-5812, Capital Outlay Fund-Municipal Buildings1 Furmture & Fixtures
Reason Staff is requesting to carryover $6,900 of unspent 2021 donated funds that have been
earmarked to freshen up the lobbies at City Hall. This was part of the larger project to freshen up
public areas of City Hall. Another part of that project, the replacement of the gallery chairs in Council
Chamber was done a little earlier in 2021, but this piecehas not yet been completed and staff would
like to complete this in 2022.

As noted above, each of the detailed initiatives was part of the authorized 2021 budget that was not able to be
completed during the year, so the request is being made to carry the initiatives forward into 2022 so that the
funds can be used during 2022 for the identified purpose, in the same manner as previously authorized.

In addition, staff will be analyzing 2021 budgeted capital projects in the near future and submit carryover
requests as needed, in early 2022, prior to the 2021 fiscal year being closed, for those items that are not yet
complete, or perhaps temporarily delayed, yet still need to be completed.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to authorize the carry forward of unused 2021 appropriations, for use in 2022, in the amount of
$1,475,415, and direct the Director of Finance and Treasurer to prepare a 2022 Budget modification for the
same, for Council consideration.

DOA-PS



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY

ORDINANCE NO. 2022---

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2021-2486, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING
THE 2022 ANNUAL BUDGETS FOR THE GENERAL FUND, CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND,
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND, DEVELOPMENT FUND, WATER UTILITY FUND,

AND UTILITY DEVELOPMENT FUND TO PROVIDE CARRYFORWARD
APPROPRIATIONS FROM 2021 TO 2022 FOR SPECIFICALLY IDENTIFIED PROJECTS

IN THE AMOUNT OF $5,948,485

WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Franklin adopted the 2022 Annual
Budgets for the City of Franklin on November 16, 2021; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council has carried forward, into 2022, $442,915 from the
General Fund for specifically identified projects which were not completed in 2021; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council has carried forward, into 2022, $163,570 from the
Capital Outlay Fund for specifically identified projects which were not completed in 2021; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council has carried forward, into 2022, $5,342,000 from the
Capital Improvement Fund, with transfers from the Development Fund, Water Fund, and Utility
Development Fund for specifically identified projects which were not completed in 2021; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council directed on December 21, 2021 that staffprepare a carry
forward 2022 budget amendment, in the amount of $1,475,415, to bring these projects forward to
2022 appropriations in the General Fund, Capital Outlay Fund, and Capital Improvement Fund;
and

WHEREAS, the Common Council directed on April 4, 2022 that staff prepare a carry
forward 2022 budget amendment, in the amount of$4,473,070, to bring these projects forward to
2022 appropriations in the General Fund, Capital Outlay Fund, and Capital Improvement Fund;
and

NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City ofFranklin does hereby ordain as
follows:

Section 1 That the 2022 Budget for the General Fund be amended as follows:

General Fund
Contingency Personnel Services Increase $36,600
Inspection Services Temporary Help Increase $66,000
Senior Travel Travel Costs Increase $6,815
Information Systems IT Security Costs Increase $73,500
Facilities Facilities Maintenance Increase $250,000
Elections Printing Costs Increase $10,000



Ordinance 2022-xxxXx
Page 2

Section 2 That the 2022 Budget for the Capital Outlay Fund be amended as follows:

Information Services Services Increase $18,600
Parks Building Imp. Increase $65,000
Facilities Landscaping/Trees Increase $5,000
Facilities Furniture/Fixtures Increase $6,900
Fire Department Renovations Increase $3,070
DPW-Parks Tennis Court Rep1. Increase $65,000

Section 3

Section 4

That the 2022 Budget for the Capital Improvement Fund, with funds transferred
from the Development Fund, Water Fund, and Utility Development Fund be
amended as follows:

Facilities Security Imp. Increase $350,000
Facilities Building Imp. Increase $350,000
Police Security Imp. Increase $247,000
DPW-Parks Pleasant View Imp. Increase $300,000
Engineering Church St. Path Increase $75,000
DPW-Parks Signage Increase $20,000
Water Utility Water Tower Increase $4,000,000

Pursuant to §65.90(5)(a), Wis. Stats., the City Clerk is directed to publish a Class 1
notice of this budget amendment within ten days of adoption of this ordinance.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
this 4" day ofApril, 2022.

APPROVED:

Stephen R Olson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



APPROV~

REPORTS &
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

AN ORDINANCE TOAMEND ORDINANCE 2021-
2486, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE 2022

ANNUAL BUDGETS FOR THE GENERAL FUND,
DEVELOPMENT FUND, TID 8 FUND, CAPITAL
OUTLAY FUND, EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT
FUND, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND, TID 4
FUND, SANITARY SEWER FUND, AND WATER

FUND FOR THE CITY OF FRANKLIN FOR FISCAL
YEAR 2022 TO APPROVE BUDGET

ENCUMBRANCES FROM THE 2021 BUDGET AS
AMENDMENTS TO THE 2022 BUDGET

MEETING DATE
April 4, 2022

ITEM NUMBER

G.17.

BACKGROUND

Council approval is required to enable unspent but encumbered funds, also known as encumbrances, from the
2021 Budget to be spent in 2022, as allowed by generally accepted accounting principles. An encumbrance is the
reservation of budgetary appropriations for items such as executed contracts and purchase orders before the
funds are actually expended. Because all contracts and purchase orders do notneatly follow the calendar/budget
year, it is necessary to preserve the unspent portion of the funds needed to fulfill the City's obligations at the
end of one fiscal year, to be spent in the next fiscal year.

ANALYSIS

For the year 2021 there are projects/purchases in General Fund, Development Fund, TID 8 Fund, Capital Outlay
Fund, Equipment Replacement Fund, Capital Improvement Fund, TID 4 Fund, Sanitary Sewer Fund, and Water
Fund which need to be encumbered into 2022 so that the projects/purchases may be completed as directed.

FISCAL IMPACT

The fiscal impact of encumbrances to each of the funds is a 2022 use of the 2021 Fund Balance. The 2021 year
end financial reports and the year-end fund balances will include the impact of the encumbrances. The funding
source for the encumbrances was provided through the 2021 Approved Budget. This action allows those
resources to be used without impacting the 2022 Budget or the projects/purchases in process.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends adoption of the attached Budget Amendment Ordinance.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion adopting Ordinance 2022-_,An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 2021-2486, An Ordinance Adopting
the 2022 Annual Budgets for the General Fund, Development Fund, TID 8 Fund, Capital Outlay Fund,
Equipment Replacement Fund, Capital Improvement Fund, TID 4 Fund, Sanitary Sewer Fund, and Water Fund
for the City of Franklin for Fiscal Year 2022 to Approve Budget Encumbrances From the 2021 Budget as
Amendments to the 2022 Budget.

Roll call vote needed
DOAPS



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY

ORDINANCE NO. 2022----

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2021-2486, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE 2022
ANNUAL BUDGETS FOR THE GENERAL FUND, DEVELOPMENT FUND, TIO #8 FUND,

CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND, EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT
FUND, TIO #4 FUND, SANITARY SEWER FUND, AND WATER FUND FOR THE CITY OF

FRANKLIN FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022 TO APPROVE BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES FROM THE
2021 BUDGET AS AMENDMENTS TO THE 2022 BUDGET

-.-..-....-----.-......-----.... ...-....---.-- .or....-.-......-..------.-

WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Franklin adopted the 2022 Annual Budgets for
the General Fund, Development Fund, TID #8 Fund, Capital Outlay Fund, Equipment Replacement Fund,
Capital Improvement, TIO #4 Fund, Sanitary Sewer Fund, and Water Fund; and

WHEREAS, certain monies included in the 2021 Annual Budgets of the respective funds were
intended to be expended in 2021 and were committed for expenditure prior to December 31, 2021; and

WHEREAS, these amounts were not expended in 2021 but will be expended in 2022, and as a
result, the related appropriations should be made available and appropriated in the 2022 budget to support
the spending; and

WHEREAS, Common Council has determined that it would be in the best interest of the City to
approve such encumbrances in the 2022 budgets of the respective funds; and

WHEREAS, the Budget Appropriation Units will be adjusted for the items listed below.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Franklin does hereby ordain as follows:

Section 1 That certain encumbered funds of the 202 l budgeted amounts be transferred forward to the
2022 Annual Budget for the respective funds of the City of Franklin to pay for 2021
encumbrances, which total $3,599,525.57, broken down as follows:

General Fund
Administration Non-Personnel Increase $8.498.50
Facilities Non-Personnel Increase $25,000.00
Police Non-Personnel Increase $8,600.75
Highway Non-Personnel Increase $9,531.00
Street Lighting Non-Personnel Increase $8,469.97
Planning Non-Personnel Increase $4,791.06

Development Fund
Professional Services Increase $1,755.40

TID8 Econ Dev ProfServ Increase $237,144.42

Capual Outlay Fund
Police Capital Increase $6,500.00
Fire Capital Increase $25,907.90
Highway Capital Increase $27,560.00
Planning Capital Increase $129,637.38



Ordinance 2022-XXXX

Equipment Replacement Fund
Highway Capital Increase $202,000.00

Captal Improvement Fund
Engineering Capital Increase $34,771.86
Highway Capital Increase $57,898.17
Parks Capital Increase $68,590.53

TID#4 Capital Increase $222,956.64

Santary Sewer Capital Increase $2,489,662.00

Water Capital Increase $30,249.99

Section 2 Pursuant to §65.90(5)(a), Wis. Stats., the City Clerk is directed to publish a Class 1 notice
of this budget amendment within ten days ofadoption ofthis ordinance.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this 4th day of
April, 2022.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this 4"
day ofApril, 2022.

APPROVED:

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

Stephen R Olson, Mayor

AYES NOES ABSENT



N
N
0~.....
(')
i:';J

z
- LLSZ 0
Zen
<( <( en
0:: (/) a..
LL () 'LL a,_ N
028>- u!:: a.. ..,.
0OF

... o "' ... o"':,,, C: ...: .... .... "' o..,
~ ~ IC) 0

.Q Cl) ... o o

& W ~ IO o...: ,-:- ai' sIO &69 3 ...
s & 6 ~ ti.;; Cl) 9

Q

0) 0) 0) 0 N ..,. ..,.
0 0 0 ..,. 0) ..,. ..,.

<ii ..,. ..,. ..,. ..... <O IO IO
C') C') C') IO 0) (') (')

.0 ..,. 0) N <O r-- co C') C') C') % 0) C') 0) <O r-- 0) 0) 0) 0) <O <O 0) ..... ..... co co N ..,. C') ..... <O 0) (') (')E NN ..,. N N l (') C') C') IO ..,. IO ..,. ..,. .......... ..... N ..... N l ..... ..... ..... ..... N ..... ..,. ;;; ..... ..... N N::, N (') C') C') C') C') C') C') IO C') IO N N NN N y co co co co co co co co N y co coz 9 '9 '9 '9 4 ? ? '9 '9 n? 9 '9 9 '9 49 IO '9 '9 '9 '9 '9 '9 '9 ? '9 "l "l '9 '9 '9 '9 '9
E ..,. ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ;;:; ..... G GG ch G ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... MN ;;:; N ;;:; ;;:; ;;:;..,. co N ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... C') IO C') C') C') ..... ..... y y y::, .......... N N l N N N N N C') C') C') IO <O <O r-- 5 C') C') C') N y N N N M<O C') C') (') (') (')
0 99 9 9 ? 9 9 9 9 9 ? 9 ? 9 ,9 99 0 0 0 0 9 9 9 9 9 99 0 0 0 0 0u r-!. C> C> C> C> N cb cb cb cbu 55 5 5 5 ..... 5 5 5 5 5 ..... ..... 5 5 55 ¥ 5 5 5 ; 7¥<( 0 0 0 N ..,. ..,. ..,. ..,. ..,. ..,. ..,. ..,. ..,.

(!) UJ 8 o .... g g s o IO >8 g s 8 s s 8 M. o o o C") ... s 8 g 3 o oo s o .., C") C") o .., o o .... IQ IQ ...: o ...: o ... eo 2 o
a!: .i: cci $ o o $ C") o C") o 3 IC) <o ...: s ,.; <o

~
...: c,; "' <o $ $ I§ cci 3 $ g o ...: IC) r-. g

$3 .., & & ; ± ...: # e 3 g: M • » "' ~ C") .... ~ o r-. r-. ~.... g .... .., ... .., o ,-:- .... C") a s r-. IO IQ o
~

us$ 9 a tr ...: 3 ...: # # $ ...: ..,:- c-i ...: <o G ... ,-:- $ c-i c-i $ <o ,-:- ....- • ai' N.'UJ ;a t 9 9 9 &9 6 6 69 tl 69 ' 69 ~ ~ ow 3 ~ t tl % 9a:: 9 69 69

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ..... 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 It) It) 0 00 0 0 00 0
IO 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 r-- 0 0 It) 00 0 It) 0 0 0 0 0 0) 0) 0 00 0 0 0 IO 0

I- (') 0 0 IO 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 <O <O ..... N 00 0 N 0 0 ..,. 0 0 co co 0 OIO 0 0 IO 0 0z N 0 r-- r-- It) 0 0 0 0 0 0 <O 0) N (') 0) <O 0 r-- 0 It) R 0 0 IO..- (') <O It) 0 0 r-- ..... 0
:::) (') 0 10 IO r-- l (') (') (') 0) 0 C') 0) ..,. (') 0) co r-- o IO ":. IO o <O C') 0) It) N o_ 0 (') ..,. 0
0 oi 6o .,. CD .,.: .,.: - .,. .,.: r-:- --i CX) LOoi f f f CD CD r-:- --i (')I<") r-:-..... ..... ; <O r-- ;;:; y y N r--
5 El>N .,. .,. .,. .,. .,. .,. .,. .,. .,. .,. .,. .,. ..... ..,. It) .,. .,. .,. .,. ..... NI'- 0 IO N <O .,..,. .,. .,. .,. N .,. .,. .,. ..... N .,. .,. .,.
<( .,. .,. .,.

I
(/) en en It)
C: 'If'_g I- :.:::z 0:: 6 N I- en Ns w <( w en ci5 'II,e > a.. 0:: (/) >- en 0::w 'ir C) ' 0 <( 0:: <( :.::: UJ0 5

'n
0 I 0w (/) 0 I UJ 0(/) a.. :.:::

(/) 5 I z I--' .3 -I 0 u u w 0::
Q) "' 0 0 0 w m oO z G all 0:: 0C: ts 0 4 D'. en oz > O :.::: 0 :i: 0 >- w3g a.. 0 I- m 0w a- z <( z z <( z C)II::'. 0 I 5 co all :::)m::; '.J 0 w 0 0 -' t 0 w C) u <(

I- en zw Ii' z = ci5 >- <(
e°N <( 4- ir en I 0z z <( >- 0:: en UJ I0 ")1 o> en !:!:: I~

I- Oz w 0 ,=- w 0 ' I- 0 ua..o 8 0~ ..... -' I- -' - :i: :f ot C) (/) I- 0 0 z-z UJ >,E N o O <( II::'. II::'. II::'. y z g 0 II::'. m :5& 0 c?. ir i5 i5 <( en 0-o ' - 0 0 w ~ 0:: wz 0WO:: c?. ' en (/) w "' II::'. I- :.::: a.. en UJ >
C: ' I- I- w C) C) C) w o? !::o -' z C: z £ >- u 0 <(~ (/) >- z z 0 :.::: i5 0 (/) $ <( ~ w :::) II::'. we> UJQ) u 0 z E all CJ) -' <( -' 0:: 0:: wg 0:: ~ 1- 5 I w a.. "iii w - O C/JZ [:::5.g CJ) w ± 0 0 ~ w I- I- 0 --
(/) CJ) b5

:::) :::) :::)W 2o J: if 0:: ·u
~ 0::

g, 2 I (/)
<( ffi wu • ww 0 0 02 C) C) UJ C 2 -' en ~ all <( :::)

C) Ll: 0 "' 0 - ii uis oi 2z O 8 all all all',;, :::;z z z C I- I- -' 0:: 0 z I- 5 en UJ aUJ 0 <(Q ozu 0. <( z ~ 5 = ci5 z 8s F- UJ (/) w U:: en I- en H- O ,w ::, I- <( -' UJ - 0::<( Q) e$ z I- C) en I II::'. en rh 8 a.. a UJ C) <(
e a II::'. 0:: 0:: (/) 0 >- 5 9o Q) -'

$ 0 0


0:: ~ z 5 I- i== 0:: ci5
• l UJ zZ 5

- 6 ::lo Oz w CJ) (/) 0 -' e • .c <( ~ i== -' I- w
~ Q)

IL IL !:!:: II::'. ocj 0-' b5 c?. h w >- i==z ;;:: a.. 0 UJ '
LL

<( -' en :.::: 0o o I -' z z z o 0 all I g
~ -' ii:<( Q) '

Q) ..,. z O ui C en :::) u z o en <( (/) I- I- o <( r u ")I I <( <( >I- <( w :::) :::) IL ti) a.. a.. I- z
Q) "' 0 a: a.. Q) z <O "C I z Ii= I- ir Bi <(2 5 z II::'. II::'. o::z 1- t:: I- <(  ~ <( w 0 0z z al -' a.. 59 0 C .E w o 0. I-UJ 0:: zw w w W:::) fuii 8% ::, en en 00 I- a.. UJ w i==0 sE o gg 0 0 2>

 0 0 IL IL >- <( <( ai C) r- Ll ir (/) 0i== z Q) C) <( >- I- s UJ UJ 0:: [:::a.. .0 "' UJ !:!:: !:: 3 ii: ii: IL 0:: 0:: I- WC) :::) ti) 0 g 0 0:: :::; :::) :::) Q) I- lE I- 0 ii: UJ
:::)

I 5 oz IL IL u. all en oz z 0 00 C:::) > <4 w UJ 0::
G 3 0 0 C) g z 0:: c z :.::: iii zg -' a8 0 I-..... - :5 :::) O:::; (/) -' :5 i== C) en en s± II::'. a..u 0"' H- z oi 0 ci5 a.. =& en- ::, 5 z s z 5z e lth a,_I z ci5 z "'s 0 5 u]en a.. ..... <( C $ <( E :i: <( C 0:: z
UJ

a, C uI  w w W:::) a.. I- we> W.!l! >- Q) w WW 5 2o 0 0 ; a.. <( 0> C: w
0 w <( ee % <( d, z z Z<( 0:: (/) r 3 I a.. a.. 0:: 0:: 0 (/) IL zz I- I- IL I- :::) u iii o5 0

5
0 I-

e 0:: 0:: 0:: z
C) ulo 00 0 w
z II::'.-' -'-' -' -' = 0) O o-

~~ ~ 0 z 0 -'
8 z u- 0:: 0 z 00 -'

<( ~ I- 0 0:: -'-'
(/) UJ 5 5 z z 5 -'-' en
zo 0e 0:: II::'. 0:: 0 G o 0 a.. a.. w
0- e 00 0 z 0 55 I-
-> Ou 0 w -' w <(
I- II::'. IL IL IL + I- aa oZ- zz z C>O all z<( UJ -z zo <( C) w WW 0 ug en o6 :::) :::) :::) :::) - z wII::'. S2 >- O  II::'. 0 0 0 ~ >- >- (/) -'z o UJ zo 00 00 II::'. -' QI- :::) z z z a.. I- I- en _, en
2z I -~ WW WW <( a.. (/) -' I- 0 5 WW <( (/) UJ5 oo 0:: II::'. II::'. 0:: (/) :::) w w w IL IL +-'O u a.. a.. C) 0 0 <( <( w~ LL 0 <( all <( (/) :::) :.::: :.::: :.::: a zoo Oo:: <( <( 4$ az z all -' -' -' w (/) (/) O  0-' Ol 0 II::'. C) UJU

UJ o8 UJ 0 zo mm all i== all 0 z UJ w UJ all all !::O zii: I- z ~ 5 w 55 - UJ 0 IL 00 00
<( IL 2T >- UJ 0 (/) <( II::'. WUJ :cen -

<( <( -' :c- II::'. all -- -- -'-' c?. ~ II::'. II::'. a.. $ z
5 (/) a: II::'. I- 00 00 ~ c?. o 2 a..-' z all all all ii: ii: ii: 0 a.. ucnz g, ~ II::'. 0 5 II::'. <( ci5
UJ II::'. >- en W IL -'-' -'-' ~~ II::'.-' :::) IL w I- I- I- -' Oz -' <(0:: F$ -'-' -'-' - >- z II::'. II::'. II::'. €o 55 i5 $ <( all

0 51 <± m z o::- 5- (/) Oo (/) (/) (/) (/) <( 0 :,::: IL (/) w

i
w w w II::'. II::'. C>O LL >- I0 L5 -'-' -' -' zO o- <( 0 I IL :.::: :.::: :.::: WO :5 :5 (/) C) UJ zo 0z zo >- I- -' -' -'-' C) a.. o zz I- w w w ~~ o O :::) 0:: c?. UJ z I-

UJ :::)0 O:c % <( <( <( <( ,9 tii ~ 0 m :::) :::) :::) < II::'. I- 0±z - <( a!:!:; UJ :::) >- LL> u I- C) C) C) C) CJ) I- m w IL en II::'. II::'. II::'. O 5 IO IO I 0 (9 :.::: -' 0
.......... .......... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..-o 0 ..... N 0 ..... N ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... N N N .......... .....
NN NN NN NN NN NN NN NN N y V N NN NN NN NN NUJ 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 00 00 00 0 0 0 00 0

I- ~~ ~~ ~~ ! ~~ ~C!! ~~ ~~ s ~ g g ~ ~ ~~ ~~ ~~ ~ e e g g<( IO IO ..... r-- 10 CO .......... ..- IO 0) ..... r-- ..... ..... 0) r-- It) ..... 0) 0) r-- ..... .....
0 ~

..... g g ~ ~ N..- g g z ..... s 0 & ..... $ ~~ ~~ NN ..... ..... g g 2i:';J 7 al ;::: i:';J r-i >F o -NN ..-N NN NN NN NN NN O> N ..... <O .......... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... .......... 00 ..... ..... ..... ..... 0 ..... ..... o..- ..-o 0 ..... 0 00 .....
II::'.
UJ I'- (') 0) 00 ON 0) 0 ..... 00 C') ..... OON <Or-- ..,. r-- ..,. 0 0 <O r 0 It) 0) co N r-- 0 IO N r--om "' N <O C') MO co 0) 0) It) ..... <O 0) 0) CO IO ..... 0 ..,. IO ..,. co .......... N..- ..... co 0) (') 0 0) <O ;::::0. 5 I'- r-- r-- I'- r-- co r-- r-- r-- r-- co r-- r-- r-- N t IO r-- r-- IO r-- <O co co r-- co r-- <O $ I'- I'- <O IO..,. ..,. ..,. ..,. ..,. ..,. ..,. ..,. ..,. ..,. ;! ;! ;! ;! ..,. ..,. ..,. ..,. ..,. ..,. ..,. ..,. ;! ;! ..,. ..,. ..,. .,. ..,. ..,. ..,. ..,. ..,.
:::) I'- I'- I'- I'- r-- I'- r-- r-- r-- r-- r-- r-- I'- r-- r-- r-- r-- r-- r-- r-- r-- I'- I'- I'- r-- r-- r--z



ai..c
E
::,
z
"E
::,

4

1-z
::J
0~
<(

z
0
i==
Q_

ci::
(.)
(/)w
0

w
5
<(z
a::
0
0zw>

a::w
0 CDa. ~

::Jz

r
'<t LO
LO 0
c<) c<)
c<) 00

O
00 00
u:> u;>
55
c<) c<)
00
c.b r.b
'<t '<t

NO
00 0
000
'<tO
(")0
C")(O

r
r&B%.,.

i
a::w
0a::
OuI>
('.) <(z _J
<( wI><(.) w

' a::woa
W IOI= (/)
wO::
u4oza:: a::
<( 0~ (.)
u.. u..oo
2 uo<i!
E- 2(.) w
::J (/)a:: <(
I- I
(/) (.)z a::
0 ::J
(.) Q_

(.)z
o2
3zo
ci5 0
<( o1S
5u0
Oz
I- >u.. <(
0 Q_

0 c<)
CD o,
<O N
;:!: ;:!:

<O
0
00
0)

<O
e
N
Ii'/
G
LO
0
b
'<t

0
0
0
0)
LO
c<)
N~.,.

i
!zw
5
0zw
5
<(

u..w
€
('.)

0
N
0
Nv
N
0~

ru)
'<t N

e
LO LO
0) c<)
~ c<)
N 00
4

6 G
LO LO
99
<O <O
'<t '<t

00
00
00
00
00
0 .,.;
IO c<l
? r.,.

z
0
u5
5
0
CD
::J
(/)

g
0
0
6
5
:,,'.
wwa::
(.)

a>°;'. 1-
1 }-z
:,,'. 1-w CDw:::a:: •
(.)Z
z £2
<( (/)
>- wa::o

u.. u..
WW

££
('.) ('.)

- ON N
00~~co co
NO
r::: 00
00

i,;
y
00
IO

(0 co (0 <O- {]NNN 00
? 999
,- T'"" T"'" T"'"
N N N c<l
(") c<) c<) c<)
0000
d d d d
'<t '<t '<t '<t

CO c<l O CO
O> NO l'--
1'-- NCO l'-
u9 r O ('I)
CO CD I'-- I'-
~ C') CX) C')
CO CO IO O>
fh-,-Q('f')

fFJ- "¢ ~.,..,.

IO
y
<O....
CD
y
00
Ii'/
,;;
r---
9
co

0
0
0
0
e
N
0
N.,.

I
(/)
I
lo
CD
(/)
0
0
5
e

u..w
£
('.)

0
N
0s
?
00
0

000
000
NO'<t
COO CD
O>IO 0
o» olo
r])
r9 ) ,-j<h.,.

(.)

~ a.
a:: a::wo
('.)0
Z:,,'.uuu.. (/) (/)w <( <(roz

......
oi
3
o
ti

0) 0) 0) 0) 0)
,- ,- T"'" ,- ,-

y
lr?tr?"'!"llC?
COOOCX)COCX)
IO IO IO IO IO
I'-- I'-- I'-- I'-- r---
00000

I I I I I
L()U)U)U)U)
CD CO CO CO CO

000000
00000'<1"
000000
0 0000 l'-
'<t MO000
-+-lololo «
,-('t)T""" T"'" T""" OO
.,. .,. .,. .,. .,. 0)

0).,.

0
'<t
0r---
0.,.
00
0)
0).,.



Blank Page



sreo"9

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

POTENTIAL ACQUISITION OF PROPERTYFOR
PUBLIC PARKRECOMMENDATIONS

PURPOSES IN THE GENERAL SOUTHWEST
AREA OF THE CITYOF FRANKLIN. THE
COMMON COUNCIL MAY ENTERCLOSED

SESSIONPURSUANT TO WIS. STAT.S 19.85(1)(E),
TO CONSIDERTHE POTENTIAL ACQUISITION
OF PROPERTIES INTENDED TO BE USED FOR
PUBLIC PARKPURPOSES IN THE GENERAL
SOUTHWEST AREA OF THE CITYAND TO
REENTEROPEN SESSIONAT THE SAME
PLACE THEREAFTERTO ACT ON SUCH

MATTERS DISCUSSED THEREINAS IT DEEMS
APPROPRIATE

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

MEETING DATE
April 4, 2022

ITEM NUMBER

A motion to enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(1)(e), to consider the potential acquisition
of properties intended to be used for public park purposes in the general southwest area of the City and to
reenter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it deems
appropriate

Lead Staff/Planning - SH/MX



Blank Page



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING DATE

Slur COUNCIL ACTION 04/04/2022

LICENSES AND MISCELLANEOUS LICENSES ITEM NUMBER

PERMITS H.

See attached listing from meeting of March 04, 2022.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

As recommended by the License Committee.

CITY CLERK'S OFFICE



Franklin
d

W I S C O N S ! N

414-425-7500
License Committee

Agenda
Alderman Room

April 4, 2022 - 5:45 p.m.

1. I Call to Order & Roll Call l Time:
2. I Annlicant Interviews & Decisions

License Applications Reviewed I Recommendations

Type/ Time Applicant Information Approve Hold Deny

Operator Lang, Mariah A
2021-2022 Mulligan's Irish Pub & GnllNew
5:50 p.m.

Extraordinary Root River Center - Outdoor Event
Entertainment & Special Person in Charge: David ChurchEvent

5:55 p.m. Location: 7220 W. Rawson Ave.
Dates & Times of Event: June 3 &4, 2022 - 4:00-10:30pm;
June 5, 2022 - 1:00-7:00pm

Extraordinary Scottish Festivals, Inc.: Scottish Fest - Highland
Entertainment & Special GamesEvent and Person in Charge: David BergerTemporary Class B Beer

6:05 p.m. Location: Croatian Park at 9100 S. 76" St.
Dates & Times of Event: June 4, 2022 - 9:00am-9:00pm

Operator Bandle, Heather A
2021-2022 LandmarkNew

Operator Jewell, Jessica J
2021-2022 Kwik Trip #857New

Operator Lockett, Angela
2021-2022 Walgreens #05884New

Operator Mackie, Daniel C
2021-2022 Mulligans Irish PubNew

Operator Rightmire, Cara B
2021-2022 Hideaway Pub & EateryNew



License Committee Agenda
Alderman Room
Apnl 4, 2022

Type/ Time Applicant Information Approve Hold Deny

Operator Singh, Amrit P
2021-2022 Franklin Liquor StoreNew

Operator Vukovich, Kira K
2021-2022 Walgreens #05459New

Temporary Class B Franklin Noon Lions Club:
Beer Civic Celebration and

St. Martin's Labor Day Fair
Person in Charge: William Tietjen
Location: 9229 W. Loomis Rd.
Dates of Event: 7/1/2022 thru 7/4/2022 and
Location: St. Martins Rd. & Church St.
Dates of Event: 9/4/2022 thru 9/5/2022

3. Adiournment
Notice Is given that a mayor1ty of the Common Council may attend thus meeting to gather mformat1on about an agenda 1tem over whch they have
dec1s1on-makmng responsrbtlrty Thus may constitute a meeting of the Common Council per State ex rel Badke v Greendale Village Board, even
though the Common Council wIll not take formal action at thus meeting

Page 2 of2



Blank Page



APPROVAL

£ •
Bills

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Vouchers and Payroll Approval

MEETING DATE
4/04/2022

ITEM NUMBER

I

Attached are vouchers dated March 11, 2022 through April 1, 2022 Nos 187380 through Nos 187591 mn the amount
of $ 1,461,865 93 Also included in this listing are EFT's Nos 4880 through Nos 4907, Library vouchers totaling
$ 26,009 12, Water Utility vouchers totaling$ 54,678 16 and Property Tax vouchers totaling$ 4,812 17 Voided
checks in the amount of ($ 434 89) are separately listed

Early release disbursements dated March 11, 2022 through March 31, 2022 mn the amount of$ 984,121 79 are
provided on a separate listing and are also included mn the complete disbursement listing These payments have
been released as authorized under Resolutions 2013-6920, 2015-7062 and 2022-7834

The net payroll dated March 25, 2022 Is $ 445,783 45, previously estimated at$ 434,000 Payroll deductions
dated March 25, 2022 are $ 452,305 83, previously estimated at$ 465,000

The estimated payroll for Aprl 8, 2022 Is $ 442,000 with estimated deductions and matching payments of
$275,000

Attached Is a 11st of property tax disbursements EFT's Nos 417 through Nos 418 dated March 11, 2022 through
March 31, 2022 in the amount of$ 4,595 06 These payments have been released as authorized under
Resolutions 2013-6920, 2015-7062 and 2022-7834

Approval to release payment to Corey Oil for vehicle oil in the amount of $6,199 28 once approved internally

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion approving the following

• City vouchers with an ending date of April 1, 2022 in the amount of$ 1,461,865 93 and

• Payroll dated March 25, 2022 in the amount of$ 445,783 45 and payments of the various payroll
deductions In the amount of$ 452,305 83, plus City matching payments and

• Estimated payroll dated April 8, 2022 in the amount of$ 442,000 and payments of the various payroll
deductions in the amount of $ 275,000, plus City matching payments and

• Property Tax disbursements with an ending date of March 31, 2022 in the amount of$ 4,595 06 and

• Approval to release payment to Corey Oil mn the amount of$ 6,199 28

ROLL CALL VOTE NEEDED

Finance Dept - KM


